
carries out a careful t e st on the fringe of C02 for CH4, or 
perhaps you would rather not answer tha t?A. I do not think · 
p~rhaps I had be tt er an swer it, but I can't consider it, 
slr, a s you do. You see , ther e ar e quite a f ew other ways 
well, one other wa y of t e sting for this gas, even with a 
safe ty lamp e 

Q. I will be interested to hear from you after the adjournment 
as to the other way or ways of t e sting with a saf e ty lamp?A. Ye s. 

(Short adjournment) 
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HIS HONOR: Q. Do you want to put something to me?A. Yes, I think 
we were going to show how I would t e st for tte ga s? 

Q. Yes. A. If I may take hold of the lamp and show you? 

Q. Ye s? perhaps if you did it down there& AD The first thing 
you would do on going to any place would be to make sure the 
air you are breathing yourself is r ea sonably good so you c arry 
out your tests at this l evel and then you bring your l a mp up 
here for inflammable ga s as high a s you can and if necessary you 
climb up to do that and assure yourself ther e is no inflammable 
ga s thereo It has been my practise to do this over a number of 
years, having had some exp erience with it. If I suspect it 
mi ght be bottom ga s or even if I do not suspect it - -

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. Do you mean Illawarra bottom ga s?A. Or bottom 
ga s - gas on the bottom. I lower my light to a bout quart er 
flame and put my light in like tha t (demonstrates) bring it up 
till it is level with the fresh airo 

HIS HONOR: Q. At t ha t speed?A. About tha t speed to start with, 
in ca se there is a very strong conc entra tion of C02. If I feel 
it on the feet I do take the precaution of filling my lungs with 
air. I make sure I can do tha t to ge t the maximum amount of 
oxygen in the lamp in the shorte st time , to keep~ alight, 
because this ga s, once it enters the light, being some time 
before it ge t s down there - that is why I did it at that speed. 
I t ha s now entered into the lamp. It is still going down towards 
the flame and by this it should have r eached ito 

Q. How long does it t ak e ?Ao It depends on the size of your flame. 

Q. But how long does it t ake f or the ga s or air to go down the 
l amp?A. Well, aga in, it depends on the size of your flame. 

Q. It doe s?A. Tha t is t he circula tiono 

Q. I see . Ao With a very low flame it may take 7 or 8 or 
even 10 seconds but with a ha l f flame it would be f a irly quicko 
You can- I dontt know whe ther anyone would like to use the 
method to ge t their Illawarra bottom gas without g e tting down 
to all this bu sine ss of lowering t heir light down slowly. 
In Illawarra bottom ga s wher e you hnve a very low perc entage of 
CH4 you will find you ge t it this way wh ere you have no chance 
by lowering it down. 

Q. Is this wha t you say: the me thod of low ering it down would 
not show you a low concentra tion?Ae Very low, no. You ge t down 
to 4 to 1 without any trouble in lowering it down this WC¥ but 
if you are going to ge t 1 per cent - say 90 per cent 602 mixture 
or aiming to try to find 1 per c ent you would be r ea lly struggling. 
This way you just may happen t o g e t the slightest trace of the 
gas on the flame. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. I a sked you a question r e l a ting to the 
incidence of Illawarra bottom ga s in wha t you called the 11 0ld 
days11 and you have given His Horror an illustra tion of how you 
f ound it in the acclivity between two floor rocks?A. Yes. 

Q. You indic~ted I think tha t up to about 1930 it wa s not 
uncommon to de tect it in circumstanc e s like tha t?A. Yes. 

Q. You said, I think, this wa s when the works wer e near er the 
escarpment on the ea stern side of this s eam?A. Yes, that is so. 

Q. Wha t ha s been the situa tion in more r ec ent times?A. More 
r ecently you have had two things happen: one is tha t the 
char acter of t he mine s ha s changed, in other words, their output 
has gone up. The r e sult is the a r ea of t he workings has increased 
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and they have progre ssed we stward away f rom the area where the 
sill rocks are in par ticular , underneath the serun and in the seam . 

Q.Woul~ that indicat e to .you th~t theorstically this incidence 
would 1n fact be lower? a.That lS so . 

't• What has been your knm,rle dge as to the occa s ions when it has 
been detected in mo r e recent years? A. Well, my experience is 
that it has only been small quantities, very small po ckets and not 
very often. 

Q.It is towards those matter s that you have d irected your ob ser­
vation s in Paras.62 to 74 of your re port ? A-That is s o. 

Q. The next matte r you dealwLth is the question of pressure on 
the screen at the back of the shunt on A heading due ro the g o.s 
in No .S Right and you say: 

rr (75)Gas having a specific gravity of 1.15 is being held behind 
the brattice screen." 

Q.Where do you get that fig ure ? A. I assumed for tha purpose of 
this that that was the specific gravity a s given,I think, by the 
Department of Mine s analysis. I am not saying, in effect, it was 
exactly 1.15. 

"(76). Pavement level at the screen i s abo ut 103 feet ASL. Pavement 
level - - u 

Q, Not pavement level, surely? ~ Pavement level at the top of the 
gas . 

ttof the gas in the goaf and near B heading is 107 feet ASL. The 
block screen t he r efore has a head of 4 feet agains t it or the 
gas unde r still condi tion s would be 4 feet off the fl oor behind 
the block screen. n 

~.Thi s is what your observation says, that we have a screen 7~ 
to 8 fe et high and the level of t his pond age at that po:in t is 
~ feet up the screen? A. Under still c onditions. 

tt(77). Air at this position in the mine would have a we i ght 
varying with the temperature and the Barometric pressure but for 
all pr ac tical purposes it can be taken a s being .07 lbs per 
cub i c feet. The gas would have a weight of . oS lbs pe r cubic 
feet a t 1.15 S.G. 

(78). The pressure on the screen due to the gas '.vould be .ot~ lbs 
at the bot tom and nil from the point 4 feet from the floor to t he 
roof ." 

~ . REYNOLDS ~ I don 't quit e follow that. 

HIS HONOR ~ There is no gas there. 

l~ . REYNOLDS: It is as obvious as that. 

~.That is your r easoning. via Hill deal 1vi th the conc l usia.1 
later on? A. yes. 

"Pressure to the normal flow of Air. 
(79) T~e floHs of air which would cause a drop in ventilating press­
u~e v1h1c ~ W<;>Uld i n turn cause a depress ion in the shunt area,,._ 

2 
\a) As lllldlcated by (31) the flow from the intersecticn of A and No. 
cut through to the intake pi pe in the shunt less the velocity 

rh~ss~re created by the velocity a t t ained in relat ion to tha t pipe. 
ls 1s not measurable8 

f (b) The r e sistance offered by No.2 heading t o the air in travelling 
rom B heading to A headingo 909. GoSellers, x. 



Q. This is the air against the sides moving in that last ar ea 
of the cut-through?A. Yes 7 that is right. 

11 This may be calculated. It has been indica ted that the air­
waY concerned was greatly enlarged by the action of the fire 
and subsequent cleaning-up~ The r e sist2nce to the flow of air 
as a result has been reduced very considerably. The nearest 
estimate of its original condition would git it an area of 
136 sq. ft. and a l ength of 82 f ee t and th~se fi?ur~s toge ther 
with the quantity flowing may be used to f1rmly 1nd1cate as to 
what the pressure drop would have been before the fire. 

To calculate the pres~ure drop from B to A on No . 2 heading 
the Atkinson formula PAj = KSQ2 may be used and this is 
recognised in every part of the world as being applicable to 
the flow of air in mineso 

p equals the drop in pressure in lbs. per sq. ft. 

A equals the area in sqo fee to 

K equals the coefficient of friction which would 

p --
= 

be .Ole 
S equals rubbing surface in Sq. Feet. 
Q equals the quantity in thousands of C ft 

per minute 

9 01 X 22 X 82 X 2~ X 27 
1· 5 X 136 X l3 = .0124 lbs. 

£0124 
5o2 inches of Wo Go = 0 002511 WG. lt 

Q. Applying that formula you got an answer of o002511 water 
gauge?A. Yeso 

Q. And this is a pre ssure drop?A. From B to A. 

Q. In No. 2 cut-through?A. Yes, in Noo 2 cut-through, or heading, 
as I have called itc 

11 It is again emphasised tha t the pressure drops as would be 
found after the fire should be much less than this owing to 
the grea t er area and the much less coefficient of friction with 
the untimbered airway. u 

Q. In npressure on the Block Screen Due to the Working Conditions11 

you are going to deal with a consideration by you of the effec t 
of the shuttle car standing and moving in this general area?l . Yes. 

"(80) .A study of the normal shuttle c ar working cycle reveals 
that there is a very frequent obstruction to the flow of air 
along No . 2 cut through be tween B and A headings and that it 
will be frequent 7 intermittent 7 variable and some times 
comparatively heavyo 

No . 67 car usually stood empty for about 4 minutes in No. 2 
Heading between B and A in every cycle waiting for No . 40 
car to come out and enter the shunt. 
No. 40 car normally came up against the air flow to No . 67 
car and then r ever sed intc the shuntQ 

Both No. 4o and Noo 67 cars when full went up the 
continuous miner heading against the a ir and returned 
empty with the air o 11 

Q. That is the flow of the air?A. Ye se 
u 4 No. 0 car turned full side on across the Noo 2 cut through 

a t the A intersec tion when turning into the shunt c ausing a 
womentary but s~vere blockage t o the passage of air down 
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Q. That is when it did :Lts manoeuvre to move into the shunt?A . Ye s. 

MR . REYNOLDS~ Can Your Honor visualise j ust how big this shuttle 
cLr is in relation to tho roof and a irway ? 

~ . It is quite a striking fe a tur e?A. Yes . 

Q. Ther e is a conside r able obs t ruction to the air passage , you 
say - considerabl e , but shor t lived? A. Yes . 

u(8l) It would be possible (but difficult) to work Ql t the 
pressuro dr)p due to tho shuttle car flow pattern so it was 
dec id c:d. to find n similar spot in the mine, test the s itu.ation 
and then t o convert the r e sults to the c onditions as could be 
r ea sonably assumed existed in No . 8 Right before the r i ght . 

(82) . With the above obj e c t i v e in view a pos i tion in Rod Panel 
was chosen and the work carried out on 27/1/ 66 , The quant i ty of 
air flowing in the sit e of Re d Panel was 13 ; 000 cubic fe et pe r 
minute as c ompared with the quantity of 27mb00 flowing in No . 8 
Right Pane l . The other c onditions while not the s ame wer e such as 
to give strong indica tions a s to \vha t the press ure drops would be 
under similar shut tle car travel conditions in No . 8 . 

The result s gained with the 13 , 000 c . f . m. flow e r e a s 
foll OivS: -

The airway ov e r 82 fe e t caused a drop of .001n WG ." 

Q ~ The 82 feet is relate d t 0 the 80 fe e t you meas ur ed i n No . 2 c u t 
through? J ~ . Ye s. 

11 Allm.rin0 for this dr op it was found t ra t t he fo llow ing 
pressure drop s were incurr ed: -

Emp ty car standing 
Full c a.r standing 
FUll cnr side on (in turni ng ) 

. oo2u 

. oo4" 
• 00·55" 

It via s not possible to measure the r esis t ance created wh en 
a full car went up against the air current (owing to the wild 
fluctuati ons in the inclined manome ter) but this may be 
calcu.J.atGd . 

(83) w"hen the pressure drop s as above a r e conver t ed f or a 
flow of 27i 6oo t hey be come approximately:-

Kup ty c a r standing in airway 
Ful l c a r st and ing in airway 
Full and empty car standing in 
air\·my 
Full car tur ned side on 

. oosn w. G. 

. 016n W. G. 

. 02l..~n W. G. 

. 022n 

(84) . When t ho full car i s t r avelling agains t the air cur r ent 
the area is r educ ed and tho flo1.; rate is incr eased according 
t o the vol um.e of t he car cmd i ts s ne ed . The f r i ction 
is incr e ase d . I t was estima t ed that the car led t o a situat i on 
which cre a t ed an equivalent velocity of ab out 600 ft. per minute 
as compared wi th abou t 3 21 f ee t per minute when the car was 
standing . The pres s ure drop would thor Gfor o be ~ -

(6oo~2x .016 i nche s of w. G. 
(321 

. o5611 W. G. 
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u (85) .An approximate time study of the pressures on the 
block screen is shown on the chart below., H 

Qa Would you explain this? Ao I do appreciate this may be a 
little difficulto I have endeavoured to set out a table which 
vtill show what happens when sh:1ttle cars take up the various 
positions in the cut-through, No .. 2 cut-through, between B 
and A headings and the first column, and that is all the time, 
and it is labelled A on the top line, you find I have made 
allowance there for the gas pressure o0025 which I said couJd 
exist due to the height of the gas above the floor but of course 
that in this case would apply t o the bottom of the screen only -
I beg your pardon- udue to normal airflow!!, first. Secondly, 
I have provided for the pressure ~ue to gas on the screen and 
tha t is there all the time of o0105 inchesQ That, of course, 
would vary according to the constituents of the ga s behind the 
screen in some measure. That applies all the time so tha·t 
appears in each of the cases concerned~ 

Q. You are seeking to get a total of pressure differential in 
each given set of circumstances?Ao Yes. 

Q. So you have the constant ones at the head of the column. A. Yes. 

Q. And you add any other f actors which are pertinent to the 
situation and put a total at the bottom?A. Yes. 

HIS HONOR: Q .. What does ! I 6 times x 4 mins,; u mean?A. That means 
in this time actually that took place, the hour and 40 minutes 
on the morning concerned, this thing happened 6 times, each of 
4 minutes dura tiono 

Q. Six occasions?A. Estimated.. One cannot be precise in these 
thingso I am just putti.ng this down as indicative of what can 
happen. 

Qo When you m<?_ve to the others- t!8 times x 35 secs. 11 - eight 
times every 35 seconds?A= Eight times each of 35 seconds. I 
have brought them down to the total time of variations from normal 
of 37t minutes lower down; v·rhich is some thing in the order of what 
might be expected to happen~, 

S.Car 
.action 

All the 6 t:..mks 8 ti.me s 14 times 8 times 8 time s a times 
time X X X X 

4 mins" 3 5· secs 12 3ec s. 7 secs. 
P. C D E 

--=-- -~· 

X 

35 secs. 5 
F 

X 
secs. 
G 

Due to normal 
airflow o0025 a0025 o0025 o0025 a0025 .0025 .0025 

,Due to gas 
Bot tom only , 008 o 008 ., 008 Q 008 o008 .oo8 .oo8 
Due to empty 
cars standing Cl 008 

Due to full 
car standing .,016 

Due to full 
car and empty 
car standing 

Due to full 
car against air o 056 .056 
Due to full 
tar standing 
side on 
TOTALS: o0105 .,0185 o0-~.S5 ~ 0665 

g022 
0 0345 .0745 

nGt1 is fo::- that time when the No o 4o car ent ers the 
Noo 2 heading just above r:A 1 ~ intersectionwith the 
empty car also in that part waitingo 11 
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n(86) The preceding chart shows the extent of the fluctuations 
in the period of 1-2/3 hours such as would be normal on the day of 
the ignitio 1. In explaining the ignition a.ll these fluctuatim s 
are im~ortant as the variations would have a far r e achi1~ effect. 
For 372 minutes on the morni ng of the ignition the presrure drop 
wo uld have been gr eater than that due to e.irway friction aloneo 
Of the se 37~ minutes the most important int ervals of time would 
be those of one fifth of a minute when each full car was travelling 
be tween "A" and "B" headings and the eight time s when thG full 
car was using 35 second s to shunt into "A" heading. 

The Shuttle Car working Cycle on 9th November. 

( 87). At the beg inning of the shift it has been indicated that 
No.40 car was in the straight and No.67 was still presumbly 
v1her e it had been rep a ired the night b efor c-J in "B" heading towards 
the crib room. 

(88) From the point as above the normal cycle would be:-

(a) 
(b) 

Cc) 
(d) 
(e) 
(f) 
(g) 

(h) 
(i) 

No.40 proceeds to the face 
No.67 takes tJ.p the position of waiting bet\veen headings 
"B .. and 11 A11 (empty). 
No.,40 come s out of face to No.67 and then shunts (full) 
No.67 proc eeds to face (empty) 
No.4o proceeds to unloading point (full) 
No.40 empty proceeds to shunt and waits for No.67 (empty) 
No.67 comes out of face and proceeds straight to the 
unloading point (full). 
Noe40 comes out of shunt and goes into fac e (empt.y) 
No.67 comes from unloading point and waits for No.40 between 
"A11 and "B" (empty) 
Note: Seven complete cycles took place. 

(89). It is possible to calculate the leakage through the 
brat t ice block . creen providing a constant situatic:n is ther o all 
the time. Owing t o the heavy fluctuation of pr e ssure the amcunt 
of gas available behind the screen for each pre ssur e action would 
be hi ghly variable and ther e for e any calculations that can be 
mad e would be an indication only of what would happen whm. the 
r e sistance of the screen allowed only a certain amount of gas to 
go through &t a known pr e ssur e differ ence. In the case at point 
56 cubic feet of CH4 plus 81 cubic feet of Carbon Dioxide and an 
unknown amount of air (which in quantity could be the largest 
part of the leaJc) would be the leak if the pr ·· sslll' os in between 
"BH and "A" headings remained constant. If ther e is fluctuating 
pr es sure then these leaks would be higher under the high pr e ssure 
differ ence and then when the pr essure difference falls a lower 
l oak could be expected. 
(90). Under normal pr e ssure when the ga s level at the block 
screen takes up the position of 107 ASL, it is l+ fe et from the 
floor \vith a.ir occupying the r emaining space above it. Under surge 
conditions some of this a ir at l east is exhausted thus giving a 
much greater ar ea for g~s to l eak through by virtue of the rise 
in level of the gas. 

(91) The following table sho-vrs the l eakage which could be 
expected if tho district was to stand for some time and then if 
each pressUl"e was a9plied in turn under those conditions. The 
pr essures are taken off the Chart (85) -

Basis (A) PoDo 11 
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Q. What is P.D.? A. P_ressure difference. 

11~05 W.G. l eakage as found 56 cubic f ee t CH4 the make in the 
goaf.u 

Q. You deal with t hem and take the figure s as given across the 
totals in your chart in para. 85 and you calculate how much 
cH4

1 
on the analysis which you know, would l eak through a minute? 

A. Tha t is so. 

Q. You have a maximum figur e in the situa tion nGn when No . 40 
car enters the 2 heading just above A intersection, of 150 cubic 
f ee t per minute?A. Ye s. 

11 1 B t PD equals .0185U leakage would be 76 cubic fe e t CH4 
tC T equals • 026 511 89 ll 

ID! equals • 0$65" 141 11 

tE r equals • 03 2511 99 u 

'F' equals • 034511 98 u 

r G t equals .074511 150 11 

(92) On the ba sis of the above chart the least value is 56 
and the maximum is 150 cubic f ee t per . minute of CH4. It is 
clear tha t the lo\·J"er leakage point would be vory much less 
than above and it could be in f ac t in r everse at times and air 
could be leaking from the shunt into the space behind the 
brattice this could apply due to surge alone and it also could 
apply when the shuttle car is trave lling emp ty with the air. 
In the t e sts this factor wa s not obtainable owing to the surge 
on the nun tube of the Water Gauge. The high point would by 
the same token be grea tly exceeded beyond the 1)0 cubic feet 
of CH4 indica t ed and it could easily be more than doubled. 
It is to be noted tha t by comparison with the pressures avaiJable 
for the ventj_lation of the District the variations in pr e ssure 
due to the shuttle car movements are very small and they would 
not interfere in any measurable way with the quantity of air 
flowing in the District." 

Q. Do you mean that wo uld not have any effect on the mine system 
of ventilation?A. Very little. 

Q. They wer e creating this intermittent pressure differ ence 
acro ss that screen?A. These figure s a r e purely comparative , but 
they are very small. 

Q. You envisage what could have been the critical situation in 
this resp ect immedia tely prior to the ignition, and you say: 

11 The Critical Situa tion 
(93) It appears tha t a t about 9.20 a.m. on November 9th, 
the following conditions pertained in No . 8 Right District: -

(a) No. 67 !f!ar had been filled w·ith coal and it then 
proceeded to the unloading r amp wher e it was delayed 
for sever a l minut e s. 
(b) No. 40 car proceeded to the f ac e and was filled with 
coal. It then came out of the plac e and proc eeded towards 
11Au heading. 
(c) No. 67 car during this time had spent all its time in 
unloading and waiting near C he ading and it did not t ake up 
the position be tween llB" and 11A11 headings where it usually 
stood for about 4 minutes waiting for No. 4o car to en t er 
t~e shunt. No. 67 car in its l a st ac t before ignition 
tlme is between "C 11 and uBn headings in an empty sta t e . u 
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HIS HONOR : Q.v..um re do you get these facts from? A. In the first 
place I did go into the District and I made an examination ~d 
I was not quite .satisfied that you would get gas at the polnt 
vrhe r e the ignition was said to have t aken place . 

MR . REYNOLDS: Q.I do not think that is what His Honor a9<ed you? .J.1. 
It is leading up to it, if I may. So then I decided there was 
some other reason why this igni tlon t ook place be cc.use the gas 
undoubtedly was there so it then be ca me obvious to me there was 
some thing else interfering with the pre ssures to c a us e the 
l ealc to come at that particular time. So I then sought out 
fo r the reason and the reason I found in this c a se by 8. sking the 
people 11 what do you do?11 - But fir~.:;t of all I analysed the thing 
my s elf and said "Thore is the shunt, the shuttle car obviously 
goe s in theren. That is quite ot vious to everybody. But , 
the othe r car must wait somewhere. I de cided it must -v.rait as 
close as possible to the shunt because that is the logica l place 
for it t o wait. Aft er all , these prople do not 1vait , if they 
are officient in their operations , the do not ·wait one hundr e d 

yar ds a1my, tbGy get as close Q. S they can to the point,t o whe r e 
they have to make the ir n oxt move from am I then compl ot el y 
analysed the situation and I did find from the various parts of 
the transcrip t wher e these cars were. I did find that the 67 
car vvas in fact being r epaired th(j'night before , I did also fj_nd 
in t he transcript the 40 car was in the straight nnd I assumed 
that was below whe r e the shunt \r.Jas, towards the mine face, but 
I did not enql.lire about that. So, I did have confirmation about 
three statements and the ~ .. rhole thi ng fits into place. 

•;> 
Q,Yo u mo an you askod questions · A. As a matter of fact, on the 
night of my inspe ction I asked , "Whe r e is the shuttlo car 
normally standing?t' 

Q.You have here a fact "No.67 car during this time had spent 
all its time in unloading and wa1ting ne ar C heading and- it did 
no t t ake up the position between B nnd A heading.s wher e it 
usually stood for about lt- minutes waiting for No .40 car to onter 
the shunt. No.67 c a r in its last act before ignition time 
is betir.Jeen C and B he adings in an empty stat e". Did that come fr om 
the transcript? A. I do believe so. 

HR . REYNOLDS: It is in th e plan tha t is wher G it was foun.d. 
Evsry body says it was there . f am not sure "~Jrhe tlw an ex-planation 
for it not be ing in its normal posi t i on has been given. bbviously 
it has been given to t his witnoss but I am not sure whe ther it 
is to be found i n black and white in the trenscript. 

WIT~~SS: I believe it is in the transcript by the evidence of one 
of the shuttle c a r drivers . 

HIS HONOR: I 1-vill endeavour to find t h is in tho transcrip t. 

MR .REYNOLDSg Q.You had this information. You believe it is in 
the tr anscript? A.I believe it is per f e ctly true. 

11 
(d) The shunt and the airway between uA" and 11 B11 has not 

been d isturbed for a period estimated to bo not less than 7 min·­
ut e s." 

q. There has been nothing moving in the re for 7 minutes? A.I 
assume this. 

"The gas behind the stopping accumulates in tho non-surge 
cond itions." 

MR . REYNOLDS: There is nothing to creat e a pressure diffe r ence in 
that 7 minutes. 915. G.Sellers, x. 



u (e) No. 40 car travels over the intersection at "A" in a 
full state and then travels up against the air, stops after 
attaining sufficient length to turn, the driver changes from 
one seat to the other, moves his shuttle car to turn and 
in doing so gets his car side on across the air current, 
looks to see tha t the c able anchor point is right 
(statement of Mangles) and then makes his way into shunt. 
This action is estimated to have normally occupied some 
35 seconds. On this occasion it could have taken longer 
because there was no need to do it quickly as the other car 
was not ready to come in. The driver also could have 
stopped when examining the anchor point. 11 

MR. REYNOLDS: You have dealt with it on the basis of 35 seconds. 

n (f) Because of the comparatively high pressure difference 
crea ted by No. 40 car in the 35 or more seconds period there 
has been a sharp in~rea se in the quantity r:£ CH4 in the 
shunt and in addition to this it anld have been tha t the 
quantity of CH4 in the shunt was even grea ter than that 
due to the pressure change because just before tha t time 
the floor could have heaved in the goaf and released a 
large amount of CH4. If there was such an emission then 
the pressure change would aggravate the position. 11 

Q. You say this study of yours indica tes the actual manoeuvring 
of the shuttle car entering the shunt could at that moment 
create an increased emission of gas through the brattice into 
the shunt?A. Ye s, almost certainly would. 

11 (g) Shuttle car No. 40 enters the shunt and an igniting 
agent comes into contact with a quantity of inflammable gas. 11 

HIS HONOR: There was nothing unusual aoout this procedure of 
the shuttle car? 

MR. REYNOLDS: No, it is not suggested this was a particular 
manoeuvre, but it would happen L~ more or less degree every time 
a shuttle car shunted in there. 

HIS HONOR: Q. If the gas had been there the day before this 
would have been going on, the only difference wa s, no point of 
ignition'?A. Tha t would be quite right if tha t was the c ase . 

MR. REYNOLDS: 11Mining Practice in No. 8 Right District. 

(94) In the Court proceedings it ha s been indicated that the 
mining practice has not been good and it ha s been inferred tha t 
this has been in a large measure the cause of the accident. 

(95) It appears that the coloured plan as submitted to the 
Court in evidence is one such a s '\vould be prepared by the 
survey staff in the ordinary pursuance of their duties. It could 
be expected tha t the number of lifts would be much more numerous 
than as shown on the plan as the survey t eam would only show the 
position as they could be able to determine at the time of 
their visits to the section. 11 

Q. I think this morning you have already explained to the Court 
wha t you mean by tha t'?A. Ye s. 

MR. REYNOLDS: 11 (96) The plan as attached shows that the 
extraction of tha t part of the area which is now goaf would 
involve the dealing with geological conditions which are not 
normal. These would be -

(a) Sill rock and cinder coal at the f ar or inbye 
end of the aroa. 
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(b) Stra ta heavily flexed by the formation of a major 
normal fault of some 300 fe e t throw which occurs just 
inbye of the panel boundary. This would cause 
considerable t ension on the ar ea. 
(~) Heavy grades in the draw path of the fault. 
(d) A cluster of volcanic dykes a ssocia t ed with a 
minor t ension f ault in the middle of the goafed area. 

(97) The a bnormal geologica l f ea tur e s would most certa inly 
crea t e bad roof conditions and would l eave a floor tha t would 
break up and heave very r eadily. 

(98) The lift system and the order in which they have been 
t aken within the goaf ar es a s indicated by the pl an shows a 
pattern that 11!ould not be adopted willingly and it must be 
taken to show tha t the oper a tions a t l ea st in part followed the 
need to mainta in the saf e st roof conditions in keeping with the 
rnaxima.m amount of extraction. 

(99) It would not be possible for any person who had not 
seen the working conditions in the ar ea goafed in some de t ail 
to know whether or not the me thod wa s good or bad. 

(100) In working the panel it wa s the intention to have a 
heading on t he outbye side and parallel to the heading from 
which lifts were to be t aken and for this heading to a ct a s the 
drainage pa th for the ventila tion tha t would travel by direction 
along the goaf edge . This is very good pr actice and the amount 
of ga s tha t would be d e tected with this system in opera tion could 
be expected to be small. 

(101) It appears tha t aft er the pillar marked (10) on the 
coloured plan wa s extracted the conditions r el a ting to fue pillar 
marked ( 11) "\ver e r eaching a point where some collapse wa s 
envisaged and it wa s therefore decided to extract it without 
the delay tha t would be incurred by the driving of the heading a s 
wa s proposed a bove. If pillar marked (11) was to be extracted 
then the two pillars marked (12) should also be extract ed to 
pre serve the goaf line . Again any person not having seen the 
situation could not say whe ther or not this was good practice. 

(102) At the time the evidence available to the parties 
concerned in the decision t o t ake out (11) before driving a 
place ahead to allow the air to circulate along the goaf edge 
was that the ga s in the goaf wa s of a noxious na ture and there­
fore non inflammable. It is not uncommon for mines to be 
worked with unventila ted goafs and in mines where spontaneous 
combustion occurs ventilation of the goaf would be frowned upon 
and carried out 111hen no alternative could be found. Under 
conditions wher e hea tings ar e possible the pr e senc e of inert 
ga se s in the goaf is most desirable. 

(103) With r eference to tha t pa rt of the district tha t is 
still available for operations the conditions would be perhaps 
little worse than average and I would expect a high extraction 
perc entage and r a te of output should it be worked. 

(104) It is understood tha t it wa s the intention t o hole the 
place (13) on plan and then to drive a split down the middle 
of the pillar paralle l to Nos. 2 and 3 headings. It would have 
been be tt er to ha ve driven the split before the ho ling took 
Place a s it would have allowed a grea t er fr~edom in draining the 
goaf as a sourc e of fresh air could have been brough t right 
against the holing should it be found de sira ble . Such action 
would have r eadily allowed the holing to be made of l arger size and 
the dra~g of the goaf c ould then be comple t ed in short time . The 
8P~i~ down the middle of the pillar 1...0 uld be a r e turn to the 
orJ.gmal planning. n 
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HIS HONOR~ Q. Would you say this s plit is a longitudinal split 
in the pillar you a re talking abo ut?A. Yes . 

Q. And from 1,;hich side - you would have obviously s plit the . p i~lar 
on the goaf side? That is the only side you c OLlld have sp ll t l t 
f rom? ~- • Yes . 

MR . REYNOLDS : Q. But I gathe r you s ay you would have prefe rred to 
do it by splitting the pillar incompletely formed; that is before 
it holed into the goaf?A . That is right . 

Q.Running a heading throLJ.gh from A heading to the miner place 
bef:Jre you took the miner place in to the goaf? A. That is ;:o • 

Q.That is the way you would have done it? A. Yes . 

HIS HONOR~ Q. You vrould have had this area for holing the goaf 1 that 
is another matter? A. You would have had a fresh air base right 
alongsi de . 

Q.But it would no t have taken it alongside the goaf , it would have 
been narrower? J.'- • I did not prec isely mean that , Your Honor . If you 
take the posi tion you see on that plan on the Board no1v-1 before 
t hat place was a ctually holed I v;ould drive the s plit and then hole . 

IviR . REYNOLDS~ (Indicating on Exhibit A) He said if he f ound himself 
in this situation, he \vould have taJcen from there and then finished 
that off . 

HIS HONOR: Q. You \'lOuld not have a pil lar if Y 8 U had not driven?A. 
I would have driven the other place first , as is, but I wouldn ' t 
have split in to what is nm·r called the miner place . 

MR . REYNOLDS ~ Q. I t hink your point is that if you had done this 
first an d there vJas a connection here , you had a fresh air place 
available here?A. That is right . 

HIS HONOR ~ Q. At what point, though, after you stc,rted to drive 
that extension would you have t aken the split? A. Just be fore . 
I would not have holed. the other place , just barely left it unholed . 

Q.Left it unholed and then taken the spli t .Z A. That is right . 

HR . RZiNOLDS ~ Q. And you say this would be an important statemen t 
in this section of it ~ 

11 (105 ) The situat ion as indicated. in (9Lt·) and (104) above had. 
nothing to dei with the ignition of gas . n 
Is that right? "\. Yes , that is right . That is my opinion. 

Q. Then you next dea l with the nn tter of reversing t he air1v-ay -

HI S HONOR~ It is an important statement, Jvlr . Reynol d s . Perhaps one 
of the most importont statements the witness has made . 

MR. REYNOLDS: It has been made from the Bar t able before, but now 
it has the benefit of an oath. 

HIS HONOR~ Q. You mean not even as a remote course? A. Well per haps 
i f I said that I was s peaking comparatively in makin g that 
stat emGr t . You sec , you can relate almost everything you do in life 
to something . 

Q. .An infinite chain of causation? a. Yes , that· i s so. 

Q, But nevertheless, one does get the situation vvhere for practicGl 
pur poses one di stinguishe s be tween wha.t is so romote as to be 
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ignored and what is not quite so r emot e ; I suppose you would say 
here the immedia te and proximal cause of t he ignition is the 
fact tha t you have ga s with a point of ignition?A. Tha t is right. 

Q. And spreading further away in the chain of causation, you have 
some thing which causes tha t ga s to come out of the goaf and 
something which would hea t up somewher e around the ar ea of the 
brake drum c ausing a point of i gnition, and so you go wider? 
And basically, in this of course is the fact t ha t the ventila tion 
system wa s not sufficient to cope with t he flow of gas or the 
amount of ga s; tha t must be so o therwise the ga s must have been 
diluted so tha t no ignition could have t aken place. Would you 
agree with tha t?A. Well, I think tha t wha t I think is probably 
the same a s what you think, sir, but I think I put it in a 
slightly different way. 

Q. Tell me how?A. Well, the sta t ement you made about the 
ventilation not being adequa t e to deal with the situa tion was 
not perhap s strictly correct. 

Q. Can you show me \vhere it is incorrect?A. For instance, I 
would say to you now tha t on the evening I first went into tha t 
mine I pulled down the bra ttice screen in the shunt and the 
ventilation was quite adequa te to shift tha t ga s in a very short 
time. 

Q. Pa_rt of th~ ventila tion system was the bra ttice screen a cross 
the shunt?A. I will allow tha t. Per hap s we t hen come back into 
agreement. 

Q. What I said was t he ventila tion system a s it existed was not 
sufficient, was not adequate, to deal with t he ga s tha t became 
pre sent?A. Ye s, well, I think we do man the same thing. 

Q. Assuming tha t to be so - this is going back to the more r emote 
cause but one which may be foreseeable - one ge ts t o the cause of 
the ventila tion system not being adequa t e in tha t way?A. Ye s, well, 
may I suggest tha t Your Honor limits tha t t erm ttventilation 
system not being adequa t e11 to tha t little part of the district 
because quite clearly the ventila tion syst em for the r e st of the 
district wa s quite adequa t e . It would have been quite adequa t e 
had tha t bra ttice not been er ected , and it is only one small 
part of t he district. That is the point I make. 

Q. It is true ther e wa s not suffic i en t ventilation in the immediate 
ar ea wher e the ignition occurred?A. Tha t is so. Nobody could deny 
that. 

Q. And it appears from t he evidenc e tha t the ventilation was not 
sufficient there in tha t se t of circumstances bec ause of the 
existence of the bra ttice?A. Ye s. 

Q. Without t he bra ttice, a s you say, t he ga s wa s dealt with by 
the flo"' of air?A. Yes. 

Q. But you see can you divorce the bra ttice from the r emaind~ 
of the ventila tion system in tha t W'ay? For example , if there had 
been a further bleed tunnel - I do not say it was possible of 
course, but a s sume ther e had been a bleed tunnel formed before 
this one wa s driven, ventila ting the goaf - the bra ttic e itself 
W?Uld probably not have caused the ga s to aecumulate - A. Well, 
s1r, if I may interrupt you, you may be right and you may be 
wrong in drawing tha t a ssumption. If I may expl a in --

9· I may be right and I may be wrong; I will ask you t o explain 
m a moment. Assuming for the moment without explan a tion tha t I 
am right. You see , we are t a lking about whether it is or is not 
~oo remote. If I am right, t hen does it not follo \v it is not 
JUst the bra ttice tha t causes the f ire in more or l e ss r emo te 
fashion, but it is the bra ttic e in t he circumstances tha t existed 
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that c aus ed the fire and therefor e the causing of those circum­
stances must be a significant cu.uso of the fire . Is that right? 
.A•That is so . 

Q. Now, tell me wher e I c o.w-..ot be right? A. Well 1 there is ro 
auara...'1 t ee that if you hole tha t mine r pl ace into the goaf , 
you would ge t any flo\v at all . NO\v it is not uncommon that 
t his happens, it is ve ry c ommon along the line of t m g oaf you 
.have two factors that are i mportant t o t h is partic ula r case . 
one is how the floor behaves .:illd the other one is hovv the r oof 
behaves . Now then , as I say , i t is very common in t h i s s ort of 
case where not exa ctly even on the e dge of the goaf but some 
distance into the coal , it co uld be even six f eet into the coal, 
you get the bottom star t ing to heave and it causes v1hat we call a 
goaf drain. I think every practical mi ner here and e v ery mining 
man would have quite often s een the floor up t hi s high a bove the 
coal pavement due t o this heaving . In add ition to that, if you 
have a v ery fine grained r oof and it bre aks up int o small 
pa rticles they will fall v e ry readily, and in the process of the 
co ttom hen.ving you can get a ve ry tight situat ion \vhich would rot 
allovr anything to come t trough of any note . This is happening 
every day in ce rtain part s of this di s t rict and you would.n' t get 
a f low th~ugh it . You would not drain the goaf in this particular 
me thod , but I sugge st that poss ibly you would get a flow of air . 
I w rt not saying you would and I ~11 not saying you vrouldn' t 
because we n e ve r got there . We don't know. I don ' t lmov.r, I couldn ' t 
say . 

HR . REYN OLDS ~ 

Ventilat i ono 
(106 ). It ha s been s a id in evidence that t he ventila tioniRths 
shoul d ha ve be en r ev er sed and that the j_n take shou]d have go ne 
down " A" heading with 11 C11 heading the return. I complet ely fail 
t o unde rstand why this has been said o The position relating t o 
No. 8 Right District with r egard to good ventiJa tion p r act ice is 

(a ) The gasses being met in thE district we r e m avie r than 
a ir and t he direc tion of the air path should ther efore tmvel 
from the high sicl e to tm low· side . The v entilation in the 
distric t does go from the high side t o the lOiv side . 
(b ) The a ir shoul d come from behind the r e treating faces 
and then go over the •tTorked ou t goaf . The air path i n No . 8 
right was coming f rom the par t behind the retr eat and then 
going over the goaf . The layout of the d istrict as planned. 
very clearly s e ts out t o do this . 

~1Q7 ). The sugge stion tha t the a ll' sho uld. have travelled down 
1 A heading ivOUld mea/l that t he a ir would be travellirg up t he 
goaf line right f rom the bott om , if the goaf vi as to be drained, 
and for the extraction of the coal above "Au heading it \vould 
a.l low for tho air to travel through the extracted area b ofcr e it 
reached the working place s . With the comparatively low gas emission 
bein g experie nc ed. in No . S Right it ,,vould. prob ab l y work but it could 
not be nearly as g ood a s the method. a dop t ed . It i s to be not ed 
that CU"!Y bra ttice s erected. would. l eak in a similar way to the 
br a ttice making the block sc l"een of the shunt in 11 A" headi ng . 

Q_ONCLUSIONS ~ 
Ca) The drop in Barometer had virtually no bearing on the 
ignition. 
(b ) The suct i on fans did not create any zone of comparat ively 
r educed pressure that would cause the brattice in "A" heading 
to l eak . 
( c ) The me ~h?d of wor~ing as p roposed -was sound , b u t ~ owing 
to the condl tlons t o \vhlch the . syst em 'was FJ.ppli ed , v a.r lat ion 
vias forced up on the management o 
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(d) There is every possibility that the gases being met 
with before the fire was extinctive and that at 8.30 a . m. 
on the 9/1/65 if inflammable gas was being ~ven off at 
that time it could have been absent from the shunt areas. 

(e) Gas was present at the time of ignition and its 
leakage rate through the brattice was aggravated at the 
time No . 40 shuttle car entered and the ignition occurred 
by the ac tion of the shuttB car causing7comparatively high 
pressure drop in the shunt. 

(f) The working of the shuttle car caused heavy variations 
in pressure in the vicinity of the working area. 

(g) There was a sudden variation in the character of the 
ga ses given off from the goaf and minGr place and this 
most probably happened suddenly on the morning of the 
9/ll/t55. 

(h) That a sudden heaving of the floor probably associated 
with the dyke and fault system within the extracted area 
W$ the cause of the sudden change in the character of the 
gases. 

Finally I could not accept tha t every per son who set out to 
detect ga s in No. 8 Right would fail to find Illa1varra Bottom 
Gas which was at the time of my visits so easy to find. u 

(Luncheon adjournment) 
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HIS HONOR: I}~ fore the cro.s s-examinat ion proceeds fur trn r 
I think we ought to all be clear a s to what exactly \vas done by 
the denuties on their evidence A . .nd in par ticular vrhat vms d one 
by Hr.stevrart on the day or oo preceding the fire and the d.t'Y o f 
the f ir e . There seems to be some confusion here and the r e cer­
tninly is confusion in my mind but ns I see it and I may be 
corr ec ted here by Counsel, on each of the shifts where Hr . Walker 
and r·Ir.Cwnbourn -vrere the deputies no ge.s was discovered bye ither 
of those deputies~ noxious or inflammable , in the place a t alJ. , 
according t o their evidence o Deputy Stewart reports that on his 
shift, on the shift before when the fire occurred , he fOund. n oxious 
gas. On the day of the fire, and his rep ort was made 2 days late r 
because of him being i~capacitated by the fire he r eported7 and I 
will re A.d it 11 Noxious gas found at goaf a rea of previous lift and 
A he~ding o Others clear" . That is a s I say, the r eport as to t he 
shift during which the fire occurre!o His evidence as to what he 
found and what he did not find is as f ollows, nnd I 1v ill try t o 
l\:eep this down to the examination of th3 shunt ar ea only: 
11 I c 6 b k up and into the shuttle cn.r shunt again 
Ji&e~ wenFln tgere and this time I got dO\m on my hands A.nd my 
l-mees and I got this sensa tion right down low on the ground. . It is 
a small or a s ensation or \vhateve r anyone likes to call it. It is 
something like a sensation in your nose and mouth but it als o 
burns your eye s and I gave this elephaDt tube a little bit of a 
vrave around and then I could not smell anything else again and I 
tested. all round that area with the lamp '"' nd c ould. not find anything. 
Then I went back down and sat r oughly at the back of the miner 
on the vent tubes for about ano ther ten minut es an d then I went 
back up to lvhere everybody \vas collected on t he timber bay and that 
is \vhen the a ctualy fire took pl ace. n 

We have been s peaking her e of M.:b. St ewart having test ed for gas s ome 
half hour before the fire and having foQDd n o thing. On that 
evidence ob viously it is less t han half an hour, one might sny 
it is ten minute s plus. 

HR .McN.ALLY: There is other evidence from another witness ,Your Honor . 

HIS HONOR ~ I am taking Hr .Stewar t's o1m. evidence ·9.t the moment. 
"Q.Tha t is when it happened? AcYes. 1t 

He was t hen cross-examined by Mr oLee as t o the practice of ge t ting 
do1.m on his hands and knees e2 No wher e doe s he suy he discover ed 
that gas with t he l amp or any other device , it was me r ely a 
smell , and he got rid of it, he said. , by vTa ving t he e l ephant 
trunk around . He was asked this by HroLee, on p .l09, 
"Q. rilld vrhat opinion d i d. you form \vhen you got this sensa tion er 
smell? A.eWhen I got that smell I associated it with black damp . 
Q. You neve r suspected bottom gas did yoQ? Ae No t suspected it, 
no , but I had been looking for it., tr 
Appar ently the effect of his evidence was he was looking for it 
Without a safe tv lamp at that stage o 11 ~ 

Q. Wha t you thought you vTer e ge tting t here was black damp ? A. That 
is right. n 
Then , on the next page , he was asked~ 
11Q.Wha· i s the method you used then?" 
I run sorry , the question before is impor tant ~ 
"Q.Did. you test at the face and a.t the f P...ns and in the s hun t in the 
same manne r each t ime ? A~ I wo uld. s ay Yes . Yes o 
Q. Wha t is the method yoQ used then? Ao First of all going into 
a pl ace I tasted tha roof firsto Now I lower my fl ame t o tha t v ery 
smal~ lumino:.:s blue colour and get i t up t o e. s high t o tm roof as 
posslble and work across the face and if there is any i nflammable 
gas it forms Dnother blue or a lighte r blue ha lo at the t on of this 
flame and if the r e is no gas there, ther e is no al t e r a tion"' t o your 
flame . From t hen I lov1e r it - u 
~~~e lvitness appears to mean 1! I lowor the lamp''' ?as he t hen goe s on 
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nand I will raise my flame till it is just a lj_ ttle bit below 
normal height and the orange flame, then I will hold my hand 
underneath it and lower it in to the Bottom. If there is any 
inflammable ga s in that area it will s~ill flame on my light 
and if there is no inflammable ga s there and wha t I ca ll black 
damp is there it will t end to take your light out, to extinguish 
your light, and tha t is the usual way that I test. 11 

He says: 

u While I am t e sting at the top I hav e the vents open from 
the top and my light ha s this, and while I am testing for the 
bottom you can screw the ring around and have the vents open. 
It is a bout four or .five inches from the bottom of the lamp. 11 

He was asked: 
uQ. So the flame you used to detect the C02 you say is one tha t 
will reveal methane to you also?A. Yes. 

Q. Are you sure of tha t?A. I am positive of it. 

Q. You would not agree tha t you need the small fl~me in order 
to be able to see the c ap on this flame that ultimately forms 
there?A. No. The flame is reduced a little bit but it is nothing 
like the small flame . 

Q. Then you do not agree tha t by l eaving your flame at the 
same level to test for C02 you are placing yourself in a position 
where you could very easily miss the cap? n 

VJ.r. Reynolds said 11 Tha t is a false premise. He did not say 
when he wa s t e sting for C02 he left it a t the same level11 • 

11 We do not want any doubt about it but what you said was 
having tested for methane with the small flame you then turned 
it up to give you the flame which you were ultimately going to 
use to t e st for C02?A. Ye s, that is right. 

Q. You took tha t flame down to the floor?A. Yes. 

Q. You claim on that flame if there wore methane you would see it? 
A. Yes. 

Q. You would not accept a proposition that by using as a t es t 
for methane the same flame that you used to test for C02 you 
were placing yourself in a position where you could very easily 
miss the methane if it was ther e?A. No, I would not. 11 

That is the evidence from Mr. Stewart. 

Q. You will agree tha t is not how you w::>uld test for methane? 
A. Not how I would do it but it could be done tha t way. 

Q. It could be done?A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Sellers, the proposition that you have advanced, tha t the r e 
wa s a sudden rush of bottom ga s, a sudden flow of bottom ga s 
~nto the shunt after the t~st had been made involves this, does 
1t not, on that evidence, if I accept it 1 that in the space between 
s~y t en minutes and quarter of an hour arter the last test tha t 
ga~ came there?A. Ye s, well, I think if you study what I have 
~a1d a little closer you will find I sa id tha t, what you have 
JUst sa id, and I also indicated the possibility tha t you would 
have a fluctuation in the amount of ga s coming in and out of 
the shunt. There are two things that could happen in wha t I said: 
af t er all, if you ge t, as I indica ted, possibly say 300 cubic f ee t 
of CH4 coming through just for a short time obviously the average 
must be l e ss than what I quoted a s 56 and it could h ave been v ery 
much less and I did indicate also there is some possibility the 
flow could have even been r eversed. 
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Q. On your figureg there wa s, up to the time of a sudden rush, 
a constant flow of ga s - a make of some 57 cubic fe e t of methane 
in it. Is that the positi-on, or am I wrong? A. I IDuld have to 
look at it. 

Q. Would you look at it?A. Ye s, the November figur e s indica t e 
57 cubic fee t. 

Q. Tha t would be a sort of average figure which one would expect 
to obtain on the days before the fire ?A. Yes, on the figures, yes. 

Q. Your understanding of it is that the bulk of this make wa s 
from the goaf, wa s it?A. No, my understanding of it would be 
some 20 cubic f ee t of tha t would be coming from the miner pl ace 
and the rest f rom the goaf. 

Q. So you still allow, on your understandingt some 37 cubic 
feet from the goaf?A. Ye s, tha t is on those rigure s. 

Q. All of tha t would find itself ne ar the bra ttic e , would it not? 
Haven't you sa id on your tests tha t the othe r a irways were clear? 
.A. Ye s. 

Q. But this wa s found n ear the bra ttice in the shunt?A. Ye s. 

Q. So we are to a ssume on the days befor e the fire ther e wa s a 
constant make of about 37 cubic f ee t in the goaf concentr ating 
a t the bra ttice?A. Ye s. 

Q. We have been told on the day of t he fir e and t he day before 
t he fir e ther e wa s "tha t the deputy took to be black damp thar e . 
Would you say that if tha t bottom ga s, and the me thane were 
conta ined in that Illawarra bottom ga s, t ha t tha t should have 
been de t ected on t he deputy 1 s l amp?A. Hay I just have a minute 
to work it out? 

Q. Ye s. A. Ye s, it would beo 

Q. It should be?A. It would be de t ectable but it is r eaching 
the sta ge of getting difficult. 

Q. If these propositions ar e true must it not a lso be true t hat 
one of t he se two propositions ar e true , either the deputy did 
no t t e st for me t hane , or having t ested for me thane he did not 
f ind it because of a f ault in his t e st?A. No, I would not 
exactly say tha t is right, but those ar e possibilities. 

Q. They ar e strong possibilitie s?A. Ye s 1 but supposing on this 
occa sion, supposing this situa tion obta lned on tha t morning and 
the ga s was c oming through a t the r a t e you described and a t 
t he occ a sion, this wa s after great activity with t he shuttle c ars, 
ther e might not have been enough for him to find. You could 
still smell C02 in it, a s you can. 

Q. I want to r ead another pi ece of Hr. Stewart's evjd enc e . 
Perhaps you may be a ble to give a ssistanc e on t his. This is 
at p.ll2. He wa s a sked some questions about whether he had 
ever smelt a mixture of bottom ga s, tha t is on t he bottom of 
p.lll and he said, "Ye s, I have been shown bottom ga s". It 
goes on: 

uQ. Have you ever smelt the black damp in bottom ga s? 
A. I would say this smell or sensa tion I ge t wa s black damp. 

Q. You could smell black damp in bottom ga s?A. Ye s, you 
can smell the black damp but whe the r you can find the 
bottom ga s ther e or not i s another thing. 
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Q. Did you think when you smelt black damp you in f act 
might be smelling a mixture which constituted bottom ga s? 

A. Yes, I took the pre9antion of testing them an~ when I 
found no inflamma ble cap on the light I thought 1t would 
be black damp. 11 

Obviously he wa s r ef erring to wha t he did just befor e the fire. 
It is not wha t he had said originally about mer ely sme lling it 
and using the bleeder tube to ge t rid of it. 

uQ. Did you think wher e this bottom ga s might be coming from 
if it wer e bottom ga s?A. It could be coming f rom anywher e 
actua lly. It could be coming from the goaf ar ea . 

~. From t he goaf ar ea? A. Ye s. 

Q. Looking back do you think tha t is t he most probable ar ea 
from which it would co me ? A. Ye s, it would. 

Q. Did it strike you a t the time tha t it might be c oming 
fro m t he goaf ar ea ?A. No, I would not say it did strike 
me a t tha t time . 11 

Q. You say you ar e familiar with deputie s and their ability and 
so on. I wan t you to a s sume a deputy says "I can smell giS 
near a bra ttic e", a bra ttic9 which is a stopping t o a goaf. Wha t 
is your opinion a s to whe t her t hey would draw t he conclusion or 
a t l ea st c onsider the possibility tha t t he ga s wa s emanating from 
t he goaf?A. They would a l mo st be c erta in it wa s coming from 
the goaf. 

MR . McNALLY: Migh t I, arising from Your Honor's cross-examination, 
ask some que stions a t this stage? 

HIS HONOR: Yes. 

MR . McNALLY: I would have wi shed to have Mr. Stewart here had 
I known Your Honor wa s going to do this. 

HIS HONOR: This arose fr om wha t happened this morning. If you 
want Mr. Stewart f or any r ea son a t all you may do so. If you 
wan t to postpone your cross- examina tion till Mr. Stewart is h er e 
you may do that. 

MR. McNALLY: Q. I think this morning you demonstra t ed, or saw 
demonstra t ed ye ster day in any event, by Mr. Cambourn, the manner 
of de t ecting black damp and the manner of de t ecting Illawarra 
bot t orn ga s?A. Ye s. 

aft er 
Q. I s it f air to say/ t e sting a t the roof for methane one 
r educ es the light to a bout half f l ame and lowers t he light until 
the ga s is f ound on t he floor - noxious ga s?A. Ye s, tha t would 
be quite in order, y e s. 

Q. Assuming tha t noxious ga s wa s de t ectable upon the l amp and it 
wa s i n fact noxious ga s and not Illawarra bottom ga s wha t 
p~rc ~ntage of carbon dioxide 1 wha t minimum perc enta ge of carbon 
d1ox1de would be pre sent?A. And the l amp did not go out? 

Q. Assuming the l a mp wa s aff ected, a ssuming ther e is noxious ga s 
on t he floor and the l amp shows it, is it fair to say t ha t if 
the lamp shows it ther e must be carbon dioxide in exc e ss of 
1~ per oent?A. Oh ye s. 

Q. So tha t if the ga s wa s smelt and the l a mP wa s put on the floor 
ru:d wa s not affected, irre spective of wha t l amp you had on the 
l~gh~, you could a s sume ther e wa s l e ss t han l t per c ent carbon 
~lOXlde?A. No, I don 1 t think tha t i s wha t you a sked me befor e , 
lf you don't mind c l ea ring it up. 
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Q. Assuming one could smell noxious ga s or black damp on the 
floor of the shunt and a ssuming one sa t the lamp on the floor of 
the shunt - do you follow?A. Ye s~ 

Q. And the lamp wa s not affected - forgetting methane at the 
moment - and the l amp wa s not aff ected - could one a ssume there 
wa s less than 1~ per cent carbon dioxide ge tting in to the l amp? 
A. Yes, I wouldo 

Q. That in f act would be true, would it not?A. Yes. 

Q. Tha t may be either because the black damp that is in the 
shunt is in a less per centa ge - the carbon dioxide I am sorry -
is in a l e ss percenta ge than 1~ per c ent, or, alterna tively, 
it wa s so close to the floor tha t the lamp could not pick it up? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. If you were told, firstly, the se f acts: tha t the air free 
mixture of Illawarra bottom gas wa s as described by Mr. Donnegan, 
tha t is roughly a little more c arbon dioxide than me thane, if 
you wer e told a deputy went into a shunt and stood his light 
on the floor of the shunt with his light half down and noticed 
no effect a t all upon the light, what conclusion could be drawn? 
A. I would 6onclude it would not be a very big percentage of CH4. 

Q. It would in f act be l e ss than 1! p er c ent wher e the lamp is 
picking it up?Ae I would think it would be proba bly less than 
one per c ent. 

Q. On the ba sis t her e is more carbon dioxide than methane and 
there is less than 1 per cent carbon dioxide wher e the lamp would 
r egister I think it is f air to say a lot of deputies - I will 
withdraw tha t - it is f air to say one c annot be sure of testing 
an ar ea clo ser than five i nches from the floor?A. Well, it 
depends on the t echnique a After all, if you think ther e is gas 
ther e you will try and find a holeo 

Q. If a light wa s se t on the floor - ? A. It would have to 
come in the apperture s for the ga s p.rovided for it to come in. 
I have n ever mea sured it but it would be about four inche s. 

Q. So in t he ar ea above four inche s from the ground there would 
have to be, bearing in mind the p er~entage of oxygen present, 
grea t er than 1! per c ent carbon dioxide for a r egistra tion to 
be shown and 7 if one wa s to use the non-luminous flame great er 
than approximat ely one per c ent or Jl p er cent me thane?A. In 
tha t order, ye so 

Q. Assuming we accept tha t deputy Stewart went into the shunt, 
smelt noxious ga s, sa t his lamp on the ground, and f a iled to 
det ect it, f ailed t o de t ect either carbon dioxide or me thane, 
can we a ssume neither the methane nor c arbon dioxide could be 
de t ected?A. I would assume so. 

HIS HONOR: Is ther e evidence he sat his lamp on the floor? 

MR . McNALLY : I thought ther e wa so 

HIS HONOR: His own evidence says nothing at all about tha t. 

MR. LEE: He certainly did not say he put the lamp where he 
smelt, where he smelt black damp. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Can you imagine a deputy, having smelt black damp 
near the floor, sitting his lamp in it?A. It would h ave to be 
Very little for me to consider doing ito 

Q. Assuming he did not know the extent of it, and tha t he smelt 
i t, can you i magine him sitting his l a mp in it with the 
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possibility of his flame going out should it be more than hG 
guessed at?A. He would have to be very c areful beforehand to 
make sure he did not h ave t he percentage. 

MR. McNALLY: At p.lll there is evidence, it is the fifth line, 
nQ. You took tha t flame down to the floor?.A. Ye s.u 

MR. LEE: Tha t wa s general. 

HIS HONOR: He is not talking about wha t he did on this 
particular day, tha t is talking about the method he used. Tha t 
is pr ef aced by the f act tha t once he had been shown bottom ga s 
and he is describing how he t e sted for bottom ga s. It does not 
say it wa s on this day a t a ll. He does not mention using the 
l amp, he said he smelt it by ge tting down on his hands and knee s 
and waving the el ephant trunk. 

MR. McNALLY: A little lower down he is describing what he did 
on tha t day. 

HIS HON OR: "As I sa id, I could not ge t a detection on the 
light. Q. You thought ther e \va s sufficient black damp du-wn 
there to wave the elephant tube around?A. Ye s. 11 

In the first place he said nothing about the light. He was 
asked very carefully to describe actually wha t he did in his 
evidenc e in-chief. This piece about the light is somn thing 
quite new. 

MR. McNALLY: Wha t piece? 

HIS HONGR: What you have just r ead, or, what I have read out. 
11As I said, I could not get a de t ection on the light." That 
was in answer to the question, nyou say you got down on your 
hands and knees and smelt some ga s. Did you make a report on 
tha t ga s?n He said, tti could not ge t a de tection on the 
light". He had made no mention of the light before tha t 
excep t in t a lking generally a bout t e sting for bottom ga s in 
ot her pl a c es. 

MR. McNALLY: He has said he tested the face at p.llO: nQ. Did 
you t e st a t t he face a nd a t the fans and in the shunt in the 
same manner each time? A. I would say Ye s. Ye s. 11 Then he 
describes the method of t e sting. 

HIS HONOR : Then Mr. Lee subsequently asked him a number of 
questions a s to why he got down on his hands and knees. 
He sa id he used the light, but after he waved the e lephant trunk 
around. He then wen t round ~nd t es t ed in the shunt he had 
just clear ed, with his l amp, but did not find any gas, but he 
doe s not say he used it befor ehe wav ed the el ephant trunk a round. 

MR. McNALLY: 
appears: 

On p.l08 a little lower than the middle this 

11 Q. You t e sted for gas a t the fan area?A. At tha t bra ttic e 
stopping ther e or bra ttic e surround. Then I went straight 
ac r oss fr om there , tha t is in A h eading, in to the shuttle 
car shunt wher e the bleeder tube wa s ~~d I t e st ed on the 
right hand side first. 11 

HIS HON OR: But t hi s is an earlier t e st, he then go e s on t o t alk 
about t e sting just inby the cross sticks. The l as t t e st he did 
for gas on this occa sion befor e the fire wa s in the shunt. He 
said he went down on his hands and kn ee s, did this and wav ed the 
trunk around and t es t ed t hen with t he lamp and then went and 
?at down and the fire happened some t en minutes aft er. True 
1~ is on t he first occasion he wen t r ound this pl ace and t e sted 
Wlth a lamp, on his evidence . 
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MR. McNALLY: It is correct that is the first inspection, 
Your Honor. He ha s said he got down on his hands and knees 
and tes_ted the first time , he got down on his hands and knees 
and had a smell, but he has said he has tested. I am not 
clear if he tested before or not. 

HIS HONORg I thought Mr. Le e 's cross-examination showed he 
did not t e st with the lamp before he smelt. This is the method 
he said he adopted from time to time , he got down on his hands 
and knees, smelt it and he smelt wha t he thought was black damp, 
waves the trunk and ge ts rid of it and tests with his lamp and 
finds none theren It is this f ault - if you do it that way, 
if you do not use the l amp, you do not give yourself a chance 
of telling whether there is inflammable ga s there or not. That 
is the f ault. You ge t rid of it before you can tell. 

MR. McNALLY: Perhaps if one realised if a lamp failed to 
detect black damp in this mixture it would not detect methane 

HIS HONOR: That may be true. I don 1 t know about tha t. Is that 
what Mro Sellers says? Is that the effect of his evidence? 

Q. If the lamp would not detect black damp it would not detect 
me thane?Ao I did not say that. 

~ffi. McNALLY: Q. In this air fr ee mixture Mr. Donnegan found - ? 
A. Yes. 

Q. If a lamp failed to detect carbon dioxide due to the per­
cen tage of carbon dioxide preRent at the place where he t e sted 
it would not det ect the me thane because the carbon dioxide, being 
less than 1~ per c en t, the methane must necessarily be less than 
approximately one per cent?A. No, if you had a mixture like that 
you could faintly see the cap at one per cent. If your lamp 
was in a free mixture and not on the floor you could detect 
one per cent in tha t you could aetually see the cap just very 
very slightly. 

Q. If the re is less than l~ per cent carbon dioxide present -
this is the air fr ee mixture?A. It is ge tting under one per cent. 

Q. The odds are it would be less than one per cent methane?A. Yes. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Does not that depend on the type of mixture?A. He 
did qualify it with the percentage and as ! said - as you said -
on the proportions as found by Mr. Donnegan - you will keep in 
mind that is wha t you asked- Mr. Donnegan's pe rcentages-

HIS HONOR: Mr. HcNally asked you. I didntt ask you. 

MR. McNALLY~ Your Honor apprec:ia tes the lamp won 1 t detect 
c~rbon dioxide of less than 1~ per cent and on this particular 
m1xture, if you have got l~ per cent carbon dioxide I am 
suggesting to Mr. Sellers one per cent - you are going to have 
less than one per cent --

HIS HONOR: That may be, if you used the lamp~ 

MR. McNALLY: This m~st be cleared up. Mr. Stewart has a 
r egular practice of finishing work at 4 o'clock ·--

HIS HONOR: I will hear Mr. Stewart tomorrow morning. 

MR. McNALLY: May arrangements be made t o have him here first 
thing in the morning? 

HIS HONOR: Yeso 

927o Ge Sellers, xx. 



MRa LEE: Q. If you can smell black damp does that indicate 
a quantity of usually more than one per cent C02?A. Yes. 

Q. In fact it usually indicates a quantity of - -
say three or four per cent. 

A. I would 

Q. In other words, if you can smell it you should be able to 
get it on your lamp?A. You should find the flame will be 
reduced. 

Q. Is it a usual thing to your knowledge for a deputy to go 
down on his hands and knees at a particular point and smell 
without any warning or knowledge or suspicion there is some­
thing a t that point?A. Well it is, I can assure you, quite 
common for a deputy to get right down as far as he can to 
detect Illawarra bottom gas. 

Q. Where have you seen that happen?A. All the "Swillies11 
-

keep in mind these swillies are not very big sometimes and there 
may be a few inches of gas in there. 

Q. You are referring to many years ago, the things you have seen? 
A. Yes. 

Q. In what circumstance in this mine would you hae thought the 
deputy would go down on his hands and knees and start sniffing 
around at the floor?A.All I can say is I have done it myself but 
I just could not put myself in the place of Mr. Stewart. 

HIS HONOR: Q. I suppose you migh~hink at some time the gas was 
emanating from a particular area, for ins t ance, underneath the 
brattice?A. Yeso 

Q. If you started off by saying, ui don 1 t think the gas is 
coming from that area 11 you would hardly get dom on your hands 
and knees?A. On the reverse side of the picture I have on many 
occasions climbed up in a cavity in the roof to smell what is 
there. 

Q. You have had a cavity there. Can you picture a deputy looking 
at a place that has been already established for some days -
the brattice in the shunt?A. The sense of smell is one of the 
things tha t is used in mining practice. I could not suggest in 
any way that deputy Stewart would not get down on his hands 
and knees. 

Q. Would not you think he would do it because he thought there 
may be something coming down from under the brattice?A. I think 
he would go down for the purpose of ~inding out. 

Q. If he says he does not even think it is coming from under 
the brattice one has to wonder why he did it?A, You must wonder 
always, yes. 

MR. LEE: Q. Would you look at the certificate of analysis that 
is annexed to the report, the first one?A. This is the one with 
four items on? 

Q. No, samples 1 to 6, headed ncertificate of Analysis. 
Confidential, Mine Air samples -15.11.65. n Do you see that? 
A. I have seen it, yes. 

Q. You have looked at it, I suppose?A. Yes, 

Q. I will take you through some little asp·ects?A. Yes, certainly. 

Q. You will observe the first sample, Sample Noo 1, showed 
oxygen 21.3 per cent?A. Yes. 
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Q. You see that?A. Yes~ 

Q. I suppose that sta_rtles you a bit, does it?A. Oh well 
normally we take it as 20490 

Q. But this analyst got 21~3 per cent. A. Ye s. 

Q. The maximum oxygen you can have in the ordinary atmosphere 
is 20.9?A. It doesn't startle me. 

Q. It indicates, shall we sayl an error on the part of the 
analyst?A. Well I think you w ll find in the type of apparatus 
you have there is an error always. You cannot ge t perfection 
and I think this chap ha s been most precise in recording the 
finding and I think is to be highly commended for it. 

Q. Let's f ace it, to find 21.3 per cent as the oxygen content 
is quite impossible, isn't it?A. Under normal circumstanc e s, 
yes. 

Q. In these circumstances it was quite impossible to have found 
21.3 per cent oxygen when the maximum would be 20.93 --

MR. REYNOLDS: Do you think it is quite fair to attack this 
witness? 

MRo LEE: If he wants to be vague I will attack him. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Do you think it is quite fair to a ttack this 
wi tness about somebody else 1 s findings in this way? If you 
think it is fair, you do it. 

MR. LEE: I will, certainly. This man ha s come forward and put 
f orward a theory. I asked him if he r ead this and h e agr eed 
with me the figure was wrong and I thought he wa s trying to 
suggest there could be ways of justifying it. I am putting it 
to him quite bluntly there wa s an error and an obvious error 
on the part of the analyst. 

Q. Isn 1 t ther e an answer Ye s or No to tha t?A. Well, a s I sa id 
to you this gentleman has r ecorded his error. He has made a 
proper r ecord of wha t he found. 

Q. It is a record of an error?A. It is a record of an analysis 
tha t is not one hundred per cent correct. 

Q. Does it simply record an error?A~ Well, it is not exactly right. 

Q. You ar e an expert on the matt er of composition~ gases?A. More 
or less, some ga se s. 

Q. Have a look a t Sample 2. It shows an oxygen content of 
21.2 per cent, which cannot be right. Do you agree with tha t? 
A. Yes, go on --

Q. Tha t is so, isn 1 t it?A. Well, I must agree tha t the perc en t a ge 
of oxygen is unduly high. 

Q. Have a look at Sample 3 wher e the oxygen content is shown a s 
20o6 per cent?A. Ye s. 

Q. Tha~ sample, Noo 3, showing 20.6 per c ent should, with t te 
other ltems shown, the C02 and the Cf!4 with an air content, make 
lOO per cent?As Tha t is quite right, yes. 

Qs It would be a s imple matter for you to work out tha t 20. 6 
oxygen is the equivalent of 98.4 per c ent air. You could do 
tha t?A. I believe I could do wha t you ar e suggesting, I believe 
so, yes . 
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Q. Let us assume - you may check it if you wish?A. I have no 
intention of doing soo 

Q. That 20o6 of oxygen equals 98o4 per cent air. We have to 
add to tha t lo5 per cent C02 and o9 per cent CH4 and we have a 
figure which is over 100 per cent?Ao Yes~ 

Qo That would indicate that that analyst was inaccurate in some 
way?A. It could. 

Q. If it was accurate you would get a sum total which could only 
come to 100 per cento Is that not aorrect?A. That is quite 
correcto 

Qo If you take sample No~ 4 - take Sample 5 - the oxygen content 
is 20o8 per cento You could equally work out whether that oxygen 
content gave an air content of 99e4 per cento You could check 
me on that~ given the time?A. Yeso 

Q. If it be 99.4 per cent then we have to add to it 1.4 per cent 
plus Oo78 per cent and we will ge t over 100 per cent again. 
That is a simple calculation?Ao It appears to be right, what you 
sayo 

Q. So once again we would think in respect of Sample 5, there 
was an error somewhereo Would that be the conclusion?A. You 
could say that~ 

Q. With some confidence?A. Yoso 

Q. With regard to Sample Noe 6 the oxygen content is 20.9 per 
cent and you could quickly ascertain whether I am correct in 
saying tha t gives you 99o8 per cent airo You cculd check me 
on that?A. Yeso 

Q.And if my figure is correct all that we have left to make up 
a composition of lOO per cent would be Oo2 per cent?A. It could 
be righto 

Q. 99o8 to 100 per cent is ~2 per cent? is it not? A. Well, it 
appears to bo right, without working it outo 

Qo What the analyst has done is not have something which totals 
.2 per cent but he has added lo6 per cent and Oo67 per cent 

and once again we have over lOOo Right?A. Could be right. 

Q. It is right 3 isnTt it?Ao As I have said, I have not checked it. 

Q. You just attached this to the report?A. No I don't. 

Q. May I go to your next certificate of analysis. Do you 
agree that as far as the samples of the findings taken there are 
concerned they indicate the gas found was gas which was inflammable 
in air?Ao This one~ yes~ quite right~ 

Q. I do not put this any further than this at this poillt: You 
agree that the gas you took a sample of was inflammable gas? 
A. Yeso 

Q. You heard Mro Donnegan say his samples gave him the conclusion 
they were inflammable?A. Yeso 

Q. Your samples were taken ~ and I think this is covered by the 
certificate of analysis~ at the miner face?~. About 12~ yards 
back in the miner place~ 

Q. Not in the shunt?A~ Noo 

Q. The samples covered by the certificate of analysis dated 
2?th January 1966 and signed by Mro Jephcott were taken in the 
IDlner place?Ati That is ~Oo 
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Q. You would agree, from your knowledge, you can get a slight 
variation in the composition of bottom ga s from place to place? 
A. Ye s, I would agree with tha t - slight. 

Q. You appreciate tha t certific a t e ther e do e s indicate a slightly 
different cowposition of ga s than tha t found by Mr. Donnegan? 
A. No, I would agree tha t it shows a very marked difference. 

Q. He got his from the goaf?A. Yes. 

Q. You got yours from the miner place?A. Ye s. 

Q. Do you attach any significance to the marked difference?A. I 
do. 

Q. What significance?A. If you know the ga s from the goaf a s 
found by Mr. Donnegan was compara tively richer in CH4 --

Q. It was more inflammable?A. Tha t is so - it indicates there is 
some r ea son for tha t difference. 

Q. I want to take you to your sketch plan, the section, marked 
4la. A. I have it. 

Q. This was your work, was it not?A. Ye s, the original was mineo 

HIS HONOR: I do not think you are looking a t 4la? 

WITNESS: I beg your pardon, the section? 

MR. LEE: Ye s. 

Q. (Approaches large map on floor of Court) I want to make clEa r 
what you did here. What you did was to take a section as 
(demonstra tes) A. No. 

Q. As if you were standing where?A, No, the section is drawn in 
a line down the middle heading. 

Q. Down B?A. Ye s. 

Q. Looking from C heading?A. Ye s, you could say looking from 
tha t way, yes. 

Q. I want to be sure, A. Yes, that is right. 

Q. I want to be sure that I have got a proper understanding of 
your plan. A. Yes. 

Q. If you stood in C heading and looked forward you would take 
the section which you took?A. That is quite right. 

Q. Your drawing shows a ga s line coming - (demonstrates) A. That 
is so, 107 f eet. 

Q. You took the slope from B heading down?A. That is right. 

Q. What your section does not show at all, of course, is the 
slope from A heading down to the extension to No. 2 cut-through 
and the area marked Goaf is quite a deal gre a ter than the s1ope 
along B heading towards the goaf. Firstly, is tha t not a 
correct proposition?A. I would believe the grade is steeper. 

Q. Do you want to check your contour plan?A. Yes, there would 
not be very much difference in level between the inby end of 
B he ading and where the miner is. 

Q. On your contour plan it shows a rall from B heading of some­
thing in the order of 110 down to 80 to wher e the miner was? 
A. Would you say tha t again please? 
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Q·. It shows a fall from some thing in the order of 110 down to 
about 80 at the miner?A. From A h eading down to the miner. 

Q. Away from B heading?A. Yes, it is a little more. 

Q. If we follow the contour line across we can see the area 
which is shaded and which we know to be the goaf would also 
show a fall downwards from B heading towards the end of the 
goaf out in line with the end of the extension of two cut-through, 
of a similar order?A. About the same order. 

Q. The only f all your ga s line is conc erned with on your sketch 
is the f a ll along B heading out towards t he goaf?A. Tha t is a ll 
my section shows. 

Q. The effect of the topography of tha t ar ea is if any ga s wa s 
l ikely to be anywher e it wa s likely t o be in the ar ea down fr om 
B heading in the go af out towards a line in line with the 
extension of 2 cut-through?A. In other words it would be on 
the l eft - tha t side of the district on the plan? 

Q. Looking a t it on t he top side of the plan. A. I would sny 
t he grea t e st concentra tion of ga se s would be in the deepest parts. 
Would tha t de scribe it to you? 

Q. Tha t is sa tisfactory. A. Ye so 

Q. Just t o understand your section plan, you nnve shown a ga s 
level a t B heading?A. Ye s. 

Q. I t could well be tha t tha t ga s l evel is wrong?A. No. 

Q. Tha t it wa s conside r ably further back doWl t he goaf?A. No, I 
would not agr ee . Perhaps we are t a lking a t cross purpose s 
but on wha t you have sa id I could not agr ee with you. Perhaps 
you might like to nmke it a little clear er? 
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~.Did you find gas at B heading in the goaf? A. I found a . 
very small amount of gas on the left ha.nl side of the headlng 
as far a s I could get in at the goaf at that po int, on the floor . 

Q.If we go bock into the goaf in the direction I have indicated 
towards a line in line with the end of No .2 cu t - through, the 
fact is t hat that is >,vhere we might expect bottom ga s to be? 
That is the fir s t proposition , isn 1 t it? A. We would expect 
it to be below that level of 170 feet. 

Q.Telow that? A.Yes. 

Q.Indeed, the position could be of course - I suggest you do 
no t know - that the gas level may have only come up to A heading? 
A.vJould you mind r epe<J. ting that, Mr .Lee, because it doem 1 t sort 
of make sense? 

Q. I 1tri thdraw it. There is no doub t in your mind t 1:R t there was 
bottom gas in the goaf? A. Ye s. 

Q. You accept that?A. Yes . 

Q.And we are going to find it on t he bottom? A. Yes. 

Q. And in the deepest places? A. That is so. 

Q. It could well be then that t he area of gas discove-red in the 
goaf may only have extended up the incline to A heading? That 
is only a proposition I am putting to you as a possibility ? A. 
In other words , there might not have been any gas in trn goaf at 
all , is that 1vhat you are saying? 

Q. No , not at all?A. Well , that is t he \vay I read your question. 

Q.Looking at the lay of the l and and the contours of the g oaf, 
to make it clear , do you say that it had to reach up , any 
gas level had to reach up to B heading? I s that what you al"e 
saying? A. Yes , to just below B heading , it would be 170 feet 
level . 

Q.Just below B heading? A. Yes. 

Q. How fa::- belO\•T B heading and hm·r close to A te ading? A. Well , 
it could be ten feet , perhaps . 

Q. Ten feet? A. Yes . 

Cl. It may not have reached up to B heading? A. It didn 1 t reach 
up to B heading , at its j unction with the goaf . 

c;.. But then that gas level means that we have ga s from that 
point back d011ln through the goaf passing the shunt in A heading? 
A. That is quite right. 

Q.And the extreme likelihood is of course that the gas 1v-ould be 
continually coming through the c:rattice in A Heading?A. That is so . 

Q. That is the extreme likelihood of any position -vre may care to 
take ? A. Very likely . 

Q. And is it not significant in your mind that when this area \vas 
first set up , before the brattice was put there , there was 
detec ted over a period of two days black damp, so the depu ties say 
~d thought, a t t he intersec tion of the cut- through and A heading· 
~s that not a significant fact in your mind no1v? A. At the ' 
Junction of .A heading and the goaf? 

Q. And the cut-through, in effec t the shunt area?a.That is right , ye~ 
932. G.Seller s,xx. 



Q.You see, at the time before the brattice went up , ga s was found 
i; what we now k.nmv to be the shunt area at that point, on 2nd 
and 3rd November? A. Before the brattice went~? 

Q.Before the brattice went up. A.Yes. 

Q,And then the brattice goes up, is that right? A. Would you 
just tell me what type of gas? 

Q. Well , the deputies say black damp , noxious gas? A. That is 
before the brattice screen went up? 

Q.Yes. Now, before the brattice screen went up, would you 
agree that that would have the tendency to contain any gas in 
the shunt that was coming from the goaf? A. Yes. 

'Q.And so it would be a reasonable proposition, I think you would 
agree, that merely because.of the ~act, if it be the ~act, that 
the shunt was clear from t1me to tlille after the brat t1ce was put 
up would be no indication at all as to what might be behind the 
brattice? A.Very little, Iwould say. 

Q.. Novr , the gas that was found there on 2nd and 3rd Novenb er and 
which was thought to be black damp, you would agree in all 
probability came out of the goaf? A. Yes. 

Q,So that at that point of time on 2nd end 3rd November , some gas 
had come out of the goaf . In the light of al l that you know, 
do you not think that it is almost certain that from 2nd November 
gas was continually coming from the goaf into the shunt area? A. 
What type of gas, would you be precise? 

Q.Well , you put ru1y type on it that 
vlas almost a certainty that gas was 
Yes, any gas made in the goaf 1.-.rould 
shunt. 

may: fit the proposition that it 
coming into the shunt? A. 

tend to come out into the 

Q.Just to come back to your section plan on one point , you have 
suggested to His Honor that if there was a fall in barometric 
pressure, the expansion would manifest itself equally at A, B and 
C headings? A. That is so. 

Q.Now that is not quite right,is it? A. In a still condition, yes, 
that would be reasonably correct. 

Q.In the first place , there was a brattice in C heading?A.Yes. 

'Q,\vhich you '"ould agree would tend to stop - A. Yes, I understand 
it was not a very good one. 

Q,It was not a very good one but it would tend to hold back? A.Yes, 
that is right. 

~.In B heading there was no brattice? A.That is right. 

Q.In A heading there was ~ brat tice? A.Ye~ 

Q.A heading is the last point bet~.-reen C aJld A? A.That is so, 

Q.so.that there is an excellent chance of the gas coming m tin A 
~ea~1n~ , t~at is the first thing. There is a vary good chance , 
lf 1t 1s h1gh enough, of the gas getting out into B heading? A.Not 
under the conditicn s as I see them. 

Q.You rather suggested that air vrould come down B he:.ding? A. Yes, 
almost exclusively. 
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Q.I will come to that in a moment. Just as sume for the moment 
that it is not air but gas, you see , and it is going to get out 
at points c, B and A? A.Yes. 

Q
0
You would agree A is an ideal place for it to come out? h .Yes, 

Q.B is a bett er place for it to come out than c, more favourable? 
A.It is closer to the body of gas ,yes. 

~.And then if it comes in along B it then gets cnught up in the 
airway along the current,alon:~ the cut-through? A. This is assumpt­
ion of course? 

Q•Yes, this is assumption. A.Yes. 

Q.And then it could be taken out of tho shunt or out of B? A.Yes, 
if it did come up B it would go into the general body of the 
air current. 

Q. You of course have put for.,.rard a the ory that it \-rould be mostly 
air that would come out of B and c? A. Yos. 

Q.I do not want to spend too much time on this because in my 
view it is not extremely germane, but it is mE?re ly to put M 
opposite viewpoint and then leave it at that. You assumed from 
your ovm deter mination of what the goaf might look liko and how 
the roof might fall and various other factors that it would be mostly 
air that would come out; is that so? A. That is so. 

Q.If your assumption on those matters is not correct then your 
conclusion that mostly air would come out is also not correct? A. 
I think that would be a f air statement. 

Q.I do not propose to take it any further, Hr. Sellers, but to 
bring out it was assumption on which you made that? A. I beg your 
pardon , it was n ot assumption. I got up on the rock and tested it. 
I found there vras no gas high up in the goaf but naturally I could 
not ge t up and -

Q.Look, you have d.ravrn a picture there of fallen rock and so forth? 
A., Ye s " 

Q.itJhich I GJ.'l sugge sting to you is to a large extent pure speculaticn 
rs not that a fair proposition ?A.I vlould not think so. I think it 
is r e asonably correct. 

'4. And how far did you go into the goaf? A.Not far. I went right 
along to No .4 cut through. 

~. I will leave it at that. Before I leave this question of the 
topography and the level of gas you yourself concluded that there 
cou.ld be a level of gas four feet up behind the brattice; that is 
so, is it not? ..:'o..That is so, yes. 

Q.Al_ld that level of four feet vras one which you arrived at by 
yar1ous calculations as to the quantity bf gas that might be ther e ? 
A.No. I arrived at that by virtue of the level of gas in the goaf 
and I assumed that under the comparatively still conditions it 
would have that level right through. 

Q~Of course it is fair to say that it might have been less? A. It 
IDlght have been less. 

Q.It might have been less? A.Yos. 

Q.But the more fact that it was less would not mean that it still 
could not get round the outside of the brattice into the shunt? A. 
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Q,Indoed I think the whole conclusion imp~icit in w~at you 
havo said is that if there was <i:lY gas bulld- up '9 e hlnd that 
bratt ic e , it would find its way int o the shunt? A. That is right . 

HR . , REYN OLDS ~ Only if it \<Ja.S be low 103 ASL , I think that is what 
he s a id . 

MR . LEE ~ Yes , that i s true . 

Q.Coming back t o yo11r r ep ort, yotJ_r sai~ at p . 21 of .y our stater:1e nt, 
whon you wor e talking ab out the rover smg of the ulrvJays -
do you remember? A. Yes . 

,Q,You said 11 The gases be ing met in the district wer e h-Oavier than 
air." Fr om whe r e did yo u ge t that informa ti e>n? A. V./ell ,by till 
proportions . 

Q. BY the which? A. Holl , by the gas es being mst as analysed , 
as found on the analysis . 

Q.Wha t you a r e saying is that by looking back on it and being 
aware tha t bottom gas was thtJ r e - is that co rr ect ? A. Ye s, 
i.J"i th the knm.rledg e . 

Q.With the knowl edge we have now? A. Yes, 

Q, Then according t o yotJ_ the a irivay system was going to carry the 
ho~vier-than-air gas in the right dir e ction? A. That is so , 

Q,You did n ot maan to suggest that 
grtso s that wer e heavier than air? 
not really tell whethe r the me thod 
ycu rself saw it? 1·i . That is so . 

the management had only met 
You also said. that you could 
was good or bad unle s s ym 

Q. I note , hov.reve r , tha t you did c onclude that the manageme nt ivas 
forco d t o make a variat ion from the syst om of ble ed e r tunnels? A. 
That is my conclusion from what I -

Q,You havn taken tho view that the management ~ on the e vidence you 
have hear d , wa s forcod t o make ihLs varia tion? A. And of acc ount 
of that o.nd tte geolo~ ical rond.ition that I <'J.sstimod would have 
appertaine d to the dis trict . 

~. Le aving as i de roof conditions, would you agree it would have 
been de sirable for the bleed tunnel syst em to have been rontinued on 
in this ur oa? A, Yes , if I may call it the drainage tunnel, the 
bleed tunnel , 

5IS HONOR ~ Q.What turu1el do you call it? A. The drainage tunnel . 
Bl oed is not a vory good t erm and ono I have never hoard be for e 
u.se d . 

Q. Never bofore this Inquiry? A. Nove r bu far G this Inquiry . 

Q, Yo u can talco it it came from some witne s s? A. I think it is a. 
V8r y unf ort unat e t s r m. 

'Q.Becauso \<JG have a bleed tub e and a. bleed tunnel ? A. Yos, I think 
it i s most unfor tunate , 

Q. A.nd an ol ephant ' s tr unk ? A. Ye s . 

~lR .LEE ~ Q. I think you agr ee the r e can be no qu; stion that the 
bleed tunnol syst em - I \<rill have to stick to it ? 1.ve have had it 
nou for 17 days - put in could g ive riso ,1nd a chlove e ffective 
ventilation in this area ? A. It could , yes . 

Q, I mean , thor e has been a suggestion , you se a , tha t c ert a in proble rrB 
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still arise with the bleed tunnel v.rhen you are taking out in 
this fashion , but you would agree with me, would you not , that 
provided you had your eye on ventilation you could overcome 
any of the problems of fu e goaf gases coming for a short spac e of 
time into the working area? A. Do y"ou mean by virtue of tho so ­
called bloed.- tunnel? 

.No , I have not put my que stion clearly . Assume you ha~ a blood 
tunnel ~ You vlill still have t o keep an e y e to ventilation t o 
ensure that the ventilation that goos through the system still 
affectively dilutes any gases that come fr om t he goaf? A. That is 
one of the things which y o u must d o al1r1ays . constant vigilance . 

Q. • .A.Ild thor e is nothing new about that pr oposition? i:~ . No . 

Q. A.rld in this c a se here , I think y ou say that the departure f r an 
thG bleed. tunne l syst em had. nothing to do wi th the i gnition of g ns? 
A. No , my opinion is that it didn't . 

Q. I do rot wan t to t ransgress on the matters His Honor has put t o 
you but you 1.v:ill agree with me, will you rot , that had till s y stem 
as or iginally devised by the company been c ontinued and no. ll not 
t aken out be f or e the ble e d wa s put into it , by simpl y kGep j_ng an 
eyo to v entilation you would h avo had. no problems i n drivin g that 
bleed.? .a .• vJell , that is not n e c es sarily corre ct . That WJLJ.ld be 
a normal oxpoctancy, but it is n ot neces sa~ily correct . 

Q. Just leaving out "')- normal expe ctancy , prov iding you drive in 
your bleed t wo p illar l engths ba ck from the goaf and you have got 
your othe r bleed from that goaf coming dovln and into your 
r oturn , ventilation, adequate ventilation, can overc orno ar1y 
lJDbloms? A. That is true , but by the same t oken you c ould , using 
that , take tho c oal out safely . 

Q.Using this system? A. You could , provide d y ou did n ot h avo tho 
brat tice th0re . 

Q. You may be quite right , JVJ.l' . Sellor s - A. And if y o u knew 
inflwnmablo gas was thor e you could still do it . Th e question 
is one of de tection, .1!- . Lee . It is not - it is the danger that you 
don 1 t know is the r e that is the on e yo u ha ve go t t o f ear . 

Q. And the one you have to legislate agai n st?A. Yes. 

HIS HON OR: Q. vlhat is that ? A. The dange r you don ' t know :is ther o 
is the one yo u must f ear . 

HR . LEE~ Q. It is the ore tha t y ou arrange thi n g s - A. You try t o 
o liminat e ito 

~.With that danger v ery much in mind?A. Yos . 

Q. This par ticular mine, the Bulli mine , is in fac t knov.rn a s a 
gassy mine? is it not? A. ~ v.Jell , in accordance with the terms of 
the ~et , it is a gassy mine . 

Q. . But apar t from in accordance vli th the t e rm; of the Act , it is 
s~oken about, I sugge st gene rally, as a mine with gas in it, 
-vnth a r eal significanc e; in the expre ssion ugas in i t 11 ? A. I would 
not have any r eason to say that it vlould be gassie r than any 
other mine that is working in the Bulli Seam. 

C4. You knov.r the se things , I a.m sure - Bulli Seam stretches from 
Wher e ? Hetropolitan dmvn to Appin , :is it? A·. Well , from Hetropolitan 
to Mount Kembla e 

Q. To Mount Kembla? Ao Yes . 
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QoAnd. I suggest to y ou the soo.m all the way througp shows 
inflammabJe gas? . ."\.oYes, that is SO o 

~ . wd it is no secret? A. No, it is well known . 

Q.And it would not be right that Bulli mine up here is called 
"tho old ga someter", would it? Havo you eve r heard that 
expr e ssion? .A~I have n ov or h oard. it, Hr . Lee . It is the first time 
in my hi s t or y , I c cJ.n assur e you.::~ 

Q. But it is common knowledge that t re Bulli Sea m throughout its 
l •. mgth produces infJamma'ole gas ? A. That is so,yes . 

Q.And you would. agree that in a.Yly one mino, to assumo that 
because in a particular district or panel you had not struck 
or detected - call it what you like - infl8ll1Inable gas , it would 
be most unwise to assumo that you would. not got it ther o ? A. 
It would be most unwise to assumo you are not going to ge t 
inflammable gas in any mine r egardless cf where it is. I just 
would not put that to anyone . If you wore ge tting Co2 in 
a mine for all its history, you would still always want to be 
sur a you ar e not getting inflammable gQs . 

Q.Coming back to this syst em which ha s beon:.1n operation hero , 
this bratt:ic e and the sot up in the shunt: Would you say in your 
opinion that that could reasonably bo conceived as effective or 
safe with inflammable ga s pr e sent in the mine? A. With inflammable 
gns pr e sent? 

q.Ye s . A.Do you mear1 tho d istrict or the mino? ThB distri et , 
do you , with inflammable gas in the 8 Right district? 

Q. Yes . A. No, I would m t favour that at all . 

Q.&1d of course , going ba ck to t he pr opos i tion I put to you n 
r ow momonts ago , anybody working in Bulli mina , the person in 
charge c onc erned with gas, vro uld be ex pected to as surnc ti1at 
al t ho ugh inflammabl e gas might n ot have b oen found in a par ticular 
dist rict or panel , nonetheless it could c ome ther e ? A. I would 
t h j_nk so . 

Q." So. that dS f ar as the set up in this colliery on tho 9 th Novemb or 
is concerne d , this ventilation system was one which could only 
be r egarded as being safe against noxiru s gas? J-\. . In my ostimat ion, 
ye s. 

Q. In yo ur e stimation? ~. Yoso 

·rJ. 1\nd even thGn I think you would agree that it was running a 
risk that a quantity of noxious gas might c ome OJ. t \vhich coLlld m t 
be handled by the v entilation syst em? A. A quantity of noxious gas 
- no, I would not think that e 

Q.vJoll , just take the situation as known to all be fora the fir e .. 
It was known that the r o \<ras noxious gas . L);o you agree with 
t hat? A. Ye s • 

q~rt was thought that it would be coming fr om tho "? gc:a I . A. Yes .. 

Q. . It was n ot known what quantity of gas -vra s in the goaf? h .• That 
is so . 

Q. And it was not knovrn how much WO illd come out of tho goaf?A. No . 

Cl.. In that situation, to rely up on this set up even as e ffoctive 
and safe.in noxio ~s gas conditions assume d , I s uggest to you 
tha t noxlo us gns ln quantities that the v entilation system cbuld 
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handle would be the only quantities tha t would come out; that 
assumption wa s made? A.I LW afr aid I will have to ask you to put 
that again, Mr .Lee . (Last question r ead by Court Report or ) 

Q.Do you und erst and that? A. Well , to be perf ec tly honest, I am 
sorry, I don 1 t, I a.m afraid. 

Q. I will put it another way - A. It c oul d mean such a lot of things. 

Q:.This system was which permitted nod..ous gas to escape int o the 
shunt ar oa; yo u have t old us that? A. Yesl 

Q. And the quantity t hat woul d c ome in of course was ~1 inde termina te 
quantity? A. That is so ,yos. 

Q.And the system of locking off or storing up the gas was the 
fea tur e , the e ssential f eature which mado it impossible for any­
body t o k 1ow what mi ght come int o the shunt in the way of quantity? 
A.Woll, there would be a limit t o what could come in the shunt. 

HIS HONOR : Q. You would not know what the limit was, what might 
come at a par ticular timo ? A. Well, I think if you look at it 
closely on t he f igure s I have quot ed you will find you have a 
certain amount of CH4 and o. cer tain amount of C02 and the balance 
which was ther e , -vrhich <l20Uld be about 5o% - that in effect could 
be the leak of air on an aver age , the leak o~ air:-gas mix~ure 
on an average . I would suggest to you that lf thls quantlty be­
came greater than that , the l evel of the gas would build up 
and it would c ome back up B heading. 

MR .LEE: Q.Lot me take s ome of your figures on this matter . I think 
you agreed in answer to His Honor that there was a possible make 
at the shunt of about 35 cubic f ee t per minute . That is allowing 
fo r y~ur 20 feet at the f ace ? A. Ye s. 

Q. 0n tho gas r e turns ? A.Yes . 

Q.Of that 35 cubic fe e t pe r minute , tha t wa s methane? A.Near 
enough, yes. 

Q, How much might we expect in t he way of carb on dioxid e ? A.Wcll, 
it depends on t he proporticn s. I would expect that early in the 
stage s of th is se t up ther e 1.vould be more than the 58/40 ratio 
as indicated by the analysis t a J<cn. 

Q.Let us t ake your a...11alysis which was r oughly two to one ? A. 
Two or 2.2 to 1. 

Q.so that would be round a bout 30 me thane coming in and -vre might 
ha ve 70 C02?A.Ye s. 

~.And 70 c oming in a minute would require effective ventilation 
to get rid of it? A.Yes. 

~.And if it was allowed to build up it could be highly dangerous? 
o':l nod your head ; are you agree ing? A. If it was allowed to 

bu1l d up beyond a certain figure, ye s - all gases ar e dangerous. 

Q.Allowed to build up over an hour? A. In the shunt, 1vi thcu t be ing 
removed? 

9•Yes. You get about 47000 cubic fe a t pe r minute of carbon dioxide 
1n t~Gr e , would you rot? A. Yes. If there is no way of taking it 
out 1t would build up . · 

Q.You made soma r ef er ence t o thG fact that the presence of faults 
~r dyk~s had s ome connection with bottom gas~ Did you not say that? 
·~n t~lnk I made ref erorc e that it had s om o r 6l at i onship to the 

Gml.,slon of gas and possibly that would a pply t o bottom g.:1s in o. 
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Q.I s ee,there c ould be a direct connoction betwe en one a spect and 
the other, but I want to ge t clear in my mind: Is that 1Jl at you 
did say, whe ther you have indicated that this particular a r ea 
\vas one where you might have expected to get bottom gn.s because 
of its geologica l s ot up? A. Yes. I agree with that assumption , 
yes. 

Q. Now will you agree with fiE-) that it is common kmwle dge amongst 
those in the mining community tha t near faults, the c oncentra tions 
of methane can bo richer than elsewher e ? A. I think I vrould. tend. 
to agree with that, yes. 

Q.And I suppose you know Mr .Hargroaves~ the senior l octur er 
in Mining at the University of Sydney. A.I do knmv Mr.Ha rgre nve s. 

Q.I just put the proposition this way to make it quite clear: 
it is well know , is it nmt, that when you are n ear a fault ym 
ar e likely to get the inflammable gas in gr '--atG r quantitie s tmn 
whon you ar c n o t in that par ticular a.roa? A.That is g en erally a 
rule, ye s - not always right, but generally. 

Q. No, but it is s omething that you would have th oug ht the 
management o f a m~ne would bo aware of? A.I think thoy aro,yes. 

Q. Now is it your view that when wo1•king in this particular area 
then , it v1as r ea sonab l e t o assume tha t with the fault present 
and the othe r itoms v1hich y ou have mentioned 1 th e likelihom of 
rich concentrations of methane was v a ry high? A. tvoll , in this 
par ticular ca s e I t hink I have gone t o .:t f air deal of 
t rouble to point out the proximity of factors which vrould allow 
a great e r percentage of C02 t o be pre s ent. 

Q• I am not worried about th6 groat er perc ent age - ih And. this 
would particmlarly apply t o t he Bul l i Seam. 

Q. You havo gone t o a great dea l of trouble, but could. you 
just stick t o the thought I a111 putting to you , tha t thG 
pr e sence of the faul ts he re wa s such that you would say it was 
likely you wer e going t o get riche r concentrations of me thane 
hero than elsewhere in the wor lcings where the faults wero not 
pr e sent? A. Do you moan in working the Bulli Se am itself? 

r2.1\1orking t his area , this s ection? A . Would you like t o qualify 
that by saying whe ther it is solids or pillar s y ou are talking 
aoou t? 

Q. By working this section in tho way it was worked, in the p illar 
~xtracti::m? A.1A]ell, I think I have a lready indicate d that there 
1s a vory st r ong possibility of get ting e. metha_rle rich g<1s 
from Bulli . 

C~.And \vhen you create; your goaf in a situation ne a r a fault, 
does no t tho goaf m ve a tendency to be t ill p lace vhore tho 
methane bleeds int o? A. G~s bloods into,yos, 

• 1illd you v.J:::>Uld agree, methane? .A. All gases. 

Q, You have been seeking t o makG s ome point a bout the c on centration 
?f Co 2 in the Bulli Soam. You would a gree with me that tho C02 
13 a.l.ways pre sont in tho Bulli Seam ga.s in tho wh ole sown, in 
other words? A. Taking it right ove r everywhere? 

·1.Yes; perhaps in small portions he r e , but a.lways present? A. vJell, 
d.o und e rstand t hat thore is 98- s omething p Gr cent Cli.4- in somo 

8<;Jilples and I -vmuld say und er thoso circumstances there wa s 
Vlrtually n :::> thing else . 

Q. You do n o t the n agroe with thu p r oposition tha t tho C02 is a lways 
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~ represen t ed in Bulli seam gas? A. Wall, it could be. In the c nso 
1 am quo ting, the le2 per cent or s ome thi ng like that which I 
think you will agre o is gomparativcly insignificant. 

Q
0

Howevor, the point I wish to make is tha t in t his particular 
colliery, anywhere it was first of all incumbent upon everybody 
to assumo the re would b'e C02 or could bo C02 a t c:ny po i nt o f 
time ? A.It is incumb en t t o assume the re is any gas there, l e t 
alone C02. 

o.Then it is incumbent t o assume the r e could be C02? A. Yes • .. 
~.It was equally incumbent upon tho se testing for gas that ther e 
could alvvay s be inflammab l e gas? A. Yes . 

q. Thos:J 3.rc two propositions you 1voul d not deny? wouJd you? A. That 
is qui t e right. 

~l . Nvlv do y ou agr ee tha t concerning C02 in Bulli Seam gas, 
thG occurrence of Illa'\lrarra bo t tom g::_s ha s be on one of tho 
porsistent fe2.tur e s of mining tho s eam in rr.any ar eas? A. Yes . 

Q. Do you know the areas whore it has been om of the 
per sistent fea tures? Ao Pre tt y well , yes . 

~ . imd the fact of tho ma tter is tha t this colliery , Bul l i 
Coll i ery, has ov e r a lengthy per i od been a coll i ery in which 
bottom gas fr om time to time has be an found ? A. Ye s, I would say 
that vlOuld be right. 

Q. It is not a c<1s e of bottom gas having boon discovered in t h is 
col l i ory 50 years ago cilld ne ve r detected again ,is it? A.Well , 
I am afraid I can 1 t ans1.;-or you that because I have n o really close 
knowledge of it . All I can say is that I did see Illavvarra bottom 
gas in Bulli about 1932 but apar t from t hat I h ad hot se en it until 
just a shor t time ago . 

Q. You f ound it in 1932? A.I saw it. 

Q. And have you had c onnec tions with the Bulli c olliery sin ce then? 
A. I have be on in the mina , YG s. 

n. You have been in tlli mina , but just casual visits? A.Ye s,casual 
visi ts. 

Q.YQu have not had t o addre ss y :_) ur mind t o safe ty in t!m mine? A. 
No , although I have had quit e a fm¥ students f rom tte mine and I 
would quite naturally a sk them wha t gases thoy had c or1e in contact 
v.ri th. 

Q. \{hat I wo.nt to put t o you i s this: The assumpt i on, i f it l·ras 
made , that bottom gas was n ot pre sent in this mine \vould be an 
assumpt i on vrhich would f ly in the face of knowledge ovGr hal f a 
century? A. I would think that mi ght bo fairly right. 

Q. And indeed thoro is no r eason - Ju.As I s a i d , you assume 
that the s o gase s ar e g oing t o c ome and you l ook fo r thorn at all 
timo s. 

Q. In ot her words , what you would t oll His Honor is, that onc e 
you knew thGr e was b:)ttom gas in Bulli Colliery you would forover 
therGaf t er be on the a l ert for it? A. I would b e on the a l e rt for 
it ail.yway·. 

Q. Bu t part i cularly if you f ound it more? A'. I 1vould n o t know that 
that would be tho case . I do n 0 t know what the words apar ticularly 
if you f ound it thero " would bo right,anyvrhere . 
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MR.REYNOLDS: He puts the obligation ~1y time, anywhere. 

WITNESS: Anywheree 

.MR.LEE: Qoi appreciate that .. Tell us this, if you would. : Where 
in the Bulli Seam is bottom g o.s to your kno\vle dge most prevalent? 
A. Well, I don't know that ther e is any place where it is 
most prevalent. I would say that the occurrence is generally 
all along what I may t erm for want of use of a better term, 
all along the fringe which roughly follows the outcrop of the seamo 

HIS HONOR: MroLee, I trtke it there has been something written on 
this subject? I understand you ana Hr .. Reynolds were discussing 
some book? 

HR. nEYNOLDS: If you agree, whether the witness agrees in sub­
stance with this article, ·i>Je could make it available to His Honoro 

MR .LEE: I did. read a passage about the occurrence of Illa\<rarra 
bott om gas being one of the persistent features of mining in 
many are r:tS. That is in the book, and Mr . Sellers was asked o.bou t 
it. 

HIS HONOR: I was wondering about Bulli Colliery it self. 

MR.LEE. This article does not specifically relate to Bul l i Coll i ery 
to tha t extent, but it does give maps as to where the methane is 
found ar..d the quantities in which it is found end that sort of 
t hing, without actually concentrating on bottom gas~ t is like 
a j ud gmGn t of the Court fr om 1.vhich ono takes words and they 
could fit a proposition, but that is not what the Court had in 
mind when the words were quoted. 

HR.REYNOLDS : If Your Honor wants it, I have a photostat of tha t 
portion of the article Hr.Lee has quoted which deals with 
senm gas composition. At any time if Your Honor wishes to read it, 
I think a certa in arwunt of \vha t the vlitness has sn.id has been 
due t o reading this, if not recently than some y eo.rs agoo I do 
no t know \vhe ther his knmvledge is more direct, but Your Honor is 
vrelcome t o it . 

MR. LEE: Qo In your report at p.20 7 para., 102, you say: 

''(102) At the time the evidence available to the parties concened 
in the decision to take out (11) before driving a place ahead to 
allow the air to cj_rculate along the goaf edge was that the gas in 
the goaf was of a noxious nature and therefore non inflammableo 11 

Do you realise there are reports i.n from the deputies which indicate 
the finding of inflammable gas at the goaf edge at djfferent times? 
A. I have heard ito 

Q. Then that paragraph is not quite right, is it?Ae Well, not 
necessarily - what you s ay is perhap~ not quite correct. I t ake 
this to be that somebody~finds a trace of gas, they are in effect 
testing for it 1 and find a trace of inflammable gas in their lampo 
I take that to be a very small proportion of CH4 which goes to 
make a very carbon dioxide rich mixture of Illawarra bottom g~s 
and one which I would say would be extinctives 

Q. Didn't you say a few moments ago, particularly if you know about 
the exis t ence of inflammable gas you ac t upon the assumption that 
You may continue to me8t in in future~ You sRid that?A . That is 
quite true .. 



Q~ You said that~ in effect, wa s the r ea son why the bra ttice 
should not have been put up here, with inflammable gas behjnd, 
didn't you?Ao Yes, but there is no indica tion the main mass of 
the gas was not noxious ga sB 

Qo What rea son do you say anybody in thi s rn:i.n e had, in the light 
of the reports of inflammable ga s and noxtous ga s, to a ssume thnt 
there was not inflammable gas in the goaf? ~fuy do yo u say tha t? 
A o Well I did not ga ther from what I sa-vr that ther e was any 
quantity of inflammable gaso 

Q .. But isntt this the position~ you c an 7 t a ssume because you 
found methane in a small quantity in the Bulli Seam a t a 
particula~ time tha t ther e won&t be methane in a large quant i ty 
somewhere else in the Seam?A .. You never a ssume anything 1 as I 
said befor eo 

Q. I am asking you to explain parao 102 

HIS HONOR; Qe Before you do, have you in mind the evidence here 
tha t on the night of 5th October the deputy 7 s report read: urn­
flammable ga s on edge of goaf area being dilutedu~ and on the 
night of 6th October, again~ 11 Inflammable gas on goaf edge in 
centre headingo Other s clearo n and on the night of 14th 
October 9 urnflamrnable gas on the goaf edge being diluted. Others 
clearno We have the t hree njght so .A " May I have a look 
a t these report ? 

Q. Ye So .A ~ I have not seen themo 

HIS HONOR.~ I think you will find them in succesoon .. 

Qo Do e s thnt affect your judgment one way or the other?A. I must 
confess having seen the se reports 

Q. I thought it wa s obvious you had notQ A. Ye s. 

HR . LEE: Qs Having seen them you your self say~ or have made it 
cl ear, you -vrould not have put the brattice up in A heading if 
you thought there vra s inflammable ga s p:·e sent in the section? 
A~ I would be very very careful if I ever did tha to 

Q. It appears from your sta tement that you had no difficulty 
at all on any occasion you test ed for bottom ga s in getting tbe 
me thane oap on your flame?A. None at allo 

Q. Even when you got one per cent you had no difficulty?A. No 
difficultyo 

Q. It is J.nevitable , isn r t it, 
this fir e was the same gas you 
or five weeks after t he f ireo 
A. At the time of tho fi~e? 

the gas that was in the mine before 
vJere testing a week or three weeks 

That is an inevitable conclusion? 

Q .. Yeso Ao Well , it could have been even richer a t the time 
of the fire~ · 

Q. In other words it could have been easier for people to 
discover?A~ At the time of the fir e , yes!' perhap s that v.ould be 
the case o 

Q. Do you know after the 3r d November no deputy discovered 
noxious gas in thi s panel until the morning of the fire? --

MR. MoNALLY~ Tha t is not right c 
was discovered., 

MR. LEE: From 3rd November? 

Six time s, Your Honor, it 
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HIS HONOR: We will check it. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I can give t hem to Your Honor cpickly - including 
3rd November? 

MR. LEE: I excluded 3rd November. 

MR. REYNOLDS: On the 3rd ther e ar e four r eports, on the 4th 
ther e are two r eports and, on the 8 th, one. 

HIS HONOR: Who ar e the deputie s conc erned in those r eports? 
kre they in evidence? 

MR . REYNOLDS: I do not think so, Your Honor. 

MR . LEE: I could not r ead in the transcript any r ef er enc e to 
gas other than the 2nd ~nd 3rd. 

HIS HONOR: On the 4th Mr. Gc?don found it on the night shift, 
noxious gas. 

MR . LEE: Your Honor is r eading from a r eport? 

HIS HONOR: Ye s. 

MR. LEE: I got my informa tion fro m the transcript. 

MR . REYNOLDS: On the 3rd ther e would be two r eports on tbe 
one shift. 

MR . SULLIVAN: Some of them ar e on the small shee ts. 
I t ender ed the lot. 

HIS HONOR: I have only one small shee t here. 

MR . SULLIVAN: They are all ther e , I think, Your Honor. 

I think 

HIS HON OR: Deputy Stewart r eport ed it on the 8th. I have a 
r ecollection Mr. Cambourn never found it. 

MR . McNALLY: Ye s he did. I have them listed here. The gas 
was found on every day but the Friday. 

HIS HONOR: Tha t is, every day up to and including the 5th? 

MR . McNbLLY: And also on the 8th. 

HIS HON OR: Can you t ell me who found it on each of those 
occa sions? 

MR . H cN~LLY: The 2nd wa s 
would have been Cambourn. 

St ewart and the af t ernoon shift, which 
Also, the 3~d is afternoon shift 

The aft ernoon shift was Cambourn~ 
night shift. 

and the night shift found it. 
On the 4th it wa s found on the 

HIS HONOR : Wa s tha t Gordon? 
0 

MR. HcNALLY: At tha t stage it would be still Gordon - I think 
it may have been Walker - none on the Friday 

HIS HONOR: Hr. Walker never found it? 

MR. McNALLY: He wa s away on holiday s, Your Honor. 

MR. LEE: I am obliged to my fri end for tha t information. Not 
having the reports I could not see it in the transcript. 

Q ~ Your conclusion a s to the barome tric pressure drop having no 
Slgnificance depends e ssentially upon your belief that there wer e 
substantial quantities of air in the goaf?A. Ye s. 
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Q. If that be not right and if the quantity of gas is greater 
than you believed it to be the effect of the barometric pressure 
drop becomes greater?AA If it should be, yes, 

Q. You referred to the possibility of floor heave. Did you 
intend to convey that in this particular area we are concerned 
with floor heave was something that might reasonably have been 
expected ?A. Ye So 

Q. Would you say it was a situation where, if you were the 
manager of the mine, you would have been looking out for the 
likelihood of floor heave?A. Yes, that would be right. 

MR. LEE: l notice it is nearly 4 p.m. Could I just have 
the indulgence of seeing the transcript before I say I have 
finished with the witness? 

HIS HONOR: Yeso Mr. McNally has had some cross-examination 
alre8dy and I was wondering whether the cross-examination 
of this witness~ in view of his answers, is likely to be 
lengthy. I understand there is some Departmental evidence 
which will not take long with regard to some equipment? 

MRe LEE: Yeso 

HIS HONOR: Is there any other evidence apart from that? 

1--'lRo SULLIVAN: "' ·-.:~~ this~ I put a question to Mr. Stone 
qbout something he told Mr. Parkinson. I do not think it is 
of any materiality but still I am in the position where I have 
asked the witness a question and I may have to put Mr. Parkinson 
back. 

HIS HONOR~ What was it about? 

MR. SULLIVAN~ Splitting the pillar, as to whether Mr. Stone 
told him he was goi~g to split the pillar this way or the other<> 
I do not think it is of any importance but I do not want to be 
in the position of appearing to be counsel who asks the question 
without having instructionso 

HIS HONOR~ Having stated that, I am sure no comment will be 
made. I was wondering if the evidence would be concluded 
tomorrow. Mr8 Parkinson, are you likely to be lengthy with 
this witness? 

MR. PARKINSON; There are some questions but I do not think so. 

HIS HONOR~ I do not want to hurry you. 

MR. HURRAY: I will only be a few minutes. 

HIS HONOR: I would advise you to read the earlier part of this 
afternoon 1 s trans~ript. 

MRg MURRAY: I have every intention of doing so~ 

HIS HONOR: Are you likely to be lengthy? 

MR. SULLIVAN: No, Your Horror, not if he behaves as he has, 
I don 1 t think SOo 

HIS HONOR~ Mr. McNally? 

MR. McN.ALLY: I will not be long, Your Honoro 

HIS HONORg It seems there is every possibility of finishing 
the evidence tomorrow afternoono If that is the case I would 
like the addresses to conclude within five days. I have in 
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mind that some matters are becomjng crystal clear and the 
prospect of duplication by counsel of comments on issues where 
there is r eally no contest do e s not seem to me to be likely to 
be of assistanceo I should think 9 without wishing to limit 
counsel, it would be very proper if the addresses could be 
completed within five dayso 

MR. REYNOLDS: Your Honor did suggest it would be appropriate 
for Mr. Lee to start first and outline some propositions he 
thinks should be raised :in this investj_gatj_on.. I did thj_nk) 
and my l earned junior anc1 those ins true ting me have given it 
some thought~ that it might be be tt er if I addressed second 
because I am the one who canl by concession- clarify issues 
and perhaps save three or four people say:i.ng what they want to 
saY about this company 9 when the company says that is the fact, 
or the situation., My address ·would be comparatively short and, 
I hope, almost entirely in type scripto I do not propose, as 
far as my client is c oncerned, to analyse in detail this evidence 
and make citations from it because it will be my submission on 
the issues that r eally matter tha t certain bro ad considerations 
emerge and unless Your Honor engages in considerable deba te with 
me I should thinJc I would finish we 11 within the dcv o 

HIS HONOR: I will do my u tmost to refrain from debate.. I 
understand there will be a series of headings handed to me by 
counsel and the addre sse s will be to those headingso I do 
not intend to ask counse l to do any more than that, and to 
expand certain propositions being put if I do not understand the 
basis" So, the addresses should be ~ho:r.ter than they usually 
are (I 

MR. REYNOLDS ~ On r econsideration I would think I would not 
need in excess of three hours 

HIS HONOR: In tha t ca se there should be no reason why counsel 
should not be able to deal with this within five days. 

(Further hear:ing adjourned until 10 a.m. on 
Thursday lOth February, 1966~) 



IN THE COURT OF 
COAL MINES REGULATION 
HOLDEN AT BULLI 

) 
) 
) 

No . 1 of 1965. 

BEFORE HIS HONOR JUDGE GORM{ 

ASSESSORS~ MESSRS . HAHON and BUCK . 

THURSDAY, l Ot h FEBRUARY, l966 . 

----- -
I N 'rHE l'1ATTER OF Al·J INQUIRY IN PURSUANCE OF THE COAL MINES 
REGULATION ACT INTO AN ACCIDENT i,-.JHICH OCCURRED AT THE BULLI 
COLLIERY ON 9'rH NOVEMBER 1 965 .c~~ND I TS CAUSES AND 
C IRCUHSTANCES~ 

(PART HEARD ) 

HIS HONORg Mr . McNally ~ do you wa,l t Hr . Stmvart recalled mv? 

HR. Mc NALLYg Yes, it would be convenient . 

CHARLES RODERT .S '.~EWART 

Re sworn 
Examined as undtU' ~ 

MR .HcNALLY~ Q. I think on the last occa sion you described going 
i nto the shunt in A heading on the s ~cand occasion? A. Yes . 

Q.And you describe d. a smell of gas that you got? A. Yes . 

Q. Af ter that, you left the shunt and you -vrent ba ck down near the 
mine r face? A. Yes . 

Q..I wonder if you would just describe it - I think y ou said :Jn 
t he prior occas i on " Then I went back dovm and I sat rougi:ly -' 
at the tack of the miner on the vent tubes for about another 10 
minutes and then I went ba ck up to where everybody 1.-ms 
collect e d on the timber bay and. that is when the actualy fire 
tool{ place . " That is at p . l09 at the top . Now , just how long 
approxima t ely was it you -vmre d own near the miner place - for 10 
mi nutes or thereabouts, is that correct? ".Yes , ten or 15 
minutes . 

Q.~-l.nd. you then went back up t o the timber bay \<Th e r e everybody 
was c ollected . V.Jhat did you actually do when you got back t o the 
t i mber bay? .i-l •• \"le 1vere ,just h2ving a genera l discussion . 

Q .~d for how l ong did you have tha t gene ral discu s sion,fr om 
t he time you got there up till till time of the fire? A. At l e ast 
a quarter of an hour, probably a little bit more . 

Q. A ·little bit more? A. Yes . 

Q. On p . ll2, third. question , you were asked. " Q. Did. you think when 
you smelt blackdamp you in fact might be smelling a mixture which 
constituted bott:Jm gas? ·· • Ye s, I took tb e precaution oft esting 
them and. when I found no inflammable cap on the light I thought it 
would be blackdamp ." Bet>re you waved the end. of the bleed tube 
around to move the gas had you te s ted. before that or not? A. Yes . 
Yes . 

Q. Did you test after? Besides testing before did you test 
aft er you vla .ved the elepha_rlt trw-1k arow1d? l~ . Yes~ found nothing . 

~ffi.LEE: No questions . 

MR. PARKINSON~ No question~. 
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MR. MURRAYc No questions. 
' 

MR. SULLIVJ~: Q. You t e st ed for me thane, did you? You t e st8d 
for methane? A. In tha t shunt, yes. 

Q. So you suspected methane might be present?A. It could have 
been, ye s. 

Q. You suspected it was pre sent?A. I wa s not sure . 
for it. 

I t e st ed 

Q. You also knew it wa s c oming fr om behind the bra ttice?A. No , 
I wouldn't say I knew it wa s coming from behind the bra ttice. 

Q. You knew tha t?A. No I didn't. 

Q. Where did you think it wa s coming from?A. It could have been 
aoming fr om behind but I didn't know it. 

Q. Did you think it might be a good idea to find out wher e it 
was c oming fr om?h. JBut I did no t find any methane. 

Q. But you had smelt black damp there?A. Ye s. 

Q. Which you admit might cont ain methane? A. It could m ve been, 
yes. 

Q. You did not think it would be a good idea to find out where 
it was coming fr om?A. I got rid of the smell. 

Q. But then you only go t rid of the smell for a while, didn 1 t 
you?A. I don 1 t know. 

Q. You did not know, did you?A.. No. 

Q. It could have then started t o l eak in again?A. It probably 
could have. 

Q. The position was this: you weren't able to t e st back to the 
goaf edge because someone had sealed tha t heading up with the 
brattice. Tha t is the position, isn't it?A. It was a tight 
screen, you could no t get passed it. 

HIS HONOR~ Q. You sa id then, in your original evidence, as to 
wher e it might be coming fr om, you were a sked this que stion at 
p.ll2: "Q. Did it strike you a t the time tha t it might be coming 
f r om the goaf ar ea?A. No , I would not say it did strike me at 
that time". A. Ye s. 

Q. Is tha t evidenc e true?A. I beg your pardon? 

Q. Ys tha t evidence true?h. Yes - not a t tha t time , but after 
t he occurrence. 

Q. After the occurrence, ye s. This wa s right close to the 
brattice, wa s it not?A. Ye s, r oughly r ound about six f ee t from 
the bra ttice. 

Q. Tell me where you thought it might be coming from, would you? 
A. I can r t answer tha t. 

Q. You can 1 t answer it. Do you r emember when you originally 
gave your evidence in this matter as t o how you made your tests? 
11 . Yes. 

Q. Do you r emember saying this at p.l08, n ear the bottom: 

Then I came back up and into t he shuttle ca r shunt again 
and I went in there and this time I got down on my hands and 
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my knees and I got this sensation right down low on the 
gr oJlld . It is a smell or a sensation or whatever anyone 
likes to call it . It is s omething l ike a sensation in your 
nose and mouth but it also burns your e ye s a nd I g ::~ve this 
elephant tube a little bit of a wave around and then I could 
not smell anything else again and I tested all round that area. 
1.vi th the lamp and could not find. anythi ng . 11 

y0 u then went on to say what happened Qfter that . YoU were 
t hen cross - examined as to whether t his was your usual practice , 
to get down on your knees and. you said it \vas the usual 
practic e by you? A. By myself . 

Q.I am r e ading this ~ 11 By me to ge t down and have a g ood smell 
of the are a ." You 1.ver e then aske d. " Q. You d id not do that ho-v.1e ver 
on your first test? A. No , I mado my t e sts on the first om . u 
You had s a id nothing , had you , . bout using the lamp t o test , 
you merely said you used the lamp once you had got rid . of the 
sme ll? A. No , well, t ha t would n o t be right, I don ' t think . 

Q. Why did n o t you sa y y ou used. the lamp , you were being mkod to 
say '"'hat you did and you lmew that? A. Oh well I meant to say -
vthat I t hought I s a id was t hat I made my t e st , I smelt on the 
ground low down on the ground and. made a test and found nothing 
and then I used the tube to suck out the smell that I got 
and then I t e sted. all around. a gain and found nothing . 

Q, Have you suggested t o anyone or has anyone suggested to you 
that :/ ou place d your l amp down on the ground? A. I must have 
pl a c ed my larnp around ther e somewhere . 

Q. Must you? A. Yes . 

Q.That you l eft your l amp on tho ground while you smelt around? 
Did you t ell anybody that? A. Yes . 

Q. To whom did you tell that? A. I told that to Hr. HcNally yester ­
day. 

Q. . To whom have you sp oken since you wer e told you were to come to 
Court to-c ay , apart f r om l'vlr. McNally? A. v~ . cambourn , and I went 
t o the pit ye st e r day c.ft ornoon to re port I would not be at ~,...,'0 rk 
thi s morning , when I saw Mr . Pud dl o . That would be the only -
I think they 1.-roul d. be about the only ones . 

Q. Did you k.n m'r when you crro e to Court to - day what you ·we re 
be ing c a~lcd for? A. No . 

Q, Did not kno1.-r at <.ll.. l? A. I did not knmv exactly what I ·vras 
being cal led for . 

Q, You just t hought it might be a bout anything? .A . Ho , roughly 
about the t e sting of the shunt . 

Q. Who told you that? A. Mr . HcNally . 

Q. Has your at tent ion been direct e d, be fore you came her e to -d. ay, 
t o the time you spent after you made your t e st be fore the fir e 
occurred ? A. No . 

Q,It has n o t been dir e c t ed to tha t a t a ll? A. No . 

Q, Yet this was your ovidence about the time , was it not - ? A. Yes . 

Q. No, Listen to this . This is p . l09 at the top , You said , aft e r 
You t e sted with the lat"TTP , when you got rid of the g ~)_ s , n the n I 
went back down &nd I sat roughly at the back of the miner on the 
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vent tubes for about another ten minutes and then I went back 
up to where everybody was collected on the timber bay and tha t 
is when the actual fire took place. 11 11 That is when it 
happened". Have you had it suggested to you at all tha t 
another 15 minutes elapsed? You see, today you told me it 
would be ten to fifteen minutes that you sa t down and then 
15 minutes after that elapsed, while you were talking in 
general discussion. Has it been suggested to you before you 
came here today tha t you might have spent some time talking m 
the men before the fire occurred?A. No it hasn 1 t. 

Q. That is something you have remembered today, is it?A. No sir. 
I would be nearly sure tha t I sa id on tha t day t ha t I sat ten 
to 15 minutes behind the miner or in tha t area and then I went 
back up and spent roughly another ten or 15 rrrinutes up there . 

Q. I will read to you again wha t you said in case there is any 
doub t about it. A. I think Mr. Parkinson or somebody asked me 
abou t tha t, and I think I said t he general discussion was general 
pit talk - I think. 

Q. You do not want me to r ead to you again what I read to you 
before?A. Yes sir, I would like you to. 

Q. Very well, I will r ead it again: "Then I went back dom and 
I sat roughly at the back of the miner on the vent tubes for 
about another ten minutes and then I went back up to where 
everybody was collected on t he timber bay and that is when the 
ac tual fire took place. 11 A. Yes. Definitely I was up there 
ten to 15 minutes. 

HIS HONOR: Do you want to ask any further questions, Mr. McNally? 

MR . McNALLY~ No, but I was just trying to find something - I 
would direct Your Honor's attention to some evidence. 

MR. MURRAY: I have a strong recollection too, which I was 
trying to turn up - somebody else - of conversation as to 
general pit talk. 

MR . McNALLY: May Mr. Stewart be excused? 

MR . LEE: I did not a@{ any questions before, but may I now in 
view of Your Honor's questions? 

HIS HONOR~ Yes. 

MR . LEE: Q. His Honor has read out portion of the transcript to 
you and I would like to take it a little further. You will 
remember on p.l09 you conveyed to us that you supervised the 
workings at the f ace and you had made certain tests, then you 
came back up and into the shuttle car shunt. You said "and 
this time I got down on my hands and my knees." Prior to tha t 
you had said you had made various tests?A. Yes. 

Q. I just want t o re ad this to you from p cl09, if I may: 

nQ. You say you had made these tests at the face, near the 
fans, in the shunt, and then you went back to the face and 
then you came out again?A. Yes. 11 

4,. Yes. 

g. "(\· And t t d . th h t ~ you es e ln e s un ?A. Yes, that is right. 
Q. On this second occasion you apparently felt the 
necessity to get down on your hands and knees?A. Yes. 

Q. Taking it step by step, before you got down on your 
knees, you had not had any indic a tion of anything at all 
in that area?A. No. 
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Q. Then what was it that made you take this step of ge t ting 
down on your knees? A· It is the usual practice . 

Q. It is the usual prel ctice by vrhom? A. BY me to ge t down and 
have a good smell of the are a . 

q . You did not do tha t however on your f irst test? A. No , 
1 made my tests on the first one . " 

you ._ vere making it perfectly clee.r , I mggest, Mr . Stewart , 
that your first iound of tests wa s with the lamp and that your 
entry into the shuttle cn.r shunt on the occasion we are spe.'3.king 
of was s ol~ ly for the purpose of smelling on the floor? A. No . 

Q. You appreciate that what you said was "No, I made ~y t e sts on 
the first one"? n . Yes . 

Q. And you say that it ·vrould be v.rrong to take c1. view - A. Yes . 

Q. - that you had said on the second occasion all you d id was get 
down on your h2nds and knees and smel l th e floor?A. It would be 
wrong. 

'1R . HcNALLY~ Q.One matt er does occur to me e.nd it may be relevant 
for Your Honor ~ The time of the first test . 

HIS HONOR ~ Yes . 

lffi . McNALLY~ Q. I t hink you said you arrived in the panl at 
rouzhly ten to eight?A. Quarter or ten to eight . 

Q.And you desc ribed that you di d various tests down a.t the face, 
you inspected the vent tubes, rmd you went into the fan area 
acro ss into the shunt and made certain tests? A. Yes . 

Q.Are you able to r emerube r approximately what time that ·uas? 
Perhaps you might bettor be .:1b le t o do it in relation to how long 
you had been in the section at tha t stage? A. Yes . It is pretty 
hard to put it dovJn into time , bnt vle went straight to the 
face did the tests at the face, probably had them loading one 
shuttle car , then ventured back aJ.ong to the vent tubes and up 
into the other (lrea . Rcu ghly aboLl.t 20 minutes I -vmuld say . 

Q.Approximately what time ? You arrived in the crib room about 
f ive or ten past eight? A. Roughly five to ten past eight , yes . 

HIS HONOR: Q.Here you talking to an overman on that morning? H .• 

An overman - a new one . 

Q .Who was he? A. Hr . Fear s. He only started that morning 1 I thinK. 

Q. . Did you leave the secticn with him at all? A. No, I didn ' t . 

Q. What time did he arrive? A.With us that morning . 

Q. He c~e with you , did he? A. Yes . 

Q. And what time did he leave? 1\. .He left about five to nim -vrith 
Nr. \'lr ight. 

Q. About five to nine? A. Yes . 

Q.Did you show the overman the shunt section? A. Yes . 

Q.The brattice erected? A. Yes . 

Q.r t ake it Mr .Wright was with yoll. at the time? A. No , he wasn 1 t . 
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Q. Was anything said ~bout the brattic e and the possibility of 
ga s being t he re?A. No. 

Q. Nothing?A. No. 

MR. McNALLY: I have informa tion that that was the overman -
he was not there very long tha t morning. 

MR. MURRAY: Q. Did the over man, t he new over man, have a light? 
A. Ye s, I think he d id. 

Q. And he had his light with you at t he time you conducted him 
on a tour of your district or section?A. I didn 1 t actually take 
him on a tour of t he district. I just walked him in -

Q. When you walked round t he ar eas you described, the overman 
had a light as well as you?A. Ye s. 

HIS HONOR: Q. And one of t hose ar eas wa s the shunt, you have 
told me?A. Ye s sir. 

MR . MURRAY: Q. Did he .make any t e sts?A. No, this was his first 
day there. 

~ffi . PARKINSON: Your Honor, some thing in connection with the 
plan of t he working ar ea and the crib room that we asked some 
qu~stions of l~. Cambourn about, particularly Your Honor. I 
wa s wondering if I would be permitt ed to ask Mr. Stewart? 

HI S HONOR: Ye s. 

MR . PARKINSON: Q. Do you r emember t elling me when you were first 
i n the wi tne ss box t hat t he crib room wa s the plac e wher e the 
deputie s in this particular area used to make their reports? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. And tha t the reports wer e just about, lying around in the crib 
r oom? A. On t he t able or on t he de sk, y es. 

Q. Was t here a pl an of the working ar ea in the crib room?A. Ye s. 

Q. Have you any idea wher e tha t plan is now?A. No, I haven't any 
idea at all, but ther e was a lot of stuff brough t out from tha t 
ar ea lat er on. Whe ther t ha t plan c ame out- I don't t hink it did. 
I ' m not sure . I wouldn't know whe r e it wa s. 

Q. On t he morning of t he fir e wer e t he deputies 1 reports lying 
around in t he crib room?A. Ye s. 

Q. Do you know if they were r ecovered?A. I think they were. 

HIS HONOR: Mr. Stewart, you ar e excused, and the ordinary order 
for witness's expense s will be made in your ~a se. 

GORDON SELLERS 
On former oath 

(Witne ss r e tired and excused) 

Cross-examination continued: 

m;. . LEE: Q. Just one matter, if I may. You advanced a certain 
Vl ewpoint here about the pre senc e of carbon dioxide in coal?A.Ye s. 

Q. Is this the position, tha t you have r eflected on tha t viewpoint? 
A. Well, I am always r efl ecting, Mr. Lee , on anything I do and say. 

Q. If you can just go with me on this, because I am going to b e 
very brief: Is it a f act tha t you have r eflect ed on some of the 
matt ers you have put?A. Not unduly. 
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Q.You still adhere ~o.the ~iewsi or do.you feel t~ere is ~oom 
fo r differ ence of op lnlon ? l~ · Wel , I thlnk I take l t you are 
r e f erring t o the pre sence o f carbon diox ide, or s ome thing like 
that , are you? 

• Yes. A. Well, a lot of pe ople do lean to 1,-.rhat I say there, 
but I will agree with you the re could be a t remendous differ ence 
of op ini on ab ou t tha t . 

MR .LEE ~ I ju s t wanted t o make that clear, t hru1k you . I do not 
t h ink it is germane to this inquiry . 

MR .PARKINSON ~ Q.Mr.Selle rs , have you managed any c olliery? A. Yes , 

Q.Which colliery? A. Sou th Clifton. 

Q.You stated tha t you arrived a t the collie r y , Bulli Collie ry, 
at a bout 10.50 a. m. on the day of the fir e ? A. Some thing o f that 
or der . 

Q,With n o particular i nvitation f rom anyon e ? A. No . 

Q. Yo u just hear d t he news of t he tragedy a nd you proceeded to 
Bull i Coll i ery ? A. That is quit e so . 

,,11.nd yoLl were the r e fo r a bout 3 hours? A. Ro ughly that . 

Q. You s t ate d t hat mos t of tha t t ime you vm r e in tm Man;3.ger 1 s 
of f i ce ?A. Tha t is so. 

Q. Whe r e d i d yo u s pend the rest of t he time ? A.Well 1 most of t he 
tiiue \va s pr e tty well all t he time . 

Q. Then you st 2. ted tha t you returned home " on the unders t anding 
tha t I \oJ" OU l d be c alled if r e qLlired"? A. \ifell, I left tha t 
inEJssage \v it h Mr .Pearce that if h e thought he needed TIE , to 
r ing and I woul d come straight back . 

Q.And of course , I take it that you f elt you may be of some 
assistance at the s c ene of the t ragedy? .A . I c ould be, yes. 

Q. Have you eve r done a ny jobs of a consultative cha racter for the 
B. H. P or A. I . & s. in the past? A. Never at any time. 

Q.Of course the A. I . & s. has a fairly efficient senior staff 
of mi ning engineers, has it not? A.I would say _so. 

Q. For instance , Mr . \·filk inson himself, the gene ral supe rintendent, 
is a man with high qua l ifications? A. Yes . 

Q. v~ .Martin ? A.Yes. 

Q.Mr . Pe arce? A, Yes. 

Q. Mr . Grierson? A.Yes. 

Q. Mr . Reekes? A, Yes . 

Q.All men to your knowledge of high mining technical qualifica tions? 
A. That is so. 

Q.You st a t e d that you attended the first sitting of the court 
Whlc h was hold in Sydney and you vTG re n Dmina ted for thG position 
as a ssessor by the comp any? A. That is so. 

Qt . But you wer e not app oint e d. Do you r ememb e r the nominations 
hat \>Ter o submitted on that particular day at the court hearing , 

at t he commencement? A. I v.rould n o t sav I r emember ed all of theme 
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Q. Well, you remember Mr. Mahon was nominated?A. Ye s. 

Q. And you know that Mr. Mahon is the General Secretary of 
the Miners' Federation?A. Yes, that is so. 

Q. And that he was nominated on behalf of the miners?A. Yes 

Q. You know tha t Mr. Buck was nominated by the Minister for 
Mines?A. That is so. 

Q. Do you know that Mr. Mills was the nomination of the Electrical 
Trades Union?A. I believe that is so. 

Q. That Mr. Sawyer was a nomination on behalf of the Mine Manage­
ment Association?A. I didn't know that. 

Q. That Mr. Ward, who until just prior to Christmas wa s the 
Secretary of the Deputies' Associationi was t he nomination 
of the Deputies' Associa tion?A. He cou d have been. 

Q. Didn't you thiru{ it rather odd t ha t you should be approa~hed t 
in the light of what you tell me about the t echnical qualif~c atlons 
of senior members of the staff of the A. I. & S., that you 'l.ver e 
asked to accept nomination on behalf of the A.I. & S.?A. Mr. 
Parkinson, I didn 1 t give bat angle any thought whatsoever. 

Q. Incidentally, this appointment - this proposition ;..;as put to 
you that you be an assessor. How was this appointment with 
Mr. Wilkinson arranged?A. Just a telephone conversation. 

Q. With you and Mr. Wilkinson?A. I wouldn't be sure whether it 
was Mr. Wilkinson or somebody else. 

Q. That Wedne sday, 8th Dec ember, at the r equest of Mr. c. Martin -
I take it the Mr. c. Martin referred to he re is the ~~. Martin 
who I think is the Deputy Superintendent of A.I. & s. Collierie s? 
They would be the same?A. Tha t is quite so, 

Q. And you saw Mr. Wilirinson?A. That is so. 

Q. Mr. Wilkinson reque sted that you carry out investigations a s 
an independent consultant?A. That is so. 

Q. On any aspect of the inciden t or the subj ect matter which 
might be r aised, and if you thought tha t any matter shouJd be 
brought before the Inquiry, to do so?A. That is so. 

Q. Then, according to your sta tement,Mr. Wilkinson stressed that 
it was to be done in a completely independent way?A. That is so. 

Q. Now, you state 11 after some consideration" you agreed to do this? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. \vould you care to t ell the Court what was the r eason for the 
consideration tha t you had to give to thi s particular offer, 
or did you have any r e serva tion, first of all?A. None wha tever, no. 

Q. Was there any particular reason tha t you had to give it some 
consideration?A. Well, I do other things, and tha t was one of the 
matters which I would most cer tainly c onsider. 

Q. At p.4 here on your sta t emen t you deal under the heading 
Para. (23), at p.885 of the transcrip t, with 11Visit to No. 8 Right 
Section 18/1/66. (23) The purpose of this visit was to collect 
a sample of the ga s aa~umulation as observed on the previous visit. 
(24) At a point about halfway into the mass of ga s in the Continu­
ous Miner place two samples of gas were taken from the floor one 
from the middle and one from the roof. These wer e handed over fo r 
t esting a t Port Kembla." I take it, or am I right in assuming, 
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that these chargs which are attached to your statement and signed 
by M.:r.AeV.0 1Halloran - he is the Chemist to vrhom you sent the gas 
s,:l_n.ples? A. No . 

Q. Well, first of all let me put it to y ou this way: To whom 
did you give these gas sample s? Ao I gave them to a young .fo llo-v: 
named Rior dani who was sent to the Col liery for that purpose 
from the stee works . 

Q. And you stated that these ~overe handed over for test 5ng 
at Port Kembla? ~o Ye s~ 

Q Whereabouts in Port Kembla? A. Well 1 I would not know . All I 
was int er ested in was getting s ome indication a s to what the 
gase s contained . Who d i d it and a l l about that , I \..OUld not have 
any k ... n.owledgo . 

Q. Well , ·what were the r e sults of those samples? A. The results 
of the samples I collected are shown by a paper which is dated 
20th January,l966 on which are four results I have given. 

Q. And you have not any knowledge who cnalysed the gas · sarrp les? A. 
well , there is a signatur e on the bottom. I take it that t~1 is man 
would take the res ponsibilit y for them . I do not k.no"r \vhether he 
analysed them or not , but it seems to be Mr .Jephcott. 

HR .REYNOLDS: There ~re other i n itials on the left of the' paper too , 
~1ich seem to indicate authentication. 

HR .PARKllJSON~ Q.Well , is it not r easonable for me to a srumo that 
the analyses of these gas samples were taken by chemists in the 
empl oy of Ao I . & S.. ? n.. I think that would be a pe rfecftl leg ical 
assump tion . 

Q. In the light of what Mr . 1.Vilkinson said to you- tffi.t he 
str8ssed the nece ssity for an independent consultation or 
an ind~ cndent investigation - don 't you think it ~,.,rould. have been 
de sirable that you send the gas samp les to someone othGr than the 
A. I . & s. chemists? A.I can assure you that the thought never 
oc curred t o me . 

~.Then , of course , Hr .Lee's cross-examination ye sterday found some 
errors in these e..nalyses? (No ans\,rer ). 

HR . REYNOLDS: Not in theseo He d i d not take these samples and he 
di d not send these . 

HIS II ONOR~ Mr oLce s uggested some error s. 

HR . PARKHJSON~ Q.Well, Hr•Lee suggested some e rr ors - ··.:,, .. ·· 

MR . REYNOLDS ~ Before t his cross-examination proceeds, I t hink i t 
is only f air to point out that the sub j ect matter upon whi eh Hr . 
Lee cross - examined this witness was a d acumen t ; d?..t od 17th 
November, l965 which vras long bc;for e this 1/J'itness unde rtook a.ny 
inves tigo.tions. If vre turn to the paragraph, I think it is p .ll 
of _his stat ement 1 paragraph 63, which is at p .900 of the transcript, 
tlns is the only r eference. It is taken from the final sentEnce 
;: paragraph 63 ~ "The Garlier analysis taken by the De pax tment of 
·1lna s wa s confirme d by sanples taken at or abou t tho same time 
by .4. . I .. So 11 This witnes s has never placed a.ny reliance on that 
at all. - merely t o indic n t e that nothing that was found by t he 
A.r. & S. investigation oarlier \vas in confl_ict in substance with 
\vhat the Mines Department found. That i s the only rGfc;r ence and 
0nly_for that reason it was rather a concession to the Dep2.r'tmant 
of Mlne s that it was annexed to this report. He doos not rely on it 
~ywher e . I think it is only fair to p oint that out . I have 
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already had an opportunity to point it out to Mr. Lee this 
morning, before this ge ts out of proporti?n or out of han~. 
He did not have it done but he looked at lt and saw that lll 
substance it agreed with the certificate which Mr. Lee had 
t endered in evidence earlier in the casee That is the only 
point. 

MR. PARKINSON: Q. However, Mr. Sellers, you state that it did 
not occur to you it might have been desirable to have sent the 
gas samples to, shall we say, an independent person?A. No, it 
did not occur to me at any timee 

Q. On the same page, at parao (29) you say 11 The gas in No. 2 
North was coming up thr ough the floor by rndium of floor heave 
cracks which were up to one inch in width and up to eight f ee t 
in length. Some of the cracks extended into the coal ribs and 
gas was also coming up these ." .A. That is right. 

Q. ']hen you go on to describe the type of g a s, the percentage 
tha t was detectable, and then you state that in one crack the 
gas was confined 11 and I placed my face well do'W!l into the crack. 11 

Now you might be able to clear this up for me . I find it very 
difficult, if the crack is eight f ee t long and an inch in width, 
to see how you would be able to ge t your face well down into 
the crack. Is that what you did?A. Ye s, in effect. I g ave a 
general description of the crack and you will appr eciate, as you 
are a man of vJ ide experienc e in mining, you have a crack in the 
floor, then there are places wher e it is quite ragged and in 
effect you have some thing in the nature of a hole formed 1 and 
the crack is a part of ito It was in such a situation tha t I 
did what I described. 

Q. But on my experience of floor heave in an inch in \.J"idth, 
bearing in mind this is what you say, doesn't floor heave tend 
to come up this way? That is, more in a triangular shape? 
A. It depends on the currents and it quite often happens in a 
heading where you find the middle t ends to come up more than 
the sides and you do get a situation wher e the middle come s up 
as you have describedo If the heaving part is say about that 
big (demonstra ting) as it very often is, you find the bottom 
locks and the top op ens. Tha t is very common. 

Q. You I.Jere able to ge t your face well down?A. I was able to 
pull away a bit of the floor and be ffar enough down to be where 
I thought the gas would be. 

Q. (Shows witne ss document) Would you r ead to His Honor what 
this document purports t o be?A. This document is entitled "By 
the Mines Department, New South Wales, Coalfields Branch, Report 
Number 5, Occurrence of Methane, We stern Intake Section, by 
M,J. Muir Inspector of Collieries". The price is two shillings. 

HIS HONOR: Q. What is the date?A. I could not give you that. 

MR. PARKINSON: Q. I think you will find the da te on the last 
page. A. There are two dates here, one is 13th November 192 
and the other is 24th October so I gather the material would 
have be en gathered at that time. I beg your pardon, it has 
11 Governmen t Prin t er'1 in small print, .,.1963". 

MR. PARKINSON: Qo That is a Mines Department document?A. Ye s. 

Q. And it is a report on a methane gas ignition at the Bulli 
Colliery in 1962?A. I would say that would. be right. 

Q. The r eport is made by Mr. J. Muir?A. Yes. 

Q. Who you know now to be a Government Mines Inspector?A. That is 
so. 
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Q. on thG first page would you rea d where I have markl d the 
paragraph? -

MR . RJYNOLDS: I must obj e ct,Your Honor . Do you mean read it to 
himself or aloud? I have no obj ec tion if he reads it to himself . 

HIS HONOR: Read it to yourself firs t. 

KR . PARKINSON: Yes . 

WITNESS: The paragraph you have marked? 

HR . PAHKINSON~ Yes . 

Wl'n~'ESS~ I think I have read it . I may v1ant to refer back to 
it pe rhaps if you aro going to ask a question . 

·m . PARKll'l"SON: Q. That vory clearly and specifically defines the 
fact that there was a fairly substantial gas problem, cH4 problem, 
in this particular section in 1962? -

MR.REYNOLDS: Is ther e any point in me obj e cting? I woul d , 
if we wore dealing with the matter on a r eal istic basis . 

HIS HONOR: I vrant to know where it is go i ng . What are you 
suggesting Mr . Parkinson? It may be of some value but I vrould 
like to know v1hat you arc going to ask. 

M"R .PARKINSON: Q. Is Hr . HUir ' s find ing on this particular 
occasion that the r e -v1as no - or did not appear to be any gas 
coming from the floor or from the roof? A. Well I think that is 
pr obably 1-rhat it does indicate, without roading the whole of 
the text . 

~ffi . REYNOLDS: You.r Honor has authority to 
mind in what eve r way Your Honor sees fit . 
if there is any point in objectingo It is 
en tirely for Your Honor . 

YOUR HONOTI : Yes, it is . 

inform your Honor 's 
That is why I ask 

a ma t ter really 

NR . PARKINSON,. Q. On p . ll ~ paragraph 66 you so.id it has been 
your exp erience in a ne lghbouring colliery to find gas a s clo s e to 
a cinder and sill rock zon e where the mnount of cH4 if any could 
not be detected with a safe t y lamp . \tJhich colliery was that? 
Was that Old Bulli or Bulli or 1tlhat? A. Which r.aragraph a1~;ain? 
66? Thati s right . 

Q. Ye s . A. I have seen this particular happ en ing in both 
EXcBlsior colliery and South Bulli colliery that is one to the 
north and one to the s outh . 

q . You said 11 in cases of lack of ventilation vrhere the areas vrero 
seal e d. off I have soen roadways fill up with such gasn. That 
WOLlld. not be an unusual occurrence? A. It would not be . 

Q. No . A. Not v.rhen you s eal thorn off . 

Q. I n p aragraph 67 you said 11 I have noted one case where t he 
DUlli Seam has bE:en form ~-; d i n to p illar s for at least t en years 
wben a s haft vas extended down some 21 fe e t to the No . 2 se ro..xn below 
n. large vol ume of gas was rele ased frcrn t hi s lov!Gr s eam". Is there 
any shaft , to your kn o-vlledge , dr iven in No . 8 Right ? A. No . 

Q. This s e am wa s tapped by a she _f ·~ , Hasn ' t it ?A. Yes . 

Q. That you ar e referring to? A. Yes . 
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Q. There is no similarity to 8 Right?A. I would not suggest ther o 
was. 

Q. In your statement yesterday, page 903 of the transcript I 
think it is, and I am pretty sure His Honor was asking you 
some que stions at this period, the question was: 

nQ. That is Illawarra bottom gas, but you see we have 
evidence that there is quite an~ount of what the miners 
call black damp 7 C02, existing on its own?A. Yes, well, 
that is formed ln a somewhat different way. 

Q. How is that formed?A. Well, this gas usually forms in 
goaves and you could take it this way: the air goes into 
the goaf which is virtually a still place when it is seal ed 
off and in that goaf almost invariably you will find timber, 
and in the olden days of course horse dung, and this material 
combines with the oxygen in the air and throws out c arbon 
dioxide, and finally it will almost completely absorb all 
the oxygen. 

Q. Strictly speaking it is not coming from the coal at all? 
A. Very rarely. It is not a natural gas in the eoal seam. 
It has some other source. 11 

Do you r emember the C02 outburst at the Metropolitan Colliery in 
19 54-? A. Ye s. 

Q. Do you r emember the C02 outburst at Collinsville in l954?A. Yes. 

Q. Did you have t he opportunity to r ead the findings of the 
experts who gave evidence in the Collinsville Roya1Commission 
or Inquiry?A. I beli eve I did. 

Q. Do you r ecall where the experts indicated that C02 was 
impregnated in the very coal itself?A. Ye s. 

Q. Does not tha t suggest that C02 is in the coal and is not 
something apart from the coal?A. I think perhaps you might have 
misunderstood lvha t I was saying. I did not say there was no 
C02 came off the coal, I particularly r ef erred to a gas, what 
was known as black damp, and this t erm black damp has its 
origin right back in history when the mines were shallow and where 
these goave s wer e pre sent and very little ventilation and we found 
we had black damp mainly due to its generation in the goave s due 
to the rotting of the timber and due to the combination of oxygen 
with the coal itself and the t erm black da mp is one which is 
used in a very general sense now, very often people call a gas 
black damp because it has C02 in it. I would perhaps think 
tha t in the course of time the t erm black damp might mean some­
thing a little different t o wha t I might describe it a s in a 
general sense. 

Q. On p.l4, para. (80) of your statement under the heading, 
"Pressure on block screen due to working conditions", you said: 

11 A study of the normal shuttle car working cycle r eveals 
that there is a very frequent obstruction to the flow of 
air along No. 2 ~-through be tween B and A headings and 
that it will be ffr equent, intermittent, variable and 
sometimes comparatively heavy. . 

No. 67 car usually stood empty for . about four minute s 
in No. 2 heading be tween B and A in every cycle waiting 
for No. 40 car to come out and enter the shunt. u 

Then you go on to describe wha t No . 40 car did. How did you get 
thi? information?A. In the first place, I simply applied logic 
to ~t and I de t ermined wha t I would do if I wa s a shuttle car 
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driver and I wor ked out then t hat No . 67 car in doing its job 
effjc i ently would gc t as clos e as it c ould t o the shunt whore 
40 \'!as to shunt a-nd , if I rr:ay s a y 11 so on and so onn. That is ~ 
each oper ation , I tr eat i n the same_ way and, at that stage I dld 
ask some body was I right . I ask8d I1r . Fr e d vllright who was thor o 
wi t h me on the occasion of one of my visits " Is this the 
si tuation which a }-, plied normally?" He said "Yes , that vJOUld be 
r)re tty right". 

Q. Then y ou go to p . 18 of your st atemen t an d a t p aragraph 93 (e) 
you say: 

11 No,.4o ·c a r tr.ave J.led ove r the intersection a t "A• in a 
full state and then travGlled up a gainst the air ." You 

cant inua on ; 

~his a c tion is e stimated t o have n ormally occup ied some 35 
s e conds. On this occasion it co uld have taken longer be c a use 
the r e was no need to d o it quickly as t he othor ?ar 
\vas n o t r ead y to c ome in. 11 

wa s that a logical assump tion you arrive d at? A. On this oc c asion, 
and I belie v e this appears in the transcrip t, the shut t l e cn r 
drive r went up to the unloading r amp and for some reason I am 
not too clear on he was de lay ed thero in his unloa ding cycle an d 
as a r e sult d i d not get ba ck t o \vhat I wo ul d call his normal 
position . 

Q.vlhen you h e did n o t ge t back t o what you would call his 
normc;.l posit ion , would you say ho vras 15 or 20 yards - that -vn uld 
be a sign i f icant p art of your st atement, that he d id no t g ot 
bac k t o h i s normal position? ~"- • Ono of t he key not e s would be in 
affect tha t he should, in his normal position , be be t v.re en B and 
A on No.2 cut thr o ugh. 

Q. I quote f rom p .l5 of the tr anscrip t, Hr . Hope ' s evidence . 
Mr . Le e is a s king t ho que stion ~ 

"What did you do when you s m.,r the flash ? A. I stopped the 
shuttle c a r I \vas driving ." 

That indica t e s Mr . Hope was on h js way in?A.Ye s, I think that would 
bo right . -

Q. Then, in c onfirmation of that, p .37(a) of the transcript , 
or I think it is ~tt .Reynolds at p .25, about the four or fifth 
question fr om t he bottom, Mr . Reynold s was cross - examining Nr . 
HopG and the que stion was : 

nAs I Llrld e rstand itl at the actual ti.trlG you saw some f l ash 
or f.lamo you -vrero c ose to B he ading in No . 2 cut -thr ou~? 
a.Yes. . 

Q. You would not qui te have r e ached B heading? A. No . n 

Wha t -vms the distanc-e from B h ec.d i n g t o A. heading? A. I measured 
f rom rib to rib, 82 f ee t. 

Q.So in effec t Mr . Hova , according to evidenc e , vJas only a matter 
of s ome ya rds away? A· I would s a y that would be right . 

Q. Then y ou go on to say, in "conclusionsu at p . 21 of your 
sta tement: 

" Gas wa s pr e sent a t the time of ignition and its lea kage rat e 
thorough tho brat t ico was a ggravated a t tho time No . 4 0 shuttle 
car entered and tho ignition occurr ed by t he action of the 
s~uttle ca r causing a comparati voly high p r o ssur e drop in the 
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WITNESS: Yes . 
MR . PAHKINSON: 
Q. Do you see that?A . Ye s. 

n. Did not you say in yo ur statorrE nt also that one oft he 
; oa sons you gave VJas duo t o this period of time be for e No.40 
shuttle car was able to c ome down B ho ad ing - No .2 cut--through - ? 
A, Yes , I did advance that a s a poss ible r eas on. 

Q. - and as a r e sul t of this p ertod of time of the otho r sh ut t l e 
car going i n to the:. shunt that allovred , made provision for the 
fact , that there 1va s no upsurgence?A. That i s ri gt . 

Q. Yo u are not suggesting that t hor e wa s s ome depe nd ence up on 
shuttl '6 c ar s ventilating t h is s h unt? A. No , that was n o t ti1o 
int ention at all . 

o ,l..Jid you in you r inves ti ga t ions come to the conclusion that tho 
" s huttle car shunt had bee n a dequatoly ventilated? .A • .At "rha t 
point of time? 

q .At any po int of time , particularly prior to the i~ itnn? A.All 
r could depend on there is the fact that peoplG have t es t ed i n 
tho shunt and found it to be in a certain state , and I cannot go 
beyond that point. 

Q. \vhat conclusion did you ar .r ive at ? After all is said and 
done , you a r e sup posed to have made an independGnt investigation 
here and I take it by \vhat Hr . Reynolds s a id prior to you going 
int o the witnc:. ss box and what Mr . Wi l k inson said to you that 
anyth ing you could br i.r:.g t o this Inquiry that could assist Hi s 
Honor , you wer e to do so?A. Are you sugg e sting s omothing I have 
not in fact g ot in h e r e ? For i n st ance , I ham said already I 
would expoct under the conditions of comparat ively groat prGssure 
diffe r (:Jnc o you "rould, if gas wa s behind the screen, you would 
go t a much gr e ate r flow of ga s thr ough the brattico at tha t time •. 

Q, \1/hat I am saying is th is : As a r e sult of your investigation 
wha t conclusion did you ar rive at - that t ho shunt \<Tas adequately 
venti l a t ed or 1 in your op inion, the shunt was not adequately ven­
t ilated? A • .At tho timo of t h e ignition I vTOuld say quito cle;.J.rly 
t h1::1re was gas in tho shun t and t he r Gfore it was notad.equately 
ventilated . 

Q.Do you state that in your sta t ement? A. I think that has be en 
said , 

{~ • .-1.fter al l said and done,you a r e making a st atement to His Honor? 
A. No , it does not stat o that in plain word s but - - -

Q.BMt you were given certain, shall I uso the word , instructio~ 
by Mr.Wilkinson to make an indpendent investigation, \<r::. r e you 
not? A. Yos , a s far as I was able t o . 

Q • .Vould not you think, as a mining engineer, this sh unt being in· · 
~doquato ly ventilated "ras a vary important and significant thing? 
A. At that time ,ye s. 

~ .Would you say the brattice scroen that had been Greeted across 
A heading was n contributing f a ctor t o the inadequacy of the 
ventilation in tho shunt? -

HIS HONOR: I think the witness h as aLr eady made that perfectly 
clear. 

MR .PARKINSON: Q.You said, on p .l9, paragraph 95~ 
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"(95) It app ears that tho coloured plan as submitted to till 
court in ovidence is one such as woLlld be pr e pared by the 
survey staff in the ordinary pursuance of thoir dutie~ It 
could be expe ctGd that the number of lifts woulcl bo much mora 
numerous than as shown on the plan as the survey team would 
would shmv tho position as they could be able to determine 
at th o time of the ir visj_ts to the section." 

But tho plan, as \..J"e have it there, cloarly irrJ ica tes that 
hore ·was a tre mendous amount of coal being loft in thu pillars , 
doe sn't it? A, If you take tha t as ths indica tion,yes. 

Q.Wotl ld you sugge st any other l.,ray we ro uld take it, as a 
mining man? A. I suggest to you if the lifts wor e put on by 
s ome p a rson as thoy wore driven , these are daily occurr ences 
and if produced on tho plan you -vrould have much more de tail 
than you had on tha t one , 

Q,(Indicat e s on plan on floor of court) Would I be right in 
saying that where v.ro have tho colour Yellmv extraction has takEn 
place? A. I 1..J"OUld assume that to bG right , 

Q.Whero it is plain that is coal that has been left? A, That coLlld 
apply to that particular part . 

c,,That is ·what you would expect? 11. , In that particular part I 
would thin lc that would be reasonably correct . 

q ,And this pillar ~ore? A. You moan those pillars wore left in 
like that? 

Q_.Ye s . A. I would. be v Gry surprised if that was the case , 

Q.You would be ve ry surprised if that was coal loft? A. Yes. 

Q.Could we say these spaces outside , the endings of the spaces , 
that that was coal that was left? A. I think the extremoties 
would be fairly accurate . The othor par t may be subjec t ID 
some variation. 

Q. . Could we accept the fact, or wouJ.d you accept tho fact that 
it is marked like that and was complete extraction? A. N~ . 

Q.You have been here while evidence has been submitted? A. Mostly • 

• You heard Mr . Puddle, did you not , indicnto that there wor e 
substantial quantities of coal being left? A. Yo s. 

~~ . So what you are t e lling us no\•T is that that plan i s not a 
t rua picture of the situation, in your opinion? A, I can only 
expr e ss my opinion on this , whotm r I am right or not would 
depend on somo other featuro . I could not td 1 you exactly. 
I would expoc t ther ;s would. be more than that . 

HIS HONOR g (~ , You say , howovor , it ID uld surpr i se you if that 
r Gpresented the true ~~ount of extraction? A. Yos . 

MR.PARKINSON : Q.In paragr aph 97 you s ay : 

"The abnormal geological feat ures would IID st certainly cre9..te 
br1.d roof condi ticns and 'WOuld l eavo a f l oor that Vl.J uld bronk 
up and heavo very .. rend ily". 

Q. Yes . 

Q. You stated you vJGnt int o some whorG round about o. por tion of 
lvhs r o No . 4 cut-through would havo originally bGen? A. Yes . 

960e G,S8llers , further , xx . 



Q. Did you look for floor breaks? A. Yos . 

Q. Did you find any? a . I found the floor was up a little . I did 
not estimate how much . 

:4. You say you found oviden:: e cf floor break? 1\.. I fourr:l t h:: floor 
was up a lit tl e , y o s . 

Q.What do you mean when you say that?A . Tho full hoight of the 
soam wa s not pr G s on t . By jud gment I would a ssume tho f1 oor was 
up. 

~ . Did you find any evidence of floo r heave round a bout the close 
proximity of the present goa f ,-:,.r ea? A. Would you like to say 
particularly whe:r e? 

q,Say from C heading down along the goaf edge , dmvn past B headin g, 
down tovJards i~hoading . A. Not such a great deal . 

Q.I don ' t s ea anywhere in your st a t om3 nt whore you d i d SlY you 
saw fl oor hen.ve . CLlll you po int out to I1l3 anywhere in ycu r ovidence 
whore you say yo u had found floor heave i n that EP af? A. No , I cHn ' t. 

Q. t p . 324 of the transcript Mr . R. A.. Henzios was i..r1 tre "t<ritness box 
and I was asking him soma que stiorn : 

11 C~ . Now, this seom at present be ing workc; d at the Old Bulli 
Colliery: What is its nwnbor? A. No . 1 . 

Q. I s it a common occurrencG in pillar ext r act i on t o experien c e 
wha t is known a s floor heave ? A. In many cases y ou do have 
floor heave associated with pillar ext r action • 

. ~.Would you like to explain now this question of flo~ he0ve 
to His Honor? ;~. Floor heave is caused in the '"orki.ng a r eas 
of the pilla r ext r action district because of the we i ght of 
the super - incumbent stra ta acting upon the pillars and tha t 
weight being tr ansfe rred to t ffi floor which , bein g mora 
plastic than the coal t ends to flow and i n flowing i t f l ows 
i nto the roadwn.y i tsolf a nd we have the phen omerm ·kno1,n as 
floor heave . 

Q. Is tt only pillar pr e ssure that can c r ea te floor hec v e ? A. 
In instances overseas I have known where floor hea ve was caused 
by the pressurG of gases from s eams below. That phen omenon, 
however , is rather rar;i in my oxpe r io.nce . 

' . But it is still a possibility? A. Yes . 

Q. To your knowledge -v.ras there :J.nY evidence of floG' h3 avo 
in th C3 pre ceding g oaf area or the area tha t is th e subje et of 
this particular inquiry? A. I . didn ' t se o ony . 

HIS HONOR~ Q. You did not go thr ough the g oaf ~ 1r o a ? A. No . I 
am rofe r ring to the ed ge of the goaf , tm working a r ea . 

c~ . Hr . Parkinson , did you intond. your qrn stion to refer to 
nny p art of t he goaf or onl y the odgo ? 

HR . PARKINSON~ Any part of the goaf at all , from the commencement 
of pillar ext r ac t ion and particularly in the workings wher e the y 
wore working at tho time of the disaster. 

HIS HONOR: Q.Would you have to go into t~o goaf to see whether 
there was any ovid.ence of that ? A. No. 

~ . You would have Ea en i t ,. -vrould you? A. Yes . 
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Q. But you sa'\.r no e videnc e of i t a t all? A. No evidence . " 

The managor of thE; Coll i ery made a s t a tomont and gave e vidence . 
Ho indicat ed ho had from time t o t ime visited this p articular 
a r ea. The r G wa s n o evidenc e fr om the ma na ger of floor h oQv e . 
y0 u hoa rd the manager ' s evidenc e 7 A . I be 1 i ove I did . 

Q. You he ard the e vidence of Hr . puddle ? .t\ , I heard some of Hr , 
puddl e ' s €Vidence , I did rot hear it a l l . 

q. Did Hr . Puddle a t rny time - have you discusse d t h is wit h 
Hr . Puddl e n t any time? A. No . 

Q. Hr . Puddlo at no time indica ted t he r e had be en any floor heav e . 
Isn 't it a f a ct t ha t the on ly r e f Gr ence t ha t Mr . Puddle o r the 
m~nager has made is in r e l a tion to r oof c ond ition s ~1d no signs of 
floo r heave ? A. t·Jell, I d Dn ' t t hink perhaps y ou a r G qui t e right 
the r e . I t h ink;pu might f i nd whor e s omebody has indica t ed they 
had t o brush the floor a t the i n t ers ection of A on No . 2 cut - through . 
Tha t i s tho only r ef er ence I c~n t h ink of tha t would ha~ be en 
made . 

Q, You heard that r e f er ence made? A. I believe I did . 

~~ . \vil s t hat a s a r e sult o f floor hoaw? A. Oh , I would s a y so. 

f. eTha t wa s n ot in the goa f area? A. No but it i s allied to the 
goaf ar ea. It is qu i te common for the solid place to have 
fl oor he av e adjac ent to the go a f . In f a ct , I have seen a s e am 
of f our or five f ee t t hicknes s have the floor come right up to 
t he foof by a proc e ss of h eaving ad jacent to tho goaf . 

C. . In your i nves tigation on this oc c nsion did you ha vo a 
look a t t ha t int ersecti on ? A. Ye s . 

(1, You told. me it prob a bl y wa s fl oor heetve , Wa s ther e my 
fur the r signs o f flo~ heav e ? A. No, the r e we r e cracks in the 
floo r but the y we r e ve r y ve ry fin e cra cks , they wer e not o pen cr a cks . 

Q. Hairline c r acks? A. vve ll , in tha t n a ture • . I did not see eything 
vor y much wide r t han that . 

(~ . You don • t doubt the quali f ica tions of Nr . Nonz i e s? A. No , ro t a t ll . 

~ .Would you agr ee in s ubstanc e wi th what Mr . Menzie s h a s stated? 
A, I would ngr oe the r e is not a great sign o f floor hoave j ust i n 
the immedia te vicinity of tho goa f e dge , 

'j, Nowhere in your s ta_tomon t do you ind ica t e the r e was any sigJ. of 
f loor heave ? A. I nove r s o t out to particular l y do so . 

Q, All you st a t e d in your st a teme nt is th at i t co uld h avo be en? .. ~ . 
Tha t is quit e right . 

-4• I f you ha d seo n floor h on.vo y ou wo uld ha ve ~ aid in your 
s t~. toment it wa s floor her.Lve? A. Well , the type of floor he a ve 
I l·lOl:lld have in mind is just not quite alliGd to the one you :1r o 
talklng a bout . The one I am tal king about is mor o of a broad. 
por t ion of floor ho :1ve , whic h is n_ most common f eo. ture in a goaf . 

Q.Would n ot it be a form of de t on a tion if the r e w2 s any emission 
f r om the f loor? A· No , not n e ce s s ar ily . 

Q, No bump ? A. The r e cruld be a bump . 

Q. You said at p aragraph 99 that it would m t be po s sible for ;ny 
Person who had not so en the ,,!Orking c onditions in tho are a goafe d 
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in some detail t o knm.; whethe r o r rP t the ma thod was good ?r ba d . 
Which method wer e you referring to? A. I wa s really r eferrlng to 
the p rocedure of taking out p illars - thB order - what was l e ft 
and what was not left . 

~ .You were jus t r Gferring to pillar extraction generally ? A. Yes . 

q . Nothing to d.o vrith ventilation conditions? i1. . Tha. t is corroc t. 

l,! ~So you did not cp prove of this particular pl an of o xtraction? 
~. I think I s a i d very clea r l y i t would be impossibl e for anybody 
not s ee ing it to know whe ther it was good or bad . 

CL. So you are 
I c ould not . 

m t pr oparod to say vrho t hor it vras gJ od or ba d? A. 
I c ould not p ossibly say i t. 

~. The only rea son you won ' t do it is because you had not seen 
tho detail s? A. That is right . Had I beGn in it I would say • 

Q. In paragraph 100 you s ay • . 
"In working the panel it was the intention to hav e a h ead i ng 
on tho ou tby side and parall el to the head.i ng from which 
lifts we r e to be takon and for fu is h ead ing to act a s the 
drainage path for the v entilation that would travel by 
direction along the goaf odge . 11 A. That is right . 

c~.nThis is a very good practice a nd the e;nount o f gas that wo"uld 
bo detected with this system in ope r a tion could be expected to be 
small . n A. Ye s . 

~ . That wa s the original ventilating syst e ffi · that included and 
made provision for the bleeder head ing ? 1 ... . That is as I understand 
it . 

~ .You thought that was sound? A. Yes . 

HIS HONOR : I have spok en to CounsGl in my chambers . It is antic ­
ipated the evidence will finish to- day . I had indicat ed earlier 
that I would expect Couns e l t o c ommence the ir ad dr es ses i lnmediate ­
ly wi thou t any i nterruption to the hearing . HO\vcve r, I have r e ­
considered that view. It seems t o me the r e arc s evor a l con­
siderations to be t a ken i n to account , one of which - and this is 
an important one - is t hat it i s v e r y difficult for everybody , 
including Counse l of course to keep up with the reading of t h e 
transcrip t, and. it is no cos sa ry fo r Counsel t ,) be up to da t e in 
that r e ading before p r epar ing their addresse s . Th8ro for e I have 
decided vre shall not sit t o - morrm.r . The hearing will recommence 
a t 10 o 'clock on Monday morning ru1d c ontinua until it is 
compl e t e d without interr up tion . I would expect it t o be completed 
some t ime n ext week . 

1·1R. PARK IN S ON~ Q.. At the ad j ournment we finishe d 
par agr aph 100 a t p . 2o of your statement , page 
transcrip t, wher e you agr eed that the original 
ventilat ion 1.-ras 2.. sound method? A. Ye s . 

on the po i n t of 
917 of the 
me thod of 

~ . Then paragraph 101 (p . 917) you sta te " it appears that af t e r the 
Pillar marked ( 10 ) on the c olourod pl an was extracted the c onditions 
relating t o the p illar marked (11 ) were r eaching a p oint where some 
collapse v.ras envisaged." What wer e the circumstance s tha t brought 
You to r each tha t conclusion?A. 11\foll , I did ho C!.r Mr . Puddl e and one 
or two of thG othors talk a tout this situation an d I do s a y 11 i t 
appears" - tha t is exa ctly wha t a~)pearGd to mo . I d on ' t know for 
SLlrG myself , a s I have s a id quit o clearly in othor par ts . 

-~ . You do rtot know for sura? 1·· I'ro • i. • . ~ • 
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' Q.But you are inferring? A.I believe that that was the case. 

Q.And don 't you think that t h is b e ing the actual situation , 
Mr . Puddle wo uld have made s ome r efe r ence t o this whi le he was in 
the box ? ~ . I wo uld n o t know. I just can 't -

Q. But he me.de some refe rence to you about it ? A. No , I t h inl-i: what 
1 heard c o.me from the transcrip t somevThE' re, or frcrn vrh a t I heard . 

Q. Tha t there were imminent prospects of col lap se in t his particular 
ar e a? A. Well , I understand - and I am a fraid I can't tell you 
from what s o urce, simply beca use I just don ' t remember it.-
but I have no doubt it c oul d be refreshed and brought to light if 
it vi a s necessa ry. 

Q. But then of course Y?U had s~ated tha~ you \v<:mld ha ve t o h ave 
personal kno-vrledge of the detalls of thls partlcular gonf area 
bef ore you c ould arrive at any c onclusion? A. That is right, 
that is quite so. 

Q. You sta te at paragraph 102, pagQ . 917 , n;..t the time the evidence 
available t o the partie s concerne d in the decision to tale out 
(ll) befor driving n pl a ce c..hea d to allmv the air to circulate 
along the goaf edge was that the ge:1. s in the goaf was of a n oxious 
na ture and therefore m n-inflammable." You say " available to the 
uarties ." What parties? What were the people who compri sed the 
parties you h a d in mind? A.I gathered , rightly or wrongly , t hat 
people had found , in the main, noxious gases. In othe r words, 
the r e \•rere extinct ive gases in the area , the a r ea of the g oaf . 

Q, But you did hear Hr . Puddl e ::nake a st a t ement in the: b ex that h e 
accepted full r e sponsibility - h e and he alone accep ted full 
r e sponsibility in the change in t he ventilation? A. I aP1 rot s ure 
that I did, Mr . Park inson. What y ou say CJUld be quite right. 

Q. Then you g:::> on to say 11 It is n ot uncommon for mine s to be 
Horked wit h unventilated. goafs and in mine s where s pontaneous 
combustion oc curs ventilat i on of the goaf would be frmmed upon 
and c:1.rr ied out when no alterna tive co'1ld be found. Under eo n-
dit i ons where heatings are possible the presence of i ner t gase s 
in t he goaf is most desira ble.'' vlas there evGr .my semblan ce of 
hee. ting in this particular c.r e a to your knoHledge ? A. I have 
never knm·m of onG c a se of heating in the Bulli s ea rn . 

Q. Then why ·,,ras that inc luded ·in your statement? A.Well I included 
that to show that in s ome cas es it was the practice to have 
Oll W1Ve ntilated. goaf , particularl y one with "ine-rt gas . in 
it , and it could be done . 

q, But in diffe r ent circwnstances altogethe r from those which 
exist ed in 8 Right? A. Well t that could be so , yes, but it doe s n 't 
mean - I think that shm·iS lt could. be done: s hould it be d.osirable 
to do so. 

Q. ,lnd this \v<lS an unventilated. go a f in 8 Right , was it no t , a ft e r 
the change i n the v entila ti·::m? h . The r e v.rGr e aren.s 1.vhich '\>Ie r e fairly 
stagnant . 

Q. And. \vould you s ay that the infGr ence hr~r e was to p oint out "vle l l 
no~, it is not unc ommon practice to h ave unventilat ed goa v e s "?A. 
Qu1te r i P"ht . 

0 

Q. And would you say there was some effort to relate it to 8 Right? 
J~ .On my par t? 

Q.Yes? A. I think that would be correct. 
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Q. But this was dealing with spontaneous combustion, the latter 
part of your statement, wasn't it?A. Clearly a reference to 
spontaneous combustion, yes. 

Q. ~d that is a situation that is almost unknown in this district? 
A. As I said, I don 1 t know of any one ca se i n the Bulli Coal Seam. 

Q. ~ou said, again at p.20 of your statement, a t para. (104), 
p.917, "It is understood that it wa s the intention to hole the 
place (13) on plan and then to drive a split down the middle of 
the pillar parallel to Noso 2 and 3 headings. It would bave 
been better to have driven the split befor e t he holing took 
pl ace. 11 (Approadhing Exhibit "A"). What you are saying he r e 
now is tha t you would not have holed from ther e but you wculd 
have driven this pillar before you holed?A. That is how I 
would do ito 

Q . . Now how would you ventilate tha t split on t he pre sent set up? 
A. I would put - firstly you would have to put bra ttic e down 
in the present machine place. 

Q. You would r emove the vent tubes?A. Ye s - put the bra t t ice in. 

Q • .hnd you would put bra ttice in?A. Yes. I would t ake the bra ttice 
down tha t ha s been so much in~estion. I would go to the spot 
t hat caused the ventila tion to run round t he goaf from both C 
and B headings and to come out A~ 

Q. Around the goaf edge?A. And k eep tha t pl ace clean, ye s. 
To do tha t I would possibly re-erect a bra ttice be tween A and B 
on No. 2 cut-through and perhaps also a siJjlilar one bet\<reen C 
and B. And of course, to complete the picture , you would want 
another one somewher e near the crib room just to make sure ·your 
air did go right down t he goafo That could be a possible 
varia ti'Jno 

Q. And tha t would be your me thod of ventilating?A Tha t is right. 

Q. And then you would proc eed down the pillar and t hen you 
would hole into t he goaf?A. Tha t is right, ye s. 

Q. During the course of pr oceeding down tha t pillar, how many 
dead-ends would you have?h. Dead-ends - would you just clarify 
v1ha t you mean by a dead- end? Do you mean a standing place which 
ha sn 1 t holed? 

~ . Well, you have a dead- end now in No. 2 cut-through, have 
you not?A. Tha t is righto 

Q. It ha s not holed through into the goaf?A. You mean the miner 
pl ace? 

Q. Ye s. A. That is a dead-end, y es. 

Q. And would not splitting the pillar be another dead- end?A. Ye s, 
it would, till it holed~ 

Q. But it would be another dead- end?A. Yes. 

Q. You know the manager has already indica ted in evidence tha t he 
ha s given instructions tha t ther e ar e to be no more dead- ends? 
A. Yes. 

~ · You know tha t?A. Well, I would expect t ha t to be quite a good 
1nstruc ti on. 

Q. A good instruction, but this method of splitting t he pillar 
as t he se t up is a t the moment, you \<Jould be crea ting another 
dead- end, would you not, until such time a s you holed?A. That 
could be so, but ther e would be nothi ng wrong with tha t. In 
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doing these things you must m nsider the advantages that you gain 
and take them overall i n considering what is to be done . 

q. Would. you not thi nk. th~n i~ -vrould. be better ~ining practice to 
come to about there (lndlcatlng ), about one t hlrd of the way down 
the pi.llar , and immediately hole into the goaf? A. No . I am not 
very koen on splitting a pillar in that way . 

Q. . Do you agrGe that it is accepted mining engineering theory now 
that it is most desirable to extract pillar s without splitting? 
A. It has been the practice in this field as long as I know of 
to make the biggest possible pillars and take them cut on a 
lif t pr incipl o . 

HR . L:EE : Q. You do not split them? A. No , not if you can avoid it . 

HIS HONOR: Q. In other words you lift bit by bit without splitting 
through?A. Yes . Under certain circumstances ~ I mean, this is a 
very broad statement, Your Honor , and I would like you to keep 
in mind a lot c ould flow from thi s if the quest i on Hr . Parkinson 
probably , .. rants is to be answered fully . I mean, thi s is l:tl 
answer to nothing o. t this stage . 

Q.r thought it was an an swer to ~r . Parkinson ' s question? A. Yes , 
~:Jell , I run anticipating it goes a l ittle bit further . I beg your 
Honor ' s pardon and. Mr . Parkinson ' s pardon also. 

HR .PARKINSON: I did. not intend to rursue that any further, YoJ.lr 
Horror. Probably 1'1r . Reynolds may have somothj_ng t o say in :t fe-~v 
minutes time . 

Q.However, the fact rema ins that the way you would have ope r ated 
there by introducing that split , you would have been ere~ ing two 
dead ends~ would you not? A. I would have had. two places open 
at the one time not being holod - right . 

Q. you would have had to have another confe r ence vrith the Hanager, 
1-rould.n ' t you , because that would be in defiance of his instr uctions? 
Novr , at paraGraph 105 , page 918 , I am a bit confused on this and 
I mys elf want some clar ifi Cft t i on. 11 The si tu a tion n.s ind id a ted. 
in (94) Qlld. (104) above had nothing to do with the ignition of 
gas ." Well , you correct me if I am wrong , but a re you rP t of the 
~~derstanding that the actual ignition of gas was created , on 
the only evidence we have before us at the pre sent moment , of n 
piece of v.rood becoming lodged in the disc brakes or the brake 
discs , r n.the r , and c harring , c oking , hoo.ding up to the point of 
i gn ition? A. I have heard the evidence , yes . 

9•Paragraph (94 ), page 916 , " In the court p roceedings it has been 
lndicated that the mining pr actice has not been good and ~ has 
been inferred. that this has been in a large measure the c ~use of 
the acc i den t . 11 A. Yout· Honor, if I may I think that word "and" 
should have been expunged , indica ting ~ (94) t o (104) ." i;Jould Your 
H,Jnor allow me to r ead. it right through just to mako sur a? 

HIS HONOR~ Yes . 

1tliTNESS ~ I think it would be n fair statement to say that that 
applied to all t ho s e st~tements in general without specifically 
applying to one . 

In s HONOR~ Q. . Hhat you ar e saying is that the vrord " 2-11.d " should read. 
nto"? A. Y6s , that i s right. 

Q. That i s "(94) to (104) " ? A. Yes . It is indicated in thom all . 
I <}T1ologise f or that , Sir . 
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Q. You are crossing out the word "and11 in "94 and 104n and 
substituting the word ttto"'?A. Ye s. 

HIS HONOR: In para., (105) p.918, it will now r ead "The 
situa tion a s indica t ed in C94) to (104) above had nothing to 
do with the ignition of ga s11

a 

MR. PARKINSON: Those ar e a l l t he que stions I de sire to a sk . 

MR . MURRAY: Q. We have heard a lot in t his Inquiry, and f r om 
wha t you have said I t ak e it tha t you a lso ha ve heard it or 
r ead it, conc erning an occ a sion following t he acc ident when 
t he conditions existing a t t he time of t he ignition wer e sought 
to be r econ structed. Do you understand me?A. Ye s, I believe I 
do. 

Q. And you were pr e sent in the mine on tha t occa sion'?A. Some time 
aft er t he actual inspections took pl ace. 

Q. On the occa sion you wer e pr e sent in t he mine , wer e t he 
conditions a s they had been recon structed?A. I understood so. 

Q. What do you say a bout t he r econstructed conditions? ~re you 
able to offer any comment a s to whe ther t hey wer e r eally 
r econstructed, whe ther the bra ttice wa s t he same '?A. Well, I t hliik 
t hey were r ea sonably so, but you will apprecia t e t ha t aft er an 
event such as happen ed it would be most difficult t o ge t t hings 
back exactly a s they wer e ., 

HIS HONOR: Q. You did not know the conditions a s t hey wer e a t the 
time ?A. No, I didntt. Tha t is a gen er a l sta t ement. I did not 
know - I had never been in ther e befor e . 

Q. I do not know how you make a comment a s t o whe ther some thing 
wa s a proper r econstruction unle ss you knew vlha t wa s be ing 
r econ structed" A. Well, the only comment I could make i.Va s t ha t 
t he f all must certainly would change t he r esistanc e of t he air 
flow in some of the a irways., I don 't t hink anything else would 
change . 

MR. MURRAY: Q. I will put it this way: for t he condition s to 
have a chance of being accura t ely simula t ed, the brattic e in 
the shunt ~~uld have to be a tight bra ttic e , would it not?A. I am 
sorry , again I 1.v-ould not know. I never saw t he bra ttice and I 
don't think anybody c ould give any r eliable i nforma tion on this 
point. ' 

Q. You have had experienc e in t he industry over a number of year s 
and , from wha t you have said, some experienc e of the particular 
workings in this mine?A. I have been in t he mine on quit e a 
number of occasions. 

Q. The deputy on t he shift on which t he accident took pl a c e , 
t he maintenanc e shift, would in t he ordinar y course of t hings 
have c arried out a number of t e sts in the plac e during t ha t 
maintenance shift, would he not'?A. I would ver y much have expected 
i t . 

Q. For t he purpose of fighting . a mine fir e it is e ssentiQl tha t 
those carrying out the oper a tions have accura t e informa tion 
concerning the l ayout of the workings, including the existenc e 
o~ any screens or stoppings?A. Ye s, I think tha t would be quit e 
r1ght. 

Q. Indeed, it would be most e ssentia l for the effic i ent conducting 
Of such opeTations tha t the officer or offic ers in charge have a 
plan which shmved the latest d e tails of wha t exist ed?A. Ye s, 
right up to da te., 

G. Sellers, xx. 



MR· SULLIVAN: Q. You are chairman of directors at Huntley 
now, are you?A. Ye s. 

Q. It is a fact, is it not, that miners have now been issued 
with this survival k it?A. Yes. 

Q. And they are 11/earing them on their belt s?A. I think they are 
doing it very consistently now. 

Q. They are doing it very consistently - tha t has happened 
since the fir e , hasn't it?A. Well I think there were some 
cases wher e they were a little bit neglectful, but I und erstand 
the attitude has changed. 

Q. Everybody has got them now and they are supplied by the 
Colliery? A. Yes. 

Q. I understand you have got a foam machine to be kept at the 
pit top, have you not?A. That is so. 

Q. And apparently your directora te considers that is very 
de sirable, in the event of fire?A.Tha t is so. 

Q. And it can be got into the mine if necessary, to any part, 
by loco ?A. Yes, well, we hope tha t that will be attained at a 
very early d a te. 

Q. You hope you do not have to use it ?A. Tha t is so. 

Q. I want to ask you about the t e sting and I will not be very 
O.ong. (A pproaching Exhibit 11A11 ) Incidentally, is a contour 
map available to the manager and ubder-manager such as you have 
been good enough to provide us with?A. I would believe so. 

Q. As I understand the position, be tween the intersection of 
No . 2 cut-through and A heading there is a drop of rome thing 
like 30 fe e t?A. Between the intersection of - I did not ge t 
exac tly the point you mentioned. 

Q. I will see whether I can point you out the position. I am 
sorry, be tween here and where it wa s intended t o hole into the 
goaf , there is a drop of some 30 feet, is ther e , if you wllld 
not mind having a look?A. It is in tha t order, yes. 

Q. It is in tha t order; I do not want to bind you do\<m t o a 
few feet. And at the time you examined the area the pool, if 
I may call it, of gas had ext ended a s far as the end of A h eading? 
A. No. I n my earli e st inspection it was a little this way 
towards B heading. 

Q. Towards which way?A. Towards the c entre heRding, B heading. 

Q. It had comple tely got over A heading, had it?A. Ye s. 

Q. At tha t stage it was 4 f ee t deep a t A heading, was it?A.Well , 
I must c onfe ss tha t I did not make any mea sure a t the junction 
of A heading and t he goaf of what the height might be . 

Q. It would have been a good 4 f eet, would it not, on the contours§ 
~ . Well, according t o this, on what I have said it would be 
7 feet. 

Q. 7 f ee t? Tha t highy would it?A. Ye s. 

Q. It wa s rich in me t hane , appar ently, was it? I think tha t is 
the expr e ssion you used yourself?A. Ye s. 

Q. It was rich in methane - well, I suppose if you t e sted that 
With an oil flame safety l amp there would have been no doubt t hat 
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you would have found - practically any test er would have found 
the methane?A. Well, I want to be strictly correct - you could 
not t e st in that position. You will forgive me- you couldn't 
t est Ln those circumstances. You could not get in there. 

Q. We will take the bra ttice o~t 1 you see. A. Would you ask 
me the que stion again please Slr( I misunderstood you. 

Q. You have a pool there?A. Ye s. 

Q. That is at the late stage when you looked a t it, it was 
7 f eet de ep?A. Yes. 

Q. Assuming you could put a lmmp in it, you see; you would have 
undoubtedly found the methane?A. No, it would have put the lamp 
out. 

HIS HONOR: Q. The methane would have put the lamp out?A. Even if 
it was only methane. 

Q. Not enough oxygen?A. Ye s. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Q. So that would have alerted you of conditions 
dangerous straight away?A. When your light goes out tha t is a sure 
sign there is some thing there - there is some r eason. 

Q. You are sure there is some thing very dangerous there?A. Yes. 

Q. Now 2 putting up that brattice also could prevent that pool 
from being tested, could it not?A. Yes, exc ept, if I may say, 
you could test it on B he ading. It is the same pool of gas. 

q. But if it had not reached the level at B heading you could not 
have, unless you 1.<1ent in be tween B and A ?A. You must go round 
be tween B and A. You could t est it anywhere you had air. 

MR. McNaLLY: Q. Just one que stion about testing. If one were to 
use the safety l amp and lower into Illawarra bottom gas and 
have the lamp not at its lowest level, the non-luminous flame, 
but be low the highest flame, a little bit less than the highest 
flame - if one lower ed it into Illawarra bottom ga s and got to 
the layer where it could be tested, would one notice an increase 
in the flame itself? To put it another way: What effect would 
it have upon the safe ty lamp?A. Well, perhaps I will have to 
answer this in a little bit of a round about way. When you 
put a safety lamp with a fairly full flame into a CH4 mixture, 
unless you have r eached a critical point in it the immediate 
reaction is to enlarge your flame somewhat. 

Q. Tha t is the methane causing it?~. Ye s. Supposing you were 
t e sting near the roof and you found it w·ith the flame, that is 
what would happen. If you go down :tnto Illawarra bottom gas and 
you have a fairly high CH4 content in it - well, that would be 
your reaction because when you are getting near to the 
extinctive stage that does not happen. 

Q. What do you call a fairly high CH4 content?A. Well, I would 
describe the gas that I saw in there as a fairly high methane 
content. 

Q. That is the gas that was there on the day?A. Yes. 

MR. SULLIVAN: "Rich in methane 11 was the expression, I think. 

WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. McNALLY: Q. Just briefly, in talking about the simulated 
conditions you referred to the roof fall. Was the re to your 
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knowledge a considerable amount of fall in the intersection of 
A heading, No . 2 heading?A. A heading? 

Q. And No . 2 cut-through?A. It was not a great fall. 

Q. It was not sufficient to affect - A. A couple of feet. 

Q. It was not sufficient to affect the at t empt to simulate the 
conditions that existed at the time of the fire?A. Well, it 
would pertain particularly to the flow of air between No . 2 
cut-through, between B and A. If anything it would tend to 
show a reduction in pre ssure after the fire as compared with 
before the fire. 

Q. Would you agree \vi t h this broad proposition, and then we can 
perhaps go to the details: That in dealing with findings made 
under simulated conditions one must have a grm t d eal of 
reservation, and I direct that particularly to the finding of 
gas, the detection of gas?A. Well, only in this respect, but 
I think I have pointed out here what happens when the shuttle 
cars go backwards and forwards and I thiru~ that would be a vital 
difference. I don 1 t know wha t was done during the tests that 
were carried out, I wasn 1 t ther e and I did not enquire. 

Q. You do not know, and I do not ~~ ink we do, whether a shuttle 
car was in the shunt at all at the time the tests were made? 
A. No. It wa s not there when I was there. 

Q. Or, whether shuttle cars had been \vheeled in and out of the 
shunt shortly before?A. I would doubt whether that would h ave 
happened but -

Q. And such things as the positioning of the bleed tube and the 
tightness of the brattice a t the back of the shunt itself would 
be material in determining just how good the at te.mp t was?A. Well, 
I would say, without seeing the first one, that the second one 
could be somewhat different from the first one with the result 
tha t the ga s could come out in a somewhat different way. 

HIS HONOR: Q. But you would expect the gas to come out?A. It 
would still come out. 

Q. And in the first place you would accept that gas was coming 
out a t the time of the fire?A. That is right. 

MR. McN~LLY : Q. I do not mEan to sugge st that this attempt to 
simulate the conditions was worthle ss. I mean, we can r ely 
to some exten t upon the findings made under the simulated 
conditions?A. Yes. 

Q. But one must trea t those findings with a great deal of 
reservation?A. Well, in the respect that thGre is no shuttle 
car as I have been demonstra tli1g, and I believe fairly well 
that ther e was a difference. 

Q. Jmd the gas may well have been coming into t he shunt in a 
different way from what it had been while the other brattice 
Was ther e?A. Well, you could have been ge tting a j et effect 
through a particular hole which perhaps did not appear in the 
second brat tic ea 

Q. And I think you saiqkarlier, that due to thQ loss of veloci~ 
as you ge t away from the entrance to the bleed tube, it vo u:a 
be important just where the bleed tube was placed under the 
simulatEd conditions?A. It would be, yes. 
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RE-EXAMINATION : 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. There is one matter I believe you would like 
to clear up. .At para. (lOO), p.917i you dealt with the 
drainage path, as you call it, in pi lar extraction and your 
concluding sentence was this: 11 This is very good practice and 
the amount of gas that would be detected with this system in 
operation could be expected to be small." Now, do you say 
that there is any certainty or that the provision of such a 
drainage tube would eliminate such a situation as arose in 
this case?A. It is my opinion that in general that would be 
the case, but llice all mining there could be exceptions to this. 
For instance, I have indicated already that that particular 
place there could possibly hole and meet a barrier which would 
not allow any great amount of gas to go through. Now you 
could have that situation develop, say, during the time that 
one of the lifts was c oming off and you waid ge t almost a complete 
stoppage going through with that particular drainage tube. 
And in effect, you could have a very similar condition develop 
to what you had during the time of the ignition. 

Q. Do you say, for example, if you had put a bleeder in and you 
found a situation arose 7 which could arisei that it was blocked 
off as an effective dralnage path, you wou d then have to 
go and drive another one or clear it in some way and make 
temporary provision for ~entilation, or withdraw the work? 
You had this sort of alternatives?A. Well~ you would have to have 
something like that. Of course you could have a situation 
where, say, even before the fire, where the people concerned 
perhaps again think they have noxious gas and perhaps they 
would not worry too much about it. Perhaps you could have that 
place taking some gas that could rest on the bottom due to the 
stagnant atmosphere. It could be f enced off, you could have 
a shuttle car parked in the entrance which is just against A 
heading. You could be taking out cars up the split that was 
proposed off h and you could then have the goaf lower down 
building up with gaso It is quite a logical si. tuation that it 
could happen and you could also then have a fall, even a roof 
fall, which could cause the opening to become effective again 
and you could then get quite a high flow of gas over where the 
shuttle car was. I mean, there is no certainty in mining, Mr. 
Reynolds. You have always got to be vigilant. 

Q. I think we have all come to understand tha t. A. Yes. 

(Witness retired and excused) 

HIS HONOR: I make any usual order as to witness's expenses. 

Have you your next witness, Mr. Lee? 

:MR. LEE: Yes. 

HIS HONOR: Before tha t witness is called, I want to dra"\v the 
attention of Mr. MoNally and other counsel to the question that 
was raised this morning as to the time that elapsed after 1~. 
Stewart had made such tests as he did make in the shunt and the 
time of the fire . I have only found two r eferences. There 
may be others, and I draw the attention of counsel to these so 
that they may be able to assist me as to the finding of others. 
The first is in the evidence of Mr. Mangles at the bottom of 
p .. 45, the second last question, nQ. I want to ask you about what 
you said •••••••• tha t is why you said tha t?.A. Ye s. 11 

The other reference is from the evidence of Mr. Jones 
at p.6o. He was describing who was there at the timber bay 
and sa id, 11 At the timber bay there was Deputy Stewart ••••• 
• • •• I am not too sure of that.'1 At the fourth question at 
the top of the next page, 11 Q. How long had Charlie Stewart 
been t alicing to you.o•e••••new chap . 11 
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MR. McNALLY: I have always assumed and still do tha t tha t part 
is evidence tha t Mr. Stewart was ther e with the other men for 
a quarter of an hour befor e the fire, aft er he t e st ed. On 
y0 ur Horror's r eading of it, if you t ake it t ha t Mr. Stewart had 
been there in the section for half an hour when the other men 
came in 7 everyone said they arrived ther e at t en t o eight -
that stlll pl ace s it at half past ei ght. I r ealise the 
significance of ita Perhaps t hen it was not significan t but 
it certa inly is now. So tha t there is no eonfusion, I understand 
Deputy Stewart went down t o sit on the back of t he miner, further 
down for t en minute s, then he went back up t o where the others 
were. 

HIS HONOR: It will have t o be clear ed up, but it does not have 
to be clear ed up by evidenc e . As I understand it, the only 
evidenc e that could be given on it is by Mr. Jone s. Do you 
\<Tant Mr. Jone s r ecalled? 

MR. McNALLY: Yes, or somebody. 

HIS HONOR: Mr. Jone s is the man who gave the evidence. He 
can explain what he hi mself said. When can he be ca lled? 

MR. SULLIVAN: Apparently he is A.E.U. We could ge t him 
about 3 o 1clock or perhaps before . I am now informed he can be 
her e by 2 o 1 clock. 

HIS HONOR: He should be brought a s soon a s possible. The 
only r ef er ence to this half an hour is evidence of Mr. Jones 1 

and there seems to be some confusion or some ambiguity, apparently, 
existing in the evidenc e c Mr. Jone s is the man to clear up 
wha t he meant, so he will be r ecalled. 

MR. LEE: Mr~ Muir who has given evidenc e here pr epared a paper, 
not f or this Inquiry but in connection with another matter but 
it is very pertinent here and it may save a lot of time It 
deals with 11 1. Pre sent detection me thods in c ommon use·and 
new seam gas de tection equipment. 2., Present r equirements 
of t he law. 11 The r e is nothing c ontroversial in it. 
It indicates the Depa~rtment 1 s knowledge of wha t equipment ther e 
is t o deal with detectiono 

HIS HONOR: This does no t t ouch any question on which rounsel is 
interested from the point of view of his client, unless Mr. 
Reynolds, perhaps ; but this is a question of sugge stions which 
will weigh in my mind when making any obser7ations I may thin.k 
fit? 

MR . LEE: Tha t is so. Firstly I was going t o sugge st that 
Mr. Herron could r ead this statement and then I might produce on 
the Bar table here, in order to save t he calling of witnesses, 
certain pieces of equipment which are mentioned in this. We 
could then all look at them. If it is necessary, Mr. Menzies 
could come forward and demonstrate them if Your Honor requires 
~ur~her information, but most of t he informa tion tha t fu nec e ssa ry 
1s 1n here. In this way we could all be informed and it 1.vill 
obviate the necessity to call a witness and will therefore be 
much quickero 

HIS HONOR: I take it any questions tha t may be a sked will not 
be by way of cross- examination but by way of explana tion? 

}ffi. LEE: I would think soo 

HIS HONOR: Is ther e any objection to that course? (No r e sponse) 

MR. SULLIVAN: Before the evidence close s, the big mine plan 
which Your Honor may wish to look at has not yet been formally 
tendered. It is on subpoena from me and it is here in Court. 
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Mr. Stone says it ms all right f or i t to bG r e t ained. 

(No obj ection to t ender) 

(Large plan of mine admitted and mar ked 
Exhibit 11 11 11 ) 
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(Sta t ement of M.J. Muir da t ed 7th February 1966 
re ~d by Mr. Herron, as follows: 

n GAS CONCENTRATION MEASUREMENTS AND THE 1~ 

By M. J. HUJJR 

1. Pre sent de t ection me thods in common use 
and 

New seam ga s d e t ection equipment. 

2. Pre sent r equir ements of the l aw. 

7th February, 1966. 

Inspector of Collieries, Specia l Dutie s. 

Ther e ar e a number of instruments in common use in 
coal mine s for the de t ection of Me t hane , Carbon Dioxide and 
Hydrogen Sulphide . 

The se instruments have c ertain a dvantage s and disadvantage s. 

The se instruments are displayed~ 

I nstruments for continuou s de t ection , r ecording and 
monitoring of Me t hane ar e available . Ther e ar e possibilitie s 
in t heir futur e applica tion t o underground equipment. 

The Coa l Mine s Regula t ion Act ha s a number of r equirements 
wi th r egar d to t he de t ection of mine ga se s and action to be 
taken . 

Pr esent common de t ection me thods METHANE: 

Oil Flame Saf e ty Lamp 

The oil flame saf e ty l amp ha s been t he main det ecting means 
for me t hane in t he coal mines of this Sta t e . The lamp 
commonly used is a bifold burner typ e , using k erosene fuel and 
may or may not be fitt ed with a shut-off rin g for top f eed. 

However, it ha s been e stabli~hed tha t top f eed l amps ar e 
incapable of de t ecting thin me thane l ayers due t o convection 
eff ects, and a r ec ent development ha s been an oil lamp fitt ed 
with a pro be a ttachment 'tvhich can draw a sample of the 
suspected atmospher e into t he l amp from ad j ac ent t o t he roof 
or from near the floor. 

A further r efinement is the use of a lamp burning spirit 
and fitt ed with a r elighter arrangement. This ~irit lamp with 
probe will undoubtedly find an increasing use in mine s in 
this Sta t e . 

Electrical Means of De t ection 

The most common type of el ectrica lly-oper a t ed det ector is 
po~er ed by an inbuilt battery supply and works on the Whea tstone 
~r~dge principle wher eby the current flo1.1 in one el ement of t he 
r1dge varie s with increa sed hea t, due to the combustion of me thane 

on t~e element. This is r eflected on a ga lvanometer or 
milllampme t er suitably gradua t ed in pe rc entage me thane. 
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The unit most commonly used a t t he pr e sent time is t he 
M.S.A. G.P. Methanome t er. This unit is availa ble with a 
probe if desired 1 for t he de t ection of me t hane l ayers and is 
normally scal ed o-5% CH4. 

The pBsenc e of up to 10% of carbon dioxide has no 
appr ecia ble effect on the accuracy of the instrument. 
ar e numerous othe r instruments of this type ; however, 
are not in common use her e . 

Interfero~e ter type of d~t ection: 

The r e 
t hey 

This type of de t ector depends on the differ ent r efractive 
indic e s of air and air-and-methane mixture s. The fringe pa ttern 
caused by diffusion of a l ight sourc e is caused to alte r on a 
sui table sca l e depending upon differ enc e in r efractive index 
caused by the perc ent age of me t hane in t he sample a s compar ed 
to a r ef er enc e sample of air. 

This type o.f instrument is usually scaled 0-10% me t hane , 
and a Vernier arrangement allows of the r eading being de t ermined 
to 0.1% me thane . 

The instruments in use her e are the Riken and Toka, and 
in common use in Europe is the Zeiss. 

The pre senc e of other ga se s, primarily carbon 
alt er the r eading, and carbon dioxide and moisture 
are loca t ed in t he suction line to t he instrument. 
chang ing of t he se absorbents is e ssential. 

Recent Developments in Me t hane De t ection. 

Conti nuous De t ection: 

dioxide , c an 
a bsorbents 

Regular 

English_ Electric Automatic Firedamp De t ector and Alarm: 

This type of de t ector is de signed f or eigh t to nine hours 
continuou s oper a tion be tween ba ttery charge s and operate s on a 
modifica tion of t he Whea tstone bridge principle wher eby 
ther mocouple s de tect t he variation in t emp er a ture be tween an 
exposed element burning me thane , and an unexposed el ement, this 
differ enc e being amplif i ed onto a sc a l e r eading 0 to 3% me than e . 

A visual alarm system is incorpora t ed whereby a r ed signa l 
show s on t he instrument at any pre-de t ermined figur e be t"~.-reen 
lt% and 3% of me t hane. 

This type of instrument can be adapted to provide a form of 
me thane monitoring or to shut down electrical e quipment at a 
pr e- de t ermined me t han e perc entage . 

M.S. A. Me thane Alarm: 

Thie equipment is an adaption of the Wheatstone bridge type . 
The equipment is de sign ed t o b e_ a ttached to a machine and t o provide 
both a visual al ar m and a shutdown of equipment if de sired. 

A de t ection head is loca ted wher e de sired, and a con tinuous 
sampl e of the a tmosphere is drawn into the de t ector. If t he 
me thane c ontent a l most r eaches a pre-se t l evel, a r ed light 
Will start to fla sh, and when the me t hane per cen t age r eache s 
the pr e-se t l evel, the r Gd light glows continuou sly, and the 
el ectrica l equipment is shut down if so ~e sired. Current for 
the instrument is provided from an adap t ed cap l amp ba ttery. 
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§igma Recording Flame Me thanomet er: 

This unit is an adaption of the oil flame safe ty lamp 
principle where a continuous uniform supply of butane is burnt 
in t he l amp. This hea t output is sensed by a number of ther mo­
couples in serie s and activa tes a galvanome t er type r ecorder. 
perc ent age s of me thane increa se the fl ame height and the hoa t 
output with a r e sultant increa se in output of t he thermo-couple s. 
This is r efl ected onto the me ter in t er ms of perc entage methane 
be tween 0-3% and is also r ecorded on a time chart. 

The lamp and recorder provide for eight d ays continuous 
op er a tion, and is suited t o the continuous r ecording of methane 
in such situa tions a s r e turn airways. 

The instruments can be modified to provide both distance 
monitoring and shut-down of equipment. 

Infra-Red De t ection: 

Instruments such a s the Irga c an be modifi ed to provide 
continuous monitoring, and r ecording of me thane. A beam of 
infra-red radia tion passe s through a tube conta ining the sample s. 
Me t hane absorbs some of t he infra-red radia tion , and t he loss 
of r adi a tion is proportional t o the perc enta ge of me thane . 

Of not e is portion of the r ecommenda tion of the Chi ef 
In spector of Mine s, Grea t Britain, following the r ec ent inquiry 
into the Rhondda Colliery Explosion of May 17th 1965, which 
r ecommended, among other things 7 the mak ing of tir edamp de ter­
mina tions at the end of f ace r e turn airways, and the development 
of i n struments and syst ems for the continuous monitoring of 
fir edamp. 

It is appar ent tha t r efined me thane de t ection and monitoring 
equipment will c ome into more common use in this St a t e , and when 
properly used will provide a continuous r eliable warning system. 

Some available instruments can be located a t stra tegic 
place s in the working area to provide continuous warning of 
me thane and others c an be loca t ed so a s t o provide knowledge 
of f luctuations in gen eral me thane l evels in the r e turn airways. 
The se instruments can be adapted to shut down equipment a s 
r equired. 

Carbon Dioxide: Oil Flame Safe ty Lamp: 

This is t he most common means in use for the de t ection of 
carbon dioxide , and in f act, the de t ection proc edure is only by 
mean s of lack of oxygen on ~n oil lamp flame and such de t ection 
include s other extinctive ga ses such a s nitrogen. 

Chemica l de t ection: 

The most common chemical de t ection means is by use of 
the Drager de t ector using carbon dioxide tubes in the r e quiT ed 
range . An i mmediat e indica tion is given of the percentage 
carbon dioxide pre sent. 

Int erferomet er de tection: 

The existing detectors such as the Rikon and Toka canm 
adapted to det er mine carbon dioxide . 

For this purpose a total defl ection is obta ined of the 
samp l ed atmospher e with only a water filt er in the instrument 
suction line. 

A carbon dioxide absorbent is then introduc ed in the 
suction line, and another deflection r eading obtained. The 
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difference can be calculated or det ermined by supplied graph 
as percentage carbon dioxide. 

Hydrogen Sulphide: -
The most common detection means for hydrogen sulphide is 

the Drager detector using the appropriate tube. 

Hydrogen sulphide tubes are in the range of 1 to 600 
parts per million, the accepted maximum allowable concentra tion 
of H2S in air being 20 parts per million. 

Other means such as cadmium sulphate and lead acetate 
give an indica tion of the presence of Hydrogen Sulphide but, 
without further analysis, provide only an estimate as to 
quan tity of gas present. 

Present reguir ements of Law: 

These are primarily embodied in the prov1s1ons of the 
Coal Mines Regulation Act and are as follows:-

General Rule 1, Section 54 iPart e): 

A Place is not in a fit sta te of working or passing if the 
air con t a ins either less t han 19% of oxygen or more than li% 
of carbon dioxide. 

An intake airway shall not be de emed to be normally kept 
free from inflammable ga s if the average percentage of 
inflammable gas found is not l e ss than two sample s of air or 
mor e than six samples of air t aken by an inspector in the air 
current in that airway at intervals of not less than a fortnight 
exceeds one quart er of one per cent. 

General Rule 7: 

A place is deemed to be dang erous for men working if the . 
percen tage of inflammable gas in the general body of the air in 
tha t place is found to be 2~ or upwards. 

Reg. 27, Seventh Schedule: 

Machines shall not ent er, or if in a working place, shall 
be stopped, if any inflammable ga s is found on an oil flame 
safety lamp in the place where the machine is working or is 
to work. 

Inspections for inflammable ga s shall be made at intervals 
of half an hour while the power is switched on to the machine, 
upon the comple tion of operations by a machine in any such place, 
and immediately before the recommence ment of operations after 
any interruption exceeding one half hour dura tion. 

Reg. 69, Seventh Schedule: 

Power promptly disconnect ed from any cables or apparatus in 
any par t of the mine where the percentage of infla~nable gas in 
the general body of the air in such part is one and a quarter 
pe~cent or upwards, or is such that its presence is capable of 
belng detect ed on the lowered flame of an oil safety lamp. 

----oOo---- n 
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HIS HONOR ~ I will hear Mr .Jones now. 

HR . HURRAYg Before Mr. Jones is called I feel I should inform Your 
Honor , not because I regard this factual issue as crucial, 
not because I think anything of great moment necessarily r est s 
on it, but Hr. Kent is here and is willing to give evidence , he 
is back on light dut ies -:1nd is prepared to give evidence whlch 
will answer questions on this matter. 

HIS HONOR~ You say you do not think it is crucial~ A s I see it , 
and this is the only reason for this exorcise , the crucial 
matter is one which affects 11r .S telifart . It may be somebody vrill 
urge me to say some thing a bout r~ . Stewart , about whether he tested 
or didn 't t est and so on and if so I may have to c ome to some 
decision on the matte r. If my decision is one which , in one 
sense , nake s s ome comment s whj_ch are unfavourable t o :t'-1!' . Stewar t, 
I should l:::e most r eluctant to do :it unless I were entire ly 
sat isfied in my mind a s to the facts upon which I rely • That is 
the r eason why I think this shoctld be done. As t o the actual 
time lag it may not in the long run be vital. The question 
is whether Mr .Stewart made the test some 15 minute s before t~ 
fire or 25 or 30 minutes before the fire. At the moment I can't 
see hOI•T it is vital . It merely shows, I suppose , hovl quickly 
the gns appeared in the shun t after the test was made . 

DALE J 01\JES 
Be s-worn ~ 

HIS HONOR: Q.Your name is Da le J ones ? A. Yes. 

Q. You have given evidence in this matter before? i~.Ye s. 

Q. Ther e are s ome matters on which I want your e vidence: You 
were being aske d about what men were with you a t the timber bay 
before the fire br oke ou t? A. Yes . 

Q.You s a id Fred Hunt was there , Mr . Barry Kent was there, Harry 
Smith, Jack Murray a.nd Char lie Ste\vart, Charlie Stewnr t being t he 
deputy. You were then P..sked t his question , " How~ long had 
Charlie ste1:1art been talking to you. 11 ? A. Yes. 

Q. You understood ,of course , that was in relation to how long 
Charlie Stewart had been talking t o you before the fir e occurred. 
You had been describing the fire? A.Yea . 

Q. This was your answer ~ 

"Minutes. I would no t like to say . I would not say quarter 
of .:1n hour . No, it ~.,rasn 't that l ong at all but more or less 
it was t alk just going on whj_le waiting for the other car to 
proceed in the normal morning r s won{ , " A. Yes . 

Q. . That '"as your e vidence? A. Yes . 

Q, Do you r ecall that? A. Yes, but wasn 't ther G a part thoro about 
Dobbio St e-v.rart som:.::wher e inby or somothing? That might ha ve been 
before . 

~. Ther e was something else ~bout Bobbie Stowart. A.Just when the 
six wer e at the timber bay , I thought I s a id Bobbie Stewar t vla s 
thore? 

~·I am c ertain at some stage you s a id that l ate r on. You s aid, 
Well , t hi s wa s mora or les s a point wher~ there wer e bars, prop s 

and vents - air vents. Now 1 as was customo.ry, or \vhat we used t o 
do ~~yway~ while waiting,Bobbie StGwar t would be in the habit of 
dropping the back end or sending out for a bar where these chaps 
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~ere already on the job would take the bar in, or if he sa id 
'We will need a vent' a vent wa s got out and in the case of a 
bar going down, props were made r eady so tha t when they came 
back with the measurements it was just like r eady t o go on". 
So, tha t puts Bobbie Stewart there too?A. Ye s, tha t is right. 

Q. Soon after tha t you were giving evidenc e and you were a sked 
this question, 11 \Va s it just a coincidence that they were all 
there at this particular time?A. I don't quite know that. I mean , 
I think what had happened ther e previously wa s there was a new 
overman came into the section and he wa s introduced around and 
then he went out with Fred Wright, I think. I am not too sure 
of that. Q. With whom? A. Fred Wright. I am not too sure , and 
I think Charlie Stewart who had been with the se two other chaps, 
he more or less came up with t hem and t hen he - Q. Who 
was Wright - you mentioned Fred Wright? A. Assistant Under­
Manager. Q. So whilst you were ther~. Wright, t he n ew over man , 
and Mr. Deputy Stewart came into the bord, is tha t right?A. Came 
into the what? Q. Came into the working place?A. No, I am not 
sure whether Charlie wa s with t hem or not." 

And then you were asked: 

uQ. Well, he was there when the fire broke out, wa sn't he? 
A. Oh yes, c ertainly. 

Q. You had suggested tha t they had come in just a few 
minut e s before?A. Well, they wer e there early - I am not 
sure whe ther this Mr., the new overman, I am not quite 
sure of his name - Fairs, tha t is right. Well, I am not 
quite sure how he came in. He was with us there first 
thing in the morning. He came in with the transport I 
think. 

Q. Did he come into this particular working place?A. Mr. 
Fairs, yes. 

Q. With Mr. Deputy Stewart? A. I think he may have and then 
Fred Wright came in, a s wa s usual, later on. 

Q. How long had Deputy Stewart been in there?A. He had been 
there a fair while . 

Q. By ' a fair while ' you mean half an hour or quarter of an 
hour or some thing like tha t? A. Ye s. 

Q. Half an hour?A. Half an hour - it may not ha ve be en as 
long a s tha t. 

Q. More than a qua_rter of an hour, at any rate?A. Yes, 
by the time he wa s introduced around and had a bit of a 
talk with the new chap. 

Q. Mr. Fairs had gone and Mr. Wright had gone a t tha t stage? 
A. They had gone, yes. 

Q. And Mr. Stewart was still staying, cha tting with you? 
A. That is right. " 

Do you r ecall the part I r ead to you earlier wh er e you said 
Mr. Stewart had been t a lking to you for minutes and you would 
not like to say, you would not say quarter of an hour - liNo, 
it.was not tha t long at all but more or l es s it wa s t alk just 
golng on while waiting for the other car .to proc eed in the 
normal morning's work, 11 You see , tha t is wha t you sa id?A. Yes. 

Q. You wer e being a sked how long was Mr. Stewart t alking to you 
in t he timber bay befor e the fire started ?1~. Ye s. 
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Q.You said le s s than q uar ~ er.of an hour- minutes. Later on 
you had spoken, a s I have 1nd1cate d to you about Mr.Stewart having 
been thor o a fair while . \.tJe aro not quit e: certain ·what you mean? 
A.I see . 

Q.Can you e xplain? Tell us what the sit uation was?A.Charlie 
stowart as f a r a s I can r emembe r and I think -
he was d own at the face with Mr. Wright and Mr.Fears and -v:e 
wor e -I was a t that particular t ime working on the shuttle car, 
l ike, filling it up with oil and carrying out normal duty. 

Q. You arB not tal king about Noo 4-0 shuttle car? A.No, this was 
Fred Hope's, Noo 67 shuttle car. The oil t ank is on till same 
sidG as the v ent tube and they were on tha t side. 

Q.You have got Mr. vlright and Charl:is Stewe..rt - ? A. A.nd Mr. 
Fea.r s. · 

Q. At the faoe; Ac At the position at the back of till minr and 
also on the ~ tube. 

Vert1 
Q. You ·ar e wor king on the shuttle car? A.Yes. 

Q• ~Jha t happo n ed then? A. A while after tha t I \vas filling oil drums 
up to put , from the 12 gnllon drum, into tho shuttle car. I 
went back outby to ge t moreo Now, I'm not sure whe the r I went 
back into the face and put mor e oil into the car or \vhe ther I 
vras up ther e \vhe n I went out - I 'm not sur e a bout that. 

Q.i.Vhen who went out? Ao Fr od 1.1/right and Mr.Fe ,"J.. rs. 

Q.What happen e d then? A o }\S I say·, I'm not quite sure vihother I 
went back 3.11d put more oil into the car as the cars -vwre coming 
i n inst ead of goin g out to tro r amp and ea tching them out there, 
I wns catching them in a t the f ace to carry out r epa irs - not 
r ep a irs, but main tenance on theme- Really the next thing I ca.n 
r emember was that we wor 0 at the timbe bo.y, like, t he six chaps 
but I d.Jn' t b 1ov1 vlhere chc:; rlie St owart wa s, whe the r he wo.rt out 
vlit h Mr.Wright or Mr.Foars or wher o he wa s, but anyway tro next 
t hi ng I can r emember \..'as that we vr<.: r e at that particular loading 
po i n t - that is wrong - at the timber bay. 

Q,You say you ar (j not sur e vlheth8r Mr.Stewart was with you at 
thi s stago or whether he had gone out? A.He may have still been 
in the place, for Qll I kDow. 

Q.But ho wasn't at the timber bay at that stage? A.I'm not too 
~ur e of that be ca use 7 like,just imagine, we wore not a l l collected, 
JUst all went thoro togethe r, there might hc.v o boen three there ;md 
t hen a.nother one come, you 1L8 0W how I mean? 

' Q, Yes. Do you know \vher e the vents wor e? A. The spare vents 
or the vent line? 

Q.vJell, I don't know? AoThG spare vents "l.·Je re over the v ont lino? 
just ove r the v ont line on the straight down place. 

Q.Do you recall seeing MroSte\vart sitting on the: vents? A. 
EarliEJ r, yes, when they were talking dovn at the shuttle ccr. 

Q.That is with Mr.Fs urs and Mr.,\Vright? A.Yos. 

Q.Do you recall seeing h im sitting ther e at any timo later? A.. 
He may have been there with Jack Murrw - no, I would not say 
for sure. 

Q~At any r r:.tG, he vras somewhere else whilst you W8rG at the 
t~bor bay; is that the position? AoFor a while ho may havo been 
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but then he did join us. He may have been even in the place 
and come up t o wher e we wer e sitting or he may have been outby 
and come to where we were sitting, I am not sure o,f tha t. 

Q • A t some stage you had a t a lk at the timber bay?A. We were 
all talking, yes. 

Q. Do you remember how long it wa s aft er he started. talking to 
you at the timber bay before the fire started?A. I could only 
guess between a certain time because I could not say exactly 
t en minut e s, quarter · of an hour, or any particular time like 
that but I know we were talking ther e for a fair while on 
1Subjects that -vrere usually spoken about during a day's work, 
also we had a bit of a fri endly messing around, as we had at 
times in ther e , but it would be more than, I would say, quarter 
of an hour. 

Q. You would say - ? A. More than a quarter of an hour. 

Q. Would it be much more?A. I think - yes. 

Q. You do?A. Ye s. 

Q. When you first gave evidence you were a sked how long had 
Charlie Stewart been talking to you and you said 11Minutes. I 
would not like to say. I would not say ~arter of an hour. 
No, it was not that long at all, 11 ~. Charlie Stewart, see 
as I think I said befor e , J ack Murray was the closest chap to 
me . Now, J ack was sitting on the vent line and I wa s on the 
timber, a matter of a couple of yards be tween us, and Charlie 
was more or l e ss on my right. I think Harry Smith may have been 
sitting beside me. I would say at any r a t e , Charlie was over 
a bit. He may have beEn t alking to me for just a f ew minutes 
and then I know I wa s t alking to J ack Murray for quite a While 
then. 

HIS HONOR : Does any counsel wish t o a sk any questions? 
(No r e sponse) 

Q. How long was it after Mr. Fears and Mr. Wright left that the 
fire broke out?A. No, I couldn't even- I wouldn't even like to 
try and guess on tha t. 

Q. Can you t ell me if it wa s a very long time , or was it a short 
time?A. No, tha t would be only complete guesswork. 

HIS HONOR : Any ques tions? (No r e sponse) 

MR . MURRAY: Shall I call Mr. Kent? 

HI S HONOR: Ye s. 

BARRY KENT 
Re-Sworn: 

(Witness r e tired) 

MR. MURRAY: Q. Is your full name Barry Kent?A. Ye s. 

Q. Do you live at 7 Cochrane Road , Thirroul?A. Yes. 

Q. You r ecall the events leading to the noticing of the fire in 
the place wher e you were working on the morning in que stion? 
A: . Ye s. 

Q. I would like you to r ecount, as be st you can, the events which 
led up to you noticing the flame - -
HIS HONOR : Not from the very start. 

981. D. Jones, r e t. 
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MR . HUR.AAY~ Q.Do you recall an occa sion whon you walked out by 
up tho oxt onsion of No . 2 cut -·~hrough towards till loading ramp ? 
A. Ye s . 

Q. wa s · the re ·~omeone in the p1:tc e walking . in tho same d ir oc~ion 
as you then? A. At that time I vras walklng up to the loadlng 
poin t and I was going to che ck the numbe r s on the c 3blos 
and I n o ticed Charlie StG1N'art coming dmm from till loa ding point • 

Q. Where did he go? A. He headed in towards th::! shunt but moro or 
less he just passed and he just \vent in <illd I just ken+: going up 
tho loading po intl I supp ose I v.Ja s there 20 minutes. bofor e 
I v1en t down the p ace tor ejoin tho otho rs at the tllnbor b-J.V . 

Q. You then rej oinod tho glV up of men who 1~ru r c t a l k ing? A. 
1es, vro wore talking do-vm th(.1 r G. If I r omombGr , Ch-=t rlio jt.Et came 
acros s f r om tha ba ck of thu minor , if I r emember rightly t ho was 
over the r e "Vrith Bobbie and ,just camo ac ross tmn . He had b8on 
tal king to Bobbi8 D.nd bo th of us mor e or le s s crune to the t irriJ or 
b&y at the same time . 

HIS HONOR~ Q • He came to tho timber buy fr om the back of t ho miner? 
A. Yes . 

~ .Whor e are the vents? A. On the opposite side . 

Q. Thoy would not be in tho timber bay - thor o is a vent tube? 
A. Yes , they pas sed the timber b ay . The r es t of them ar e at the 
timber bay whe r e all the s par e vents wer e , whor G they carr y 
t hom for1..rard, j us t ou tby of the timber btw • 

q. How far fr:Jm the timb or bay ar G they? A. Practically right on 
th2 bo.y . 

Q.Lis ten to this and sea if y o u can tell me Hhat VGnts these 
'I•TO lJ.ld be • . 

" Than I went back dolrVYl and I s .:---1- t r oughly a t the back of t he 
mino r on the vent t\lbes for about anothe r ton minut e s ••••• " 

A. That WOLlld be th~3 line, the v entilat i n g line going d 01,vn t o the 
faco . It would not b e tho sp ar e v ent . 

Q. It vrould not be near the tirrb or bay? A. No , more or l o ss roughl y 
ha lf \-Tay fr om tho faco back t o tho t imbor bay , or a bit close r . 

HIS HONOR~ That is 1·1hat Hr . Stovmr t himself said ho did . 

HR . HURRAY: Q. I think you havo s a i d you wor o walking inby t~nd 
Hr . Stmvart, \valki..'1g out by , 2rrive d at the timb or b2y t oge t he r? A. Yos . 

Q. Yo u wor e talking to your workmates , n little bit of ho rseplay 
. 1tTe.s going on and about how long "Vre ro you all thcr u t ogether , that 
1s yourse lf, tho others , and deputy Stowar t until you no tic ed the 
flamo ? A. About quart or of an hour or 15 minutos . I would s a y that 
would bo nbout the period of time . 

iUS HONOR ~ Q. Deputy Stowa.rt vras th,J r o all tha t timo ? A. Yos , I would 
sqy· • 

~ . Whor o did h o come from? A. I t hought he vJas coming more or 1 e ss 
JUst straight from Bobbie , he was at the b r.ck of the minor i 

Q. You thought he had come fr om the back of thG mi1. or? A. Yos, I 
thoug ht he was talking t o Bobbio Sto-v·rart . -

Q. Ho came to the t imber bay Md was there about quart e r of an 
hour ? A. Yes . 982. B. Ke n t , r e called . 



HR . MURRAY~ Q. And then the events you r ocOJ ntod in your stateme nt 
toak place?A. Yos . 

HIS HONOR~ Q. Did you notice Mr . Fears and Hr. 1A[right thoro? l~. . Yos . 

Q. Did you see them go? A. Yes - I did no t actually s oe thGm go -
I did not see thorn go out of thG p ane l,no . 

Q.Did you see Hr .Stewart go with them some~-rhero nnd than come 
bacl{ alone? A. When I seen him coming baclc in the panel he was 
alone and I just natur ally took that h e -vrent out of tho panol with 
thG other two . 

Q. How long after you saw him coming back <lJ.ono \vas it the fir e 
started? A. Roughly about 35 minutes . 

HIS HONOR~ Does eJlY ether coun:sol 1.vish to ask aJJ.y quost ions? 
(No re sponse) 

HR.MURRAY~ Might he be excused? 

HIS HONOR~ Yes , bo th 1.ritnesscs. I make thG ord i nary order for 
expenses . 

(Witness r et i r od ) 

MR.LEE~ We have s ome of the equipment which was roferrod to in 
Mr . Muir r s papor and tho first p i e ce of e quipment vl8 have is this 
English Electric automatic firednrnp detector and alarm. Actually 
the word 11 alarm• should be de leted from the r e f e r onc e . This is 
the machim . rt is calibrated and when it reaches a c e rtain 
pGrcentage of me thane this red section shows , the red light ~ 
and then this blue section c ome s on with the blue light . It ls run 
by a bat tery i.·:hich can be charge d . Tho duration of the battery 
is 8 or 9 hours . You h av e to have the instrument chocked for 
calibration from time to time . I am informe d that is rot a 
t ask beyond the t e chnicians ordinarily found in mines . 

HIS HON OR~ Will it still ope rat e v;hile tho batte ry is being 
char ge d? 

MR.LEE : I am informed it has to go to the surface t o be charged . 

MR . LEE ~ The next ~ ie ce of equipment is the large equipment s~ up 
her e showing e,gain a c alibra ting which is a ttached to the 
continuous miner and can bo sot so that v1hen the intake of 
methane into th.e machine r oache s a certain level , which can be 
pre -de t e rmined , tho light will glow rod . I t c an be sot so that 
when a highe r level , pro - de t e r mined , is rea ched , it automatically 
cuts tho machine off so that if the warning is not observed 
and tho men go on working the y will only do so till trn madl ino 
takes in the quantity of ge.s which 1.·1ill rc:gistGr at the red light 
position. 

HIS HONOR~ What I will be interested in is the ques t ion of 
failure of the se things . You may have n dev ice like this in 
op eration and then a subsaquent inquiry rra y be told thG d ovice 
failed for s oma r Gason . 

MR . LEE ~ This p i ece of equipment I am told costs a bout t?6o. 
It als o is run off a ba ttory . 

Tho final p i Gce of Gquip ment I wish to d isplay i s the r oe en tly 
. developed safa ty lamp designed to tako thi3 probe . This is tha 
probe I have here , designed to detect right at r oof l evel and floor 
level and. a lso de signed with n relighting sy s tom should the la.mp 
be lost . 983. B. Kent , r e tired. 



HIS HONOR~ Tha t is tho one \vith the flint . 

MR . LEE ~ May I sugge st that Mr . Menzie s now come forvlar d and 
be a sk ed a~y que stions Your Honor de sires? 

HIS HONOR~ Ono matter to which I think r ef o r onc e sh ould bo ma de 
is the reliability of the p i e ce of e qu i pment itse lf. I do no t 
mean vlhen it is functioning properly and d oing wha t it is desired 
to do , but ar e they subj ect to f ailure? 

(Mr . R· .h.. Menzios , who pr eviously gr~.vo evid once in this 
Inquiry , came forward t o demonstrate the equipment 
alre ady mentioned and was a s kod c ert a in qu estions by 
His Honor). 

HR . :MENZIES ~ Like a l l e quipment they arG subj ect t o fail ure 
but they r equire maintenance and regular routine maintenance 
31 Juld r educe the fu ilur o t o an absolute min i mum. Of c ouxse, 
1.,e have had no exp erience with thorn in this country but they have 
been t a sted overse~s and f ound to be efficient . The maint enance 
problem ha s not been a cute there and I C D.Jl see no r eason why 
the s amo position should not obtain he r e . 

HIS HONOR: Q. Would y ou say device s of this kind OJ uld r e place t he 
deputy or the t oster? !A. No . 

Q. In other words they would h ave t o be used in conjunc t ion with 
t he or dinary t osts ca rried out i n mine s?A. Ye s . 

Q.I supp ose you would say the ord i nary t e sts woul d haw t o be made 
mor e certain than t he y a r e at t he moment - I use the word • certain" 
to av oid any e r i tic ism of thoso making tre t e s t s ? A. Yes. 

Q. In other words , perhap s tho me than ome ter either in c onjunction 
vlith or in substitution for the safe ty lamp - prob .:1bly in conjunct­
ion with?A. I n conjunction with,Your Horor . 

Q, Wha t ab out the cos t of the e quipment? Mr . Le e s ai d ono costs 
about £200, I t h i nk? A. Yes . 

Q. Wha t abou t t h o other - for ins t ance , t h.G blue a.~d rod go.dgo t? A. £76 . 

Q.Would you n eed these placed all round the s e ction? A. No , 

CJ. Wher e would you locate them? A. In the v!Orking place wher o ga s 
is most likel y t o be f ound and -v,rher e it i s most likely to be in 
any accumula tion which is likoly t o be dange rous· and whero ga s c e.n 
be i gnit e d . 

Q.The s e all t e st for me thane ? .A . Ye s . 

Q.Assume you ha d t ho d evice y ou do n ot put noar the mine r the 
Engl ish :2:l octric , nssumo you have t hat on t h is occa.sion in 
tho shunt , Whor e 1.voul d have loca ted it? A. Ne2.r tho r oof . 

rl. Wha t vmuld happen i f y ou had · bottom ge.s up to a hoight of f our 
f eet bohin:1 thu brattice? A. You would not have got it . 

tJ. I s ther e any device - any automa tic device ? A. On the under­
stand ing tha t you had Illawarra bott om gas cont a i n ing methane then , 
qui t e obviously , it v!OLlld be r e st e d on till floor , if you knev,r you wer o 
go t ting Illawarra Bott om ga s . 

Q. If that he.d be en knmv-n , tha t it wa s i nfl ammable ga s , I suppos o 
somGthing wou.ld hav e:: boen don e but you have t o know you a r o gp ing to 
get t his gas? A. Yes . 984. 



Q~ I suppose nobody in this case \N"OUld have put that on the floor? 
A.Apparently m t. 

ft.Is thor o anything you can use to covor that sort of situatim? 
A.One on the roof and one on thu floor. 

~.I have a duty here, as I feel in this case the consequences 
of this fire wer e so grave, and of course one might so.y we are 
lucky they were not graver, but I f eel it is my duty to recommend 
something which would be of real value in pr eventing 11 similar 
situation such as this rocurrirg. One can pas s all the criticisms 
one likes on \:rh~ t has happened but that is valuole ss for the 
fut ure and valueless to the miners and management in futuro 
and. that is why I have be c ome i ntero stod in devices such as this 
·vrhich might s erve that purpose. Is thur r..: anything apar t from 
these ddvices? A.• Resear ch into methods of detection have boon 
done on firedamp which is q. r oof gas in thG mine. Re cordings of 
bottom gas, or I llawarra bottom gas, conta ining me thanc being 
hold on the floor aro not very common and all the v.rork has boon 
dono on pure met hane. 

Q..That moans you expo ct it to coma up high?A.Yes, vle aro loft 
vrith the flame safety lamp, obviously useles s no ar tho floor. 
You cannot put anything ,,.;hich has a flame near the floor bocauso 
you -vrould lose tho flame be cause of lack of oxygen so you must 
have an e l ectrical device. If the presence of bottom gas is 
Jr.nm·m the :i ~nglish IUectric would, I think , do the job satisfactorily, 
of detecting tho methane. 

Q. In other words you would pl a ce it vrhora you suspected the gas 
might be? A.Ye s. 

Q. At the s ame time you 1.vould have a very carGful check, certainly 
t ha statutory check, and po rhap s ovon a mora careful chocl\: 
on tho se pe ople char ged with the duty of do tectiq; it? A. Yes, 
those alarms are only intended to give a warning ',vhoro the 
normal dot8cticn syst em falls down or vrhore tho eruption cf the 
ga s is sudden. 

Q.Turning now to the probe do you think it likely that there 
migh t be s ome objection by the management or the deputies 
to crJ.rrying an instrument like that a!:ow1d v1i th them in the mine? 
A. Ther e always will be objection. There always v.rill be. 

Q. I sup pose you could i mag ine comments from the men. A. I ha t·e 
an instrume:J.t which is not n probe but it has a 1Blescopic probe. 
I can put i t together to about 15 inches long. 

Q.Doe s it have the pole effect too ?A. I do not need to 
pump it. 

HR . LEE: I am reminded it is de siged as a -vralking stick. 

WI~NE~S~ I am afraid not. You co L1ld not use it as a vl a lking stick. 
Thls lS where the gas come out. If you used it as o.. walking 
stick you could not get any gas coming out • 

HIS HONORg My attention has been directed to this matter end 
You may know something about it, or there may be another 
Inspector in the Court who may be able to give me some informatJnn~ 
I make it perfectly clear it is not a suggestion connected with 
the c?lliery w~th which I ~ d.e~ing. There is no suggestion 
of thl~ happenln9 at Bulll but l t may be one may need to say 
somethmg about l 'b; I do not know yet. 

Q.I arn told that in some collieries it is quite a common I!'actice 
for officials other than deputies - under-m311agers and such like -
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to go underground. 1vithout c;J.r r ying their safety l amp? A. That is 
a fact . 

Q. I s uppose y ou regard that as almost amount ing to mal-practice? 
A. Depl orable . 

Q. I s t here anything in the actual regulations to cover that?A . 
No thing that requir es them to carr y i t. 

Q. I will ask your opinion as an expert . Do you think it might be 
of assistance t o the Department or the indus t ry if I made some 
observation about that? A. I think so , yes , Your Hono r. If I may 
add something of my own , I think it is a reflection upon ~he 
management , the senior management , that they go u.::1dergr o und 
without a safety lamp . It is my opinion tha t any mnager or und~ 
manager or senior official should never go underground. 1!Ji thou t a 
flame safety lamp . 

HIS HONOR~ I make it again perfectly clear tha t I make no 
suggestion that that situation applies to Bulli Colliery • 
.are the re any questions anybody would like to ask? 

HR . REYNOLDS~ 'lovlhere is the intake point for this equipment . Is 
this it here ? A. This is the detecting head which is f a stened , 
clipped on to the machine 7 near the ripping head of the 
machine . This le .~~s back t o the detector here . 

Q. It is designed sp e cifically to go on to the machine? A. 
ye s . This is the oper&t ing batt e ry. This all has to be 
change d daily o This cnn be fixed to the chain and the be.tt e ry 
changed every shift . 

Q. And how far would it be away in the ordinary case of a con· 
tinuous mi ner , from the coal face that is being ripped? A. It 
ccLLld be very very close to it , probr-tbly a fo ot at the most • 

Q•Do you think that ·vro uld give a reliable indic:_=t tion for general 
purposes or only show that there 11as methone in the coal ett that 
po int?.ii . It would show that the methane 1vas coming off the c oal 
and it would a lso shovJ' if the accumulation was building up . In 
other words , if it was being released or not being contained by that 
ventilation , it wo uld accumulate there and the detector vrould pick 
it up . 

Q. You say experience in the United. States is that this works 
satisfactorily? A. Yes . 

MR . MURRAY: Q. I got the impression - corr ect me if I am ~,,rong -
tha t this is put forward as sonw thing ve ry n ew, this equipment . 
Is till t right ?A. Very new. The 11 . S. A, the big one here , i s a 
r ocent d€VG lopment , I think in this past 2 ye~rs . 

Q. So that thing whic h coul d go on to the continuous minGr has been 
known to you in the Depar t ment at cilly rate for 2 ye c:.. rs ? A. I would 
so.y its development has beon ¥..nown for 2 yoars but it is ptv bably 
about 6 months i t has be en put i n to product i on . It has been 
under test for s ome time . ThGse thi ngs are t e::t ed very thoroughly 
before be ing put i n to production . 

Q. So to your Yill JWledge it has been in production for 6 months?14. . Yo s. 

Q.What about the English El e c tric alarm? A. I am not t oo sure but I 
think it is some\<rhGru about the past 18 months as VJell . 

Q. You will remember I asked. you some questj_ons about the 
Department 3.11d new equipment vlhich \.vould assist in the problem 
~hat was being discussed; that i t was known to you and the other 
lnspec t ors of the limitations of the flamo s a fety lcuJl) . Do you 
recall those questions? A. Ye s. 
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Q. When did you, for insnance, first see the article 'vhich ha s 
got the red and blue things on it, like an expensive poke:r, 
machine?Ao Ye sterday morningo 

Q. Do you know this - you may not - when did the Department 
f irst know of its existence?A. Proba bly the middle of last y ear 
when the Chief Inspector wa s overseas" As soon as he came 
back he obtained the n ec e ssar y powers to ge t oneo 

Q. I think it wa s order ed after the Bulli fir e , or beC..Jre?A" I 
would say before, I have been told now th a t it wa s befo r e . 

Q. What about the probe, which I cannot help thinking look s 
like a photograph I showed you so~e time ago?A. It is very 
much different from ito 

Q.What about the pr obe; when wa s that first - A. In the 
middle of last yearc That lamp wa s only be ing developed by 
the Safety Mines Research Establishment in Britain and tha t is 
proba bly one of the earliest production models that was producedo 

Q. Tha t is the lamp, but wha t about the probe?A. This type of 
l amp, without the probe , that l amp has been in us e o 

Q. You say the probe wa s not developed until the l amp wa s 
developed?A. No, not till this part here wa s developed o I t hj_nk 
I used this lamp way back in the early 1940rs, this type of l amp o 

Q. I was a sking you about t he probeo There is nothing new about 
tha t - tha t type of apparatus?A. The probe has been tried before 
and wa s n ever found very successfulo Tha t is why it ha s t aken 
some years for this l amp to be developed by the Safety Mine s 
Re search Esta blishment in Britain. 

Q.What about the o ther device , the square aluminium looking box ? 
A. This is only a t e sting device. 

Q. So ther e are r eally t hr ee article s producedo One goes on 
the miner or other machinery ?A. Ye s. We have another one which 
is a t the colliery, a continuously r ecording me thanometer, T:1.a t 
is being installed in t he colliery todayo I may say all the se 
were ordered befor e the Bulli incidento 

MR. REYNOLDS~ Q. Do you know the na ture of this detector head? 
A. No, I am afraid I do nota I think it is simply a device , 
I would say , with a ga t e of gauze in it through which the air 
is drawno This is a gauze here through which the atmosphere 
is drawn o This is to keep out all for eign matter o It is 
known as a de t ector head" 

Q. You believe it is only a device for ge tting it through to 
r egistering?A a Ye s. When it ge ts in the r e it must be free from 
dust, and wher e this is to be plac ed is a dusty area so it 
f ilters the dust out. 

MR. MURRAY: Q, Hm>J long has the me thanometer been in use or 
known to you - t en ye ars?A • Many yearso 

Q. Ten y ears?Ao Oh yes. 

MR. PARKINSON~ Q" I think His Honor asked you a que stion about 
the shunt ar ea and I under stood you to say in an svJer as to where 
the English Electri c would be that it would be hanging up 
towards the rib?Ao I said tha t, but I dan't apply it parti.'~u;R::".. .j 
to t he shunt now, I apply it particularly to a place wher e I 
was goi ng to use it to de t ect fir e damp, and I would have it 
near the roofo I didn ~ t mean particularly in tha t shunt , 
knowing tha t bottom g3.s wa s ther e ., 



Q. My understanding of t h is particular me~hanomoter , ?ne c an r eadily 
588 it is c ons tr uc ted (l~onu the s ame l lne s as .:1r1 Oll l ·Jfli 
and I t h i nk in view of what vm ha v o d i s e us sed ovor tho s e as t 
fe ll/ wocks thi s \VOUld be come the pr ope r ty of the doputy, to tost 
f or me thane wher G blackdamp was n ot only s uspe ct ed but bl8ckdamp 
rJB.' baen found . I wou.ld t h ink that t his v!O tlid bo the obj e c t ive . Is 
t hat th.J gen eral id e a'f a . No , I ca..11.'t ngr oe wit h that , r e g.:;_rd.ing the 
deputy. This d evico 1 the Engl ish Electric ~a s p roduc ed in England 
and it is produced f or one purpose ~ a warnlng mo t hanometer for 
uso by tho workman on the long wal~ coal f a ce , and the BritiSh 
~egulations have a certa in number of men on a long wall coa l face 
and t here must bo a c ertain numbe r o .f those de t e ctors which are 
carried by the workmen in addition t o t he ir normal la;np and it.By 
ar e hung on prop s , secure posi t ions along R long wall coal face . 
This ~nglish device is n ot for the use of d e putie s , it is for the 
use of workmen who carry it . 

Q. That might be all right in tho United. Kingdom. It sometimes 
irks me about the c ond j_ tions in t he United Kingd om whi eh have no 
similarity in Austre.lia . Did you eve r knm,, of Illawarra bottom g ;-:-~. s 
in the Unit ed Kingdom? A. I h oar d of it , not under t he n ame of 
Illawa rra bo ttom ga s, but I have hoard of tho term "bot t om gas" in 
the United Kingdom . 

Q. Is n ot t his the situa tion, that had that lump there been hung up , 
so.y f or :Les t ance , in the shunt, ~her o is every po s .s ibility it would 
no t have r egistered? A. There is il possibility· . 

Q. Don 1 t \•le want something tha t \·T':JUld ha v e r eg ister ed under the 
condi tions wo hav e been d i3cus sing ? ;..,.. You p ut it on the f l oor. 

Q. And you l eav e i t on tho floor at any g iven set of circumstnnco·s'? 
A. Ye s . 

Q. I \<Tant to ask you in connection with tho appliance that goes on 
tho co ntinuous miner . Do you say it give s off an a.l a rm ot he r than 
tha t r od light?A. If i t c c.n bo connected to the pmver supply end 
ir!.1on a cer t ain p er e en t ngo of met hane is road, tho pm·Jor supply 
to the machine can be cut off . 

HI S HONOR: Assume tha t you put tha t English nae ctr ic device on 
t he f l oor and that you had :1 l a ye r of b ottom gas Hh ich d id not r oach 
as high a s the vents at the top . Is t her G a~y othor way i t co uld 
r egist er? A. I can see no r eason 11hy y ou should not turn that one 
U!J Si do d o\om • 

• You could turn it upside down it "Y!OUld vro .rk? A. I have not 
really gone into it but I can see no r oason vlhy it should not . I 
CJil se o no reason why you couldn't nlso lie it on its side aJ.though 
~ h·~ve not r eally g ono i n to it . Knowing t he ty pe of . machine 
1t 1s I s oe n o r eason 1/l hy you C<J.r'...not d o t ha t . 

~\ This lamp is a self-lighting l amp , a re - lighting lamp . 

Q. One 1tlh ich does not have to be taken back t o ~ lamp station should 
the f l ame go out? How many of those a . .re in mines to - day? A. None . 

Q. I understand you have now made obsolete the aluminium type of 
lamp bec .J.use of the danger from a luminium it self , is tha t s o?· A. Yes . 

· . Of \<Tha t ar c the y novi made? Ar o they br a.ss? A. Br a ss e..n:1 s t ool . 

Q.Bnt ther e a r c no re-lighting larnp s? A. None in use in tm State 

h, 'rha t moans at tho pre sent time i f the deputy lose s his light he 

1as t o go to ;: lamp station, wherever it m y be , to r e light his 
"amp , or ge t r.mother lamp , or of course he may borrow one tempaar y 
rrom s omeone who has ono , for examp l e , the mine r drive r? A . Ye~ 
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Q. But at times it is quite a substantial period before he gets 
another lamp?A. Yes. 

Q. And some times the lamp sta tion is a bove ground, is it?A. Yes, 
tha t is right. 

Q. A considerable distance from where he is working?A. 1hat is 
correct. 

Q. ~at means of course there is a t endency amongst deputies to 
preserve their light, if I may put it tha t way?A. Yes. 

Q. And would you not agr ee tha t tha t could l ead .to a certain. 
carelessness in the test er?A. I pref er to call lt ultra-cautlon, 
to prevent them losing their light, r a ther than c arelessness. 

Q. I suppose ultimately it comes t o the same thing. They 
do not make a thorough t e st for f ear of losing their light?A. Ye s. 

Q. They could easily miss methane in bottom gas, ([)Uld they not? 
.a. Yes. 

Q. If they knew they could re-light their lamp as easily as this 
one, without going anywhere but staying in t he same place, I 
suppose tha t f ear would largely be r emoved from the mind of the 
deputy?A . That is right. 

Q. Is there any great difference in cost be tween this lamp and 
the one that is used a t present?A. Not very much. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I t hink a couple of pounds at the most. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Are you able t o tell me how many lamps a colliery 
like the Bulli Colliery, which is a l arge colliery, would have 
in stock to use?A. 40 to 50 oil flame safety lamps. I am 
informed double tha t number - about lOO .• 

Q. The pric e of the se lamps here is somEthing between £10 and £15? 
A. Yes, somewher e in t hat vicinity. 

Q.It may not be a ma tt er of r eplacing the full complement of 
lamps, but it may be a question of supplying the deputies who 
ar e on duty with a lamp of this kind?A. I do fe el that . r:nbody 
below deputy will be issued with a re-lighting type lamp. 

Q. Why is that?A. When you are using the se you just can't use them 
and think you can re-light them in any old place. When you 
lose your light with these things you must examine your lamp to 
make sure nothing has gone wrong with it. You must r emove 
yourse-lf from the place where you lost your light. 

Q. You still cannot light it?A. No, you must move out into the 
main body of the air current. 

Q. Is ther e some risk?A. Yes. 

Q. What is the risk - the flame itself and therefore the spark 
that lit the flame is comple tely sealed off?A. It is completely 
sealed off. I will talk a bout a me thane mixture . If yoU go into 
a me thane mixture such as to lose your light, getting a mixture 
where the l~p sbows2.5 per cent methane and you have lost your 
light there and you just try to re-light your lamp, you can quite 
easily have an explosive mixture within the lamp. 

Q. You would get an explosion within the lamp?A. Yes, and if you 
do tha t two or three times you get a red hot gauze and your lamp 
ceases to be effective so you must remove yourself from the 
~lace where you lost your light and go to a place where you know 
ls clear of gas and there re-light your lamp . 



Q.Thorc are no r e gulations at the moment to cover t h is? ..: .. . No . 

Q.So I suppose bofor o they could even be used the r egulations would 
havo t o bo amond od?A. I am not qui te surG atout that . 

n. It all depends whethe r tho oil lamp described in the r egL·lat ions 
~ave rs thi~ type or not , bijt if you arG going to r e strict it t o 
be used by deputies only it would need some amendment? A. Ye s . 
I c.m not qu1to certain7 but the lamp has to be approved by the 
Chief Inspector and should the lamp be ilp;,J rove d by tte Chief 
Inspector then conditions could be sot do1-vn under wh ich it should 
be used . 

o.In other words those existing would covor the position? A. I 
am not quite sure . 

lYIR. LEE ~ I think that is s o. The def i n ition of safety lamp is 
- (read ) • 

HIS HONOR ~ Q. I suppose then it would not n eed a.ny n m..r l egislation 
but a r e cor:Jmendation might 1.>rell p11r suade the collier i e s concerned 
w use this lamp voluntarily? li. . Yes . There a r o mine s in the &tc:te 
,,vhcre for qui t e a long number of years . gas hc;.s bee!l no p roblem, 
gc;s h2s n ever been detected . I t might be placing a.11. unnocessar y 
ha:::-dship on c ertain peopl e ~f we v:ithdrmv all thG lamps for thEse . 

~.If I wer e to say tha t I think tho s o ought to be used , in mines 
where gas could be a problem , by a ll officials from deputy up in 
place of the others - in other ·vJOrd s , s e l f - light ing lamps in 
fu ture - what would you do about it ? vJou.ld you consult t he 
~{inist or concerning t h is? It is no t .'?. cha nge of legislation at 
~11 , it is leaving you a discretion, is it not? A. Yes. 

Q. Firs t d all w') uld you discuss it with the Minist er or -vrha.t 
would happen? ~. I fe el it would hav e to be discu ssed with the 
Minister, yGs . 

~ . As suming you did that and ... the M.in i stor said "All right , 
carry out tho r e commendations ,., how would you carry it out? 
A. i:is far as the l egal sense b ecouling lavr , you mean? 

Q. How 1...rould. you enforce a r E: cowmonaa tion such as that ? What would 
your a ttitude be? A. If some body said this lamp had to be used , 
t his lamp V1J ul d ha v e to be then EClproved and the Chief Inspector 
·m1st o.pprove of it . In his approval he would put down his conditions 
l·rhich I visualise would include the pGrsons who can use and carry 
this t ype of lamp . 

HR . ~IDRRAY ~ If al'lY reliance i s being placed ·on this by Your Honor, 
h~ 1s n ow t e lling us hypothetic a lly v1mt tho Chie f Inspect or 
m1ght do in rolation to the article put f orward . The Chief 
Inspe ctor i s sitting in Court • . 

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you feel you ar o ab l e to <Jnswe r tm t quest i on? A. 
Yes, I f ee l quite compe t ent . 

MR .HURRAY: I submi t any conclusions apart from the int e rost it may 
be , coming from a man of experience , would be of little value to 
Your Honor . 

!US HONOR~ I ar:1 prepe.red. to rely upon Hr . Honzics as a senior 
Inspector o f tho Depar t ment. 

~~TNESS ~ The Chief Insp ect?r would approve the; type of l amp and in 
at app r oval h e would n om1nato tho pe rsons '.·rho could carry that 

~al~p . He would nominat a tho conditions under '.-rhich the rel i ghter 
t,;Ollld be used. 211d stnto -vrhon the light v-.r;1s lost to c areful ly examine 
·'2nd to r emove to a place where the a ir was clear and pure befol"G it 
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was r elit. I have already given consideration to the 
conditions and have a f ew iaea s on it, but I have not got them 
on paper here and I find it difficult to bring them back to 
mind. But there would be condi tions which would not in any 
impede the working of the mine or endanger t he l amp oper a tor 
or the mine in any way . 

HIS HON OR: The collierie s may say "We are not going to apply 
for approval to use the se, we will use the old ones." 

MR. REYNOLDS: The approval could be withdrawn. 

HR. PARKINSON: I f ee l perhaps Your Honor and Mr. Menzies 
have overlooked this, tha t no matt er what r ecommenda tions Your 
Honor found fit to make, particularly when it is going to 
cost £260 ffor that particular ~plic a tion, the concurrence 
would have to be rec eived from t he Prime Minister of this 
country. 

HIS HONOR: I am fully aware of the position with any l egislation 
in this Act, t ha t it is one which must be done in consulta tion 
wi th the Commonwealth Government. I understand it is a matt er 
the Joint Coal Board discusse s befor e mak ing any r ecommendations. 

WITNESS: The approva l or disapproval of this 
in the hands of the Chief In~pector. It does 
be approved or disapproved by the Minister. 
in t he hands of the Chief Inspector. 

lamp rests only 
not even require to 
It is en tirely 

HIS HONOR : Q. Doe s tha t mean you co u.ld then go on to disapprove 
of the other lamp s being used?A. If I sa id that, it would be 
rather a drastic step . 

Q. Do you think it would be drastic legislation though?A. To 
prohibit compl e tely the use of any other type of lamp? 

Q. For example, for persons below deputy?A. Unless it is a 
mat t er only of supp ly I f eel it will take some time to get the 
supply of all this type of l amp we would r equire in this country. 
It is a comple t ely new model and as it has been developed in 
Bri t ain , it will be ordering a lot of a company of limited 
resources in manufacturing and it may t ake some time. I cannot 
say how long. Regarding the use or non-use of these in mines, 
inspectors have quite a lot of powers of pursuasion to have things 
done which they r equire to be done. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I am instructed tha t tha t is so. I would have 
thought tha t the power to approve of the saf e ty lamp would 
include the power t o wi thdraw approval from time to time and tha t 
this would not be a matter of legislation. 

HIS HONOR: If in any of these r ecommenda tions they are not 
matt ers of law but ma tters of pursuasion, I hop e the Inspectors 
will act with authority. 

Q. Mr. Menzies, would you r ead tha t through and have a look at 
the back and see whether it alters the view you expressed about 
being able to turn this one upside down?A. It does alter my 
opiniono 

Q. ~en you turn this upside down there is a switch inside which 
enabl e s you to t e st it and it always shows you have pl enty of 
me thane when you turn it upside down?A. That is so. It couldn't 
be used in the upside down position or lying fla t. 

MR. McNALLY: Q. The intake air - where is it on this, without the 
probe?A. We have' two. The bottom intake , here is the shutter. 
If we want any in ther e we put it in there. It is t he same a s 
t he old one. If we want to use the probe I would sugge st we 
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close the ro ttom one and put it in there . 
is open a l l the time. 

(Mr.Menziest demonstration concluded) 

The probe hole 

HIS HONOR : Is ther e any other evidence a.11yl::: ody v.ran t s to c::tll? 

MR .LEE: I draw Your Honor's at tention t o the top of page 604. 
Mr.Griffiths gave evidence and he had ~ calculation worked out 
as t o the quantity of air coming into the vent tube in th3 shunt. 
He calculated 1600 and 2000 cubic feet and a lit t le f~ t her down 

I sa id to him , "Q,The bleed tube that wa s in t he shunt a t the time 
of t his fire I think we have been t ol d vJ'as about 10 inches i n 
di ametel'. Do you need time t o calc ulate the d i fference? ••••• 
perhaps ·in a f ew minutes if I ask you to s tand down. Coul d you 
do it? A.Yes. 11 The matter was l eft there. There are a number 
of f actors corriing i n to it and I think it is suf ficient t o inform 
Your Honor that Mr.Griff iths if recalled woul d say the quanticy· 
of a ir v.rould be somewhat less. In other words v.re can tnke it that 
1600 to 2000cubic feet would be the maximum pos s i ble coming int o 
the tube and if it was a 10 inch tube it would be less than that. 

Does Your Honor wish to be referred t o an article by Mr. 
Hargraves, Seni or Lecturer, Department of Mining Engineering, 
University of Sydney,in "The Oustralasian Institute of Mining and 
Metallurgy Procee dings," No,2o8, Decembe r 1963, p.251, entilled 
"Some Variations in the Bulli Se3311n? I think Mr. Reynol ds has read 
this. It would not be an article from which Your Honol" c oul·d · 
be influenced in :my way in c:Lny matter r egarding the se proceedings, 
but it is somewha t he l pful in a gene r al wa.y in the und ers t anding 
of seam gas and things of an allied nature. 

(Mr.Reynolds not obj ecting , above ar ticle admitted and 
mar ked MM). 

HIS HONOR: Ther e being no further evidence I propose to adjourn , 
but I want to say that should some fact be re-discovered at some 
stage - I hope this will not happen <1nd I am not i nviting it -
but should s omethi ng of c onse quence be di s covered which necessit ates 
my hearing furt he r evidence betvTeen now and the time I finally 
make my r eporti then I am pr epar ed to listen t o such evidence. 
There for e I '.vi 1 not say that the evidence is c onclUded but I 
will say it 0ppears a l mo st cert ain the evidence has already 
co ncl uded i n t his matte r. 

I &~ told tha t t he local Magistra te has to calYa list in this 
Cour t on Monday morni ng next s o I lvill comrnence on Hond ay a t 10.30, 
I will then hear Mr.Lee, follovJ'ed by Hr. Reynolds • 

. , ' 

(For list of witnesses see page 993). 

(For list of exhibits see pages 994/5)~ 

(Further hea ring adjourned to Monday 14th February,196 6 
at 10.30 a. m.) 

992~ 



BULLI COL~IERY ACCIDENT INQUIRX 

INDEX TO T~~SCRIPT 

WITNESS OCCUPATION 

Shiftman 
Loco Driver 

ACKERHAN , 

ASHFORD , 
BARTLETT , 
CAMBOURN , 

CRAH , 

DONNEGAN , 

GRIFFITHS, 
HALL , 

HOPE , 

JAHES, 

JONES, 

KENT, 

LAKE: 

LONGVlORTH , 

McGARRITY , 

MANGLES, 

MENZIES , 

MUIR , . 

MURRAY , 
PADUCH , 

PARKINSON, 

PARSONS, 

PUDDLE , 

ROBINSON , 

SELLERS, 

STEWART, 

STONE, 

VAN A~lEN 

WALKER , 
WASSON 

' WHITTY 
' 

Maxwell Frederick 
Donald Alroyd 
Francis Kelvin 
Williarn George 

Robert Cecil 

Henry Ar thur 
James 

Llewellyn 
William Charles 
Frederick Albert 
John Leslie 

Dale 
Barry 
Clifford James 
Albert 

Maxwell 
Thomas Michael 

Robert Adair 
Mitchell James 

Esme Isabel 
Hans 
Victor 
Kevin Henry 
John 

Medical Practitioner 
Deputy 

Feder a tion Vice 
President 

Mines Department 
Analyst 

Mine Insp ector 
Machineman 
(S/Car driver) 
Sen. Elect. 

Inspec tor 
Fitter 
Electrical Fitter 
Bricklayer 
Mines Dep t.Inspector 

S/Car Driver 
S/Car Driver 

Sen. Mines Inspector 
Mines Department 
Inspector, Sp.Duties 
Widow 
Night Fitter 
Dist.Check Inspector 
Detective 
\fnder-Manager 

Clement Barrington S/Car Driver 
Gordon Consulting Engineer 

Charle s Robert 

Dennis John 
Henry 
Charles Alfred 
John Frederick 
Robert Edwin 

Deputy 

Mine Manager 
Machineman 
Deputy 
Manager,Hi-Flow Fans 
Miner 

PAGE NOS. 

130-138 
65-69 
180-182 
542-570; 
573-599; 
866-878 
571-573 

396-422; 
427-452 
599-609 
531-535 
13-27a . 
252-270 

47-62; 978-981. 
65; 99-100;981-83 
453-474 
138-179; 
184-226; 
232-252. 
123-130 
27a-47; 
474-479 
270-369/984-992 
37.1-395 
9~-977 -Stme~~ad 
424-427 
479-484 
484-529 
182-184 

717-775; 
796-865 
226-231 
879-945; 
951-971 

100-121; 
946-951 

611-716 

535-539 
69-98; 121-122 
?85-796 
539-541 

993. (List of Witnesses) 



"Au 

BULLI COLLIERY ACCIDENT INQUIRY 

LIS~ OF EXHIBIT..§. 

Plan - Part Bulli Colliery. Workings in 8 Right panel 
as at 13. 11. 6 5. 
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IN THE COURT OF ) 
COAL MINES REGULATION ) 
HOLDEN AT BULLI ) 

No . l of 1965. 

BEFORi HIS HONOR JUDGE GORAN 
ASSESSORS: Messrs . M.AHON and 

BUCK 

MONDAY: 14th Februa~y, 1966. 

jr. 

IN THE ~~TTER OF AN INQUIRY IN PURSUM~CE OF THE COAL MINES 
REGULATION ACT INTO M~ ACCIDENT WHICH OCCURRED AT THE BULLI 
COLLIERY ON 9th NOVEMBER 1965 AND ITS CAUSES M~D ~IRCUMSTANCES 

( PART HEARD ) 

NOTES SN ADDRESSES 

MR . LEE: When t he Minis t er f or mines came t o Bulli af t er the 
fire on November 9th 196) he promised a full public Inquiry into 
the disaster. This Inquiry befo r e Your Horror ha s fulfilled 
that promise in every r e spect. The proceedings have been 
l engthy and a considerable number of witne sses have been called 
but f r om t he grea t volume of evidence bef or e t he Court it is 
now po ssible t o deduc e with proci s i on and cert ainty the causes 
and circumstanc es of t he fire . Only good can come fr om t hi s 
Inqui r y . Firstly \vill Your Horror make specific r ecommerd a tions 
in r espect of ma tt ers and t hing s designed to promot e safe ty in 
the mine s in r egard t o ga s and t he se r ecommendations we can be 
confident will be i mp l emented a s expeditiously as po s sible . 
Secondly, t he Inquiry ha s made a r eal ~ ontribution t o the safe ty 
of men working the Bulli Seam - and probably elsewher e - in 
r evea ling tha t Illawarra bottom gas an inflammable and deadly 
gas may be f ound anywhere in t he Seam and tha t deputies and 
managers must be on guard for it a t all time s. Prior t o this 
Inquiry it wa s known tha t Illawarra bottom g3s was pre sent in 
t his collier y and el sewher e but it had been so little encoun t ered 
tha t its pr e senc e or likely pr e senc e wa s dismissed fro m c onsider­
ation , it seems, by those whose duty it \.va s to en sur e tha t dangers 
fr om gas were pr operly dealt with. This would pr obably have 
been t he c ase anywhe r e on t he Seam. This grave error l ed t o 
this tragedy. Ther e is no pr ecise knowledge of wher e Illawarra 
bottom ga s may be f ound i n the Illawarra district and t his 
Inquiry has sounded t he warning that it must be expect ed t o o~cur 
anywhere in any mine until the contr~ry is ab solut ely proved. 
Thirdly, the evi denc e has shown t h:1 t saf e ty in t he min ~ a s f ar a s 
gases ar e conc erned can only bo achieved if t hose whose duty 
it is to ensure safe ty ar e ever al~rt t o the possibility of 
danger , for t he mistaken belief by the deputie s and managemen t 
t ha t inflammabl e ga s, name ly Illawarra bo ttom gas , 1tJa s not 
presen t in this section was due ba sica lly t o an a ttitude of 
l o.xity to t he dange rs which ga s of any k ind pre sen ts in a mine . 
This a ttitude manifest ed itself in t he f ailure by t he deputie s 
t o me.ke the t es ts f or gas which ought t o have been made and which 
proper sa f e t y con siderations demand shall al ways be made no 
ma tter how unlikely it may be that a particular gas being t e st ed 
fo r vJill be found. It manifes t ed itself in t he f a ilure by the 
management t o be ever al ert t o t he n ec assity for proper t es ting 
t o be c arried ou t a t all time s and its failure t o t ako con scious 
and positive action t o ensure tha t t his would be so. It has no 
right t o r el y exclusively upon the deputies, it must bo conscious 
of t he dangers and ensure tha t proper t ests are made . 
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This a ttitude of l axity further manifested itself 
in the crea tion by the management in this section of a ventila tion 
scheme which, whether Illawarra bott om gas wa s present or not, 
contraven ed pr oper principle s of ven tila tion and disregarded 
el ement ary but fundamental saf e ty c onsider a tions. In the 
r esult the deputie s having f ailed t o make t hemselve s aware of 
the presence of Illawarra bottom ga s and ther e be ing a ventila tion 
system in ope r a tion which was inadequa t ~ even t o deal with 
noxious gas in quantity, the men wer e in f act f or an appreciable 
period of time in this particular ar ea , and in all probability 
in an eA.rlier part of the -vmr kings a month or so bef ore exposed 
t o c onditions of extreme danger. The fir e which did occur 
could ha ve occurred a t any point of time in t his period and an 
explosion also was possible. Had the ventila tion a t this point 
been arranged in accordance with acc ep t ed principl e s there is 
every possibility tha t notwithstanding t he deputies' f ailure 
the tragedy would n o t have occurred. 

I propose t o deal a t l ength with the f ailure of the 
deputies and of t he management t o deal with gas a s it should 
have been dealt with, not mer el y f or the sake of criticising 
them but f or the purpose of stre ssing t ha t a perfunctory 
approach t o t he pr obl em of ga s in a mine can only l ead t o 
si t ua tions of danger. No deputy who gave evidenc e h er e , n or 
t he manager or under manager can possibly be accused of showing 
a willful disregard f or the saf e ty of the men. Never a t any 
time did they expo se the men t o any danger whic h i n their minds 

v.J a s a danger woi·th considering. But t he errors made by them 
were errors of magnitude and whilst one must always r emember 
that no man is infalliblo ~ :d tha t many yearsr fr eedom 6rom 
any problem of bottom gas or any gas coul d well c ondition their 
minds to an a ttitude unappr ecia tive of the possiblo presence 
of gas in r eally dangerous quantities non e thele ss the errors 
would no t have been made if they had shown the degr ee of a lert­
ness t o danger necessary f or safe ty in any mine . 

The management seems t o have trea t ed v entilation 
as s econdary t o speedy extraction of coal. 

( 1) 

( 2) 

(3) 

(4) 

The Inquiry ha s e sta blished the f ollowing f acts: 

On 9th November a t 9 .15 a . m. there wns an ignition 
of ga s in the shuttle c ar shunt in section 8 Right 
which caused the loss of four mens' live s. 

The ga s wa s Illawarra bo ttm gas of a proportion 
appr oxima t ely (p.406) 40 per c en t CH4, 58 per c ent 
C02, 2 per c en t N2, which wa s inflammable and 

explosive in air (pe418). 

~he bottom gas came fr om the goaf outby of the 
bra ttice erected in A heading t o f or m the shunt. 
The gas wa s l a rge in quantity a s shown by the 
fir e '-1hich was of c onsider able magnitude . 

The ignition wa s se t off by hea t gene r a t ed in the 
disc brake section of the shuttle car No . 40 wher e 
a piec e of wood wa s j ammed c ausing t he \vood to 
ignite (p.414). It i s possible tha t the heat 
c aused inflammable hydraulic oil to ignit e (p.435) 
and/or caused coal dust n ear the bottom of the disc 
to coke (p.451) and give the spark n ec e ssary t o 
ignite the ga s. It seems on the evidenc e of 
Mr. Donnegan tha t it is more likely the ignition of 
the wood c aused the spark - it would have been a t a 
somewhat l ower t emper a ture than the hydraulic oil 
or the coke and wa s in charcoal f or m and could have 
been a t much lower t emper a ture (pp.435-6). But 
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( 5) 

( 6) 

( 7) 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11) 

(12) 

(13) 

(14) 

(15) 

(16) 

(17) 

whether it be the wood, oil or coke dust or a ll three 
it is clear tha t the ignition commenced in the disc 
brake me chanism , t he r e is no other possibility. 

The pr e senc e of Illawarra bottom gas in the goaf 
wa s unknown to the deputies or to the manag ement. 

The presence of bottom ga s in the goaf was not 
suspect ed by the deputi e s or the mana gement. 
(Mr. Puddle 1 s evidenc e , p .739) 

The deputy had t e sted in t he shunt a t r egular 
interval s from 2nd November to 9th November ond 
their tests r evealed no inflammable gas in t he shunt. 
The se t e sts wer e m8de with an oil safe ty l amp . 

The bra ttic e was put up in A heading with the 
knowledge of the management and for the avowed 
purpose of c ont a ining the gas in the goaf. (See 
Mr . Puddle's evidence pp.732-733). 

The management i:Jould no t have erected the bra ttic e 
in A heading or desi~1ed t he ventila tion syst em a s 
it wa s if it had known t ha t bottom ga s wa s present. 

When conditions pertaining in 8 Right section a s a t 
9th November, 9.15 a . m. were simula ted aft er the 
fir e bottom ga s was found in the shunt a t the go af 
edg e . 

Af t er the f ire bottom gas wa s found il1 the shunt 
and a t t he goaf edge and in t he goaf . 

Bulli Colliery is a c ollier y in which bottom ga s 
ha s previously been found since a s long ago as 1928 
although of r ec ent years in small quantitie s only. 
Mr. Puddl e test ed for it a t No . 3 and did not f ind 
it. (P.739) 

The bottom ga s found aft er the fire wa s r eadily 
de t ect ed by an oil sa f e ty lamp. 

In the deve lopment of t he working s in 8 Right the 
management had until am ut one month befor e the 
fir e follow ed a syst em which ensured tha t ga s from 
the goaf co uld pass into a bleed tunnel and be 
adequately and safely dilut ed. 

This syst em is accepted by the mana gement, the 
Department and Hr. Sellers to be a sound sy st em to 
be used in pillar extrac tion . 

This system was discarded bec ause the manag ement 
believed tha t r oof difficultie s likely to be 
encoun t ered r equired sp eedy wi thdrmval of the coal 
and speedy 1Ni thdrmval could not be achieved if the 
bleed tunnel we r e driven. 

This syst em had been devised by t he Mines Department 
and the colliery in conjunction in 1960 and had been 
used succ e ssfully in numerous other develop ments in 
the mine as well a s 8 Right . 

. With the source of the ignition and the nRtur e of the 
flre already established the Inquiry inevitqbly l eads on to 
ascerta in why ga s in such quan tity and inf l ammable gas a t th8 t 
should have been pr e sent in the shunt on No vember 9th. This ha s 
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led to a close inve stiga tion of the conduct of those entrusted 
with the safe ty of the men in the mine , namely the dgputie s 
and the management and we have had extensive evidence on the 
t e sting me thods emp loyed by the deputie s; the t e sts for ga s 
which they in f act made , t he t e sts made by the management, and 
the ventilation system de signed by the management. 

The findings of inflammable ga s, namely Illm·Tarra 
bottom ga s, after the fire established with certa inty the nature 
of the ga s .which wa s in the goaf befor e the f ire and it follows 
i nevitably tha t the ga s found in t he shunt prior to the fire, 
and it wa s found a s early as November 2nd and November 3rd, wa s 
infla~nable ga s. The deputie s r eport ed f~~ding noxious ga s, 
tha t is C02 , a t va rious time s befor e the fir e and t he only 
conclusion open is tha t t he se were in f act findings of Illawarra 
bottom ga s. It is clear and indisputa ble tha t inflamma ble 
ga s wa s pr esent in section 8 Righ t in the workings from the time 
t he extension t o No. 2 cut-through wa s cor~enc ed to be driven on 
2nd November. It is equally clear t hat at an earlier da t e , 
about one month befor e , when t he ext ension t o No. 2 cu t-through 
was driven, inflammable ga s wa s pr e sent in t he workings there. 
It has been shown po sitively tha t over an appr ecia ble period 
t her e wa s extreme danger of fir e or explosion or both in this 
section and tha t n either the d eputies nor the management were 
aware of it. 

As Neither the deputie s nor the management had any 
knowledge of t he pr e sence of Illawarra bottom ga s in t he s ection. 
It followed a s of c ourse tha t their conduct wo uld be based on 
this sta t e of t heir knowledge and we a r e thus furnished with an 
explanation of conduct \.Jhic h otherwise would be inexplicable. 
We ar e thus shown tha t wha t now appears to have been conduct 
unreasonable in the extreme -wa s a t the time conduct whic h wa s 
at l east consisten t with t he sta t e of a f fairs a s then known . 
It is t o a large extent irrelevan t in this Inquiry to criticise 
such conduct solely for t he purpose of exposing t he weaknesse s, 
fai lings and errors of those conc erned - the purpose and the 
only proper purpo se of criticism of the persons conc erned is to 
ensure tha t t he mi stakes made shall not occur again and tha t the 
na ture of the mistake shall be fully appr ecia t ed by t hose who 
work i n mine s in any capacity involving the duty to t ake proper 
s2fe ty pr ec autions. 

Ther e is not t he slighte st evidence tha t any person 
en trust ed with t he safe ty of the men in t his mine wRs guilty of 
ay wilful disregard for t he ir sa f e ty. The f act is, however, 
tha t the f ailure to discover the pr e senc e of bottom gas in the 
min~ before the fir e was the r eal cau se of this disast er, for 
as I have sa id everything was done fro m the point of view of 
safe ty on t he a ssumption tha t it wa s not pr e sent. Why then 
was it not discover ed? 

All the d eputie s {Pp.87, 92, 93 , 111, 112 117, 547/8) 
and Mr. Stone (Pp.647, 648/50) and Mr . Puddle (P.739) confe ssed 
to a knowledge tha t bottom ga s had been found in t he mind . All 
the deputie s clai m t hey t e sted for it and Mr. Puddle says he 
t es t ed for it in No. 3 . (P.739) 

. Three clear possible answers t o the que stion a s to 
~>Jhy lt wa s not discover ed and why it was in such quantity in 
the shunt a t the time of the fir e appear: 

(1) It c ame in quantity from t he goaf by r ea son of the 
expansion of the gase s in t he goaf caused by a f all 
of barome tric pr e ssure from midnight on the 8 t h 
until t he fir e a t 9 .15 on t he 9th and continuing 
t her eaft er. · 
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(2) 

(3) 

It came in quantity suddenly by reason of a 
fall in the goaf and/or floor heave which 
r e l eased large quantities of g a s into the shunt. 

It was at all times present in some quantity in 
the shunt and the deputie s failed to detect it 
on the safe ty lamp. The failure could have 
been due to the f act that although the tests wer e 
made for bottom gas, the deputies, becau se of lack 
of experience or because t he quantities of gas 
present did not show on t he lamp, could not ge t a 
positive result. It could as an alternative be 
due to the fact that the deputie s did not t est 
for bottom gas. 

It is our submission 
for one of t he rea sons set out 
explanation of the presence of 
before the fire. 

that failure by the deputies, 
above , is the most likely 
t he ga s in such a large quantity 

Let me explain why: 

As to (1) the barometric pressure drop, it will 
be remembered that this was put forward by the Department as a 
pos sible explanation of the accumula tion in the shunt. The 
Department went in and made certain findings and the only 
information it had was tha t ther e had been noxious ga s present 
beforehand according to the deputie s' reports. (Menzies: p.345) 
Some explanation then had to be found for the presence of 
inflammable gas which had not - if the deputie s were to be 
accepted - been pr e sent before . You had so to speak to assume 
that the goaf was locked up before the fir e and something made 
the Illawarra bottom ga s come out. The theory as put forward 
by Mr. Donegan accounts for a t l ea st some quantity of @S coming 
into t he shun t. Mr. Donegan's theory depends on certain 
calculations based on assumptions a s t o the nature of the goaf , 
absence of air and the like. Mr. Sellers' calculations based 
similarly on various assumptions lead to a conclusion tha t the 
amount of gas emitted a s a r e sult of the barometric pressure 
drop was n egligible. In the ligpt of the r ea son behind t he 
advanc ing of this theory and taking into account t he evidence 
r evealed in this Inquiry as to t e sting by the deputies, the 
absence of any suspicion on their part of t he pr e sence of botto m 
ga s and various o t her f ea ture s, it would be n ec e ssary to be 
very c ertain that t hi s theory provided a decisive answer 
before accep ting it. It clearly do e s not and r a ther falls into 
the background against the obvious conclusion tha t the g a s was a t 
all time s present but not detected. It is our submission that 
the pressure drop may well have added to the conflagration by 
causing the ga s to come out more readily 'but to vlha t extent we 
do not know, as Mr. Donegan said a t p.466 the continued pressure 
drop would feed the ga s into the exis ting fire. 

As to (2) - goaf fall and floor heave - this as 
Hr. Sellers fairly indica t ed is largely speculation but it is 
a possibility. It depends on assumptions and of course like the 
barometric pressure drop theory is necessary only if it is 
esta blished tha t bottom gas was not pr e sent in the shunt f or an 
appreciable time befor e the fire. Hr. Nenzies never saw any 
floor heave. (P. 325) 

As to (3) this situation is the most likely, namely 
that t he deputies not suspecting its pr e senc e did not either 
t est or t e st properly for it. 

As I said earlier it is abundantly clear tha t the go af 
gas was inflammable ga s - Illawarra bottom ga s - and that \AJha t 
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was ~etected by the deputie s on 2nd and 3rd was this gas. 
Whatever c ame fro m the goaf wa s Illawarra bottom ga s and ther e 
could be no doubt t hat tha t is wher e ga s found in t he shunt 
would come from~ It is common ground t ha t on the 2nd and 3rd 
when the shunt was crea ted for the extension t o No. 2 cut­
through the men and the deputie s ·wer e conscious, indeed acutely 
conscious, of gas. The bra ttic e erected in A h eading must, 
a s we know, keep the goaf ga se s back . The bra ttice did not 
keep the ga ses sealed behind it and accordingly ther e wa s not 
only the likelihood but a n ear c erta inty tha t Ill awar ra bottom 
ga s from t he goaf would come in. No doubt t he original er ection 
of the side brattice and the introduction of the bleed tube 
cleared the shunt for some little time of t he ga s, ( McGarrity 
p.l25-126; Ackermant pol33), but a s we know the side bra ttic e 
wa s taken down on 3rd November when the srnmting began. 
(Mangle s, p.476; Cambourn, pp.566, 584). Ther e is other 
evidenc e tha t over the week befor e the fir e some of t he men 
were at differ ent time s conscious of t he pr E:! senc e of ga s which 
the y thought wa s black damp. Mr. Hope vJa s aware of black d amp 
in section 8 Right (p.l8). Mr. Mangle s sa id he notic ed a 
strong odour in the shunt over a period but did not know it 
wa s ga s (p.31). Ther~ad been compl a ints of ga s in this ar ea 
(pp.~3-44) and ne himself had mad8 complaints. 

Mr. McGarrity and YIT. Acker man t estified a s t o wha t 
wa s obviously serious gas accumulation in t he shunt ar ea. 
Mr. Ackerman says he told Hr. Cambourn tha t ga s wa s 11 still 
seeping through", (P.l33) and t ha t Mr. Cambourn sug ge sted the 
bleed tube . He said he had been in 8 Right section about 
six week s and smelt ga s most nights (p.l36) and on a pr evious 
occasion in an earlier heading he had become n ausea ted on two 
occa sions (pol37). Clement Robinson gave similar evidence 
(p.227- 228) and sa id he could still ge t a bit of a t a ste aft er 
t he bl eed tube wa s put on. Mrs. Esme Hurray, the -r,.Jidow of 
John Hilton Murray gave evidenc e tha t in the week before her 
husband had told her he could not t a ste his food for the t a ste 
of ga s and tha t the Sunday befor e the fir e he seemed tired 
and unable to work and disinter e st ed in his usua l food. (~424-
425) At p.428 Mr. Donegan SRYS tha t an inhalation of C02 
can cause increa sed r e spira tion with consequent tiredne ss. 

In very similar circumstanc e s in No~ 3 cut-through 
Clifford J arne s Lake , a bricklayer, said tha t when the bra ttice 
wa s being put up for the shunt he could hardly brea the 11 It 
wa s t errific" (p.455) and even Mro Ste-r,.J art sa id, 11 Itt s pre tty 
crook11 • Lake sa id he f elt the sensa tion he de scribed both 
when st~~ding up and bending and this clearly indica t e s an 
accumulation of dangerous proportions. In No . 3 the bra ttic e 
wa s put up to keep t he ga s back. 

Mr. Carnbourn himself sa id ther e wa s always a distinct 
odour or t a ste in 8 Righ t section which he could not iden t ify 
or ge t on his light (p.561) but he n ever susp ect ed it wa s 
bottom ga s. 

Deputy 
the fir e but had 
(pp. 78-79-80). 
t ested for it at 

Charle s Walker found no ga s in the ar ea before 
found inflammable ga s a t t he goaf edg e elsewhe r e 
He n ever suspected bottom ga s (p.97) but 
all pl aces (p.e7). 

Deputy Stewart said tha t on t he morning of the fir e 
he found a patch of black damp after 8ft30 when h e went on his 
hands and knee s and smelt it (p.l09)o He too sa id he ne ver 
suspected bottom ga s but wa s look ing for it. 

. All the deputie s had found infla~nable ga s at some 
t1me or other in 8 Righ t. 
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In the light of our c erta in knowledge now tha t the 
goaf ga s was bottom gas and in view of the f act t ha t t he 
brattic e in A heading must cause a build-up of gas which 
howev er could l eak i nto t he shunt t he above evidenc e shows 
positively and without the n ec essity for any prood&Ers ··.of 
~fefenc e tha t bottom ga s wa s coming up i n to the working ar ea s 
in l a rge quantitie s for some Qme before the fire. Yet t he 
deputie s cla i m they t e sted f or i t. There ar e two pos sibilitie s 
in our submission: they did test and t e sted ineff ectually, 
or they did not t es t. 

It must not be forgot ten t ha t the bottom ga s in 
aue stion her e was gas which ever yone \vho t ested fo r it got 
r eadily on a saf e ty l amp. Mr. Sellers mak e s t he point ve ry 
strongly. The sugges tion t ha t in small quantiti e s of me thane 
i t is difficult to t e st seems qu ite ou t of accord with Mr. 
Sellers' sta t ement tha t he got on e per c ent quite r eadily. 
But in any ev ent it ha s been shm>Jn tha t 1.vhen conditions were 
simula t ed significant and not mer ely minor quantities of 
met hane 'i·Jere shown . ( Longworth, pp.l58 , 159 - 5% to 2t%; 
Sellers, p.882 - 3% to 4%). 

Your Honor will r emember tha t ~+1 the inspectors 
mainta ined tha t a compe t ent deputy could find bottom ga s if 
the me thane wer e significant. .Mr. Menzies says (p.283) the 
lamp will always show an inflammable mixture. The se observa tions 
are e stablished by Hr. Sellers• t e sts. They .did somewha t 
r eluctan tly admit tha t ih some witua tions it might be difficult 
but even then mainta ined tha t compe t enc e a lone wa s r equired to 
enable it to be detect ed. The subsequent t ests under the 
simula t ed conditions shm>J tha t it wa s r eadily de t ecta ble . 
It will be sugges t ed of course tha t the simula t ed conditions 
were n o t pr ecisely the SRme but we ha ve it from Mr. Cambourn 
(pp.596-597) t ha t it wa s 11 a f air t e st 11 and conditions were 
n early identical. 

Ther e is cogent evidenc e tha t if proper t e sting wa s 
done it would have r eveal ed the ga s and tha t wha t have been 
described a s def ic i encie s in the oil saf e ty lamp h ave nothing 
t o do wi t h the f a ilure to d e t ect t he ga s. 

Ther e is additional evideh~ e to support t he conclusion 
tha t t ests Wel~e no t made . Mr. Ste\<J art, a t p.llO, de scribed 
a t est fo r bottom ga s which is in r e ality a t e st for c arbon 
dioxide onl y - he used the same flame for c a rbon diox ide a s 
fo r me t hane . As Mr. Longworth pointed aut a t p.l53 this t e st 
r elie s upon seeing t he alter a tion in luminosity to d e t ect 
methane . In addi tion ~~. St ewart d e t ected wha t h e t hought wa s 
black damp by smell a t 8.30 .and l a belled it black damp without 
any evidence from his light t o justify this conclusion . No 
d~puty who had t e sted for bottom ga s, who couldn't ge t it on 
hls lamp, or black damp on his lamp, would dismiss it as black 
damp unle ss he wa s t o t ally r egardless of his own saf e t y and 
St~wart wa s not. The cont ~mp tuous way he trea t ed it is strong 
evldenc e of his a ttit ude to . bottom ga s. 

In Deputy Charle s Walker's evidenc e he admitt ed to 
a t e st behind the shuttle car which could not possibly have been 
a proper t e st. He says, a.t p.8l tha t he had to stre tch out 
and obviously he could not t est behind t he s huttle car. This 
could not have been a t e st for bottom ga s a t all wh~ch would 
have r equired t he l2mp to be lower ed in the manner we have had 
demonstra t ed. He t oo des~ribe s a t e st which is ver y similar to 
Mr. Stewart's. At p.93 h e says he lowers the flame a little . 
Mr. Longworth and t he others say you mi s s it with Q s mall flame , 
or can easily miss it .. (p.l53) 
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Mr. Cambourn 1 s evidence of the t e st is a t p.877 
and is after the inspector's evidenc e whereas Stewart's and 
Walker's were before. The true inference fr om all the 
evidenc e is tha t the deputies n ev er susp ected bottom gas and 
basically for tha t r ea son never t e sted for it. If ~owever 
you accept tha t they consciously did test for it -and St ewart 1 s 
a ssumption from smell tha t the g&s wa s black damp and not 
inflammable gas is very significan t against this being held -
then the test wa s El: test \-Thich would in all probability not 
r evea l it an~#ay. 

One may t ake a middle view and say t hat t he deputies 
tested for inflammabl e gas a t t he floor with t he sort of t e st 
you would expect t hem t o make when they a ssumed t ha t all t hey 
would ge t on the lamp i.<Jould be a carbon dioxidE.~ indication. 

There are other fea ture s in the deputie st evidenc e 
~vhich might be r eferred t o to indica te · the extent t o which 
their belief t ha t only carbon dioxide wa s pr e sen t governed all 
t he ir actions and ho1.11 de c3p ·wa s tha t belief. There g_re 
descriptions by McGarri ty and .Ackerman of ho\-J the side bra ttic e 
and bleed tube were installed after their complaints of ga s. 
There wa s Cambourn 1 s direction to t he dogwa t ch deput y to 
erect ordinary bra ttice (pp.554, 5~8, 557) notwithstanding 
tha t ther e was c emen t washed bra ttice in No. 3 and he t hought 
No . 3 was beL~g duplica t ed • It is irrel evan t a s t o whe ther 
what wen t up was ordinary or cemen t washed - I r efer to it to 
show a complete lack of appreciation of any danger a t all 
explicable only on the basis t ha t ca~bon dioxide a lone was t he 
gas likely t o be found. We saw· t he same l ack of appr ecia tion 
of ru1ything but ca rbon dioxide a t No . 3 where the min er had 
gone in lOO f ee t according to Mr. Lake a t p.459 before anything 
was done t o ventilate wha t had obviously become a very serious 
sta te of affairs and this sta t e of affairs, befor e the bra ttice 
was put up in t he he~ding, must have been getting a t l east s ome 
ventilation. In other words it got r eally bad before any one 
worried. This is only explicable on the footing t ha t no one 
ever though t of c arbon dioxide. 

It would be unfair to single out t he three witne s ses, 
Stewart, Walker and Cambourn who gave evidenc e here and trea t 
them as if they were r e sponsible for the deaths of the men here. 
The true position is tha t no one in a position of r e sponsibility, 
~hether deputy or staff, ever entertained the notion that ther e 
might be danger from Illawarra bottom ga s e~d the a ssumption 
tha t it wa s not there dicta t ed the conduct, no doubt, of all 
deputies and all on the staff, a lthough :.Je have heard fr om some 
only. There v.Jas an a ttitude of mind whi ch existed here and 
no doubt elsewher e - human weakne ss not wilful disregard fo r 
safety wa s the pr edominant f act. 

In our submission the prop er infer ence from a ll t he 
evidence is tha t the d eputies did not test for Illawarr~ bottom 
gas and tha t if they had they would have known tha t inflammable 
gas wa s pre sent and neither they nor the manager!lent would have 
allowed the section to be worked as it wa s. 

The lesson_to be l earned is tha t no deputy- indeed 
no p~rson in a position of r e sponsibility - on any part of the 
Bulll coal seafu should a ssume tha t he will not encount er 
inflammable ga s a t floor l eve l or n ear floor level. There is 
no pr ee ise knowledge a s t o wher e Illawarra bottom ga s will be 
found and this fir e shows tha t tragedy can occur by a ssuming 
tha t because a gas ha s not been d e t ected in t he past for a long 
period it will not be present in the futur e . It would be 
gr (3a tly in the interests of saf e ty if deputie s and managemen t 
on_the Bulli Seam could be informed of t he peril t ha t may 
exlst and tha t all deputies and management sa t i sfy t hemselve s 
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tha t they can a t this moment use t he oil saf e ty lamp in t he 
f a shion proper to detect bottom ga s. It is clear, ~s I 
have sa id, t ha t t he lamp will de tect dangerou s quant ltie s exc ep t 
in some li m~ited circumstances. I will l a t er on r efer t o 
specific r ecommendations t he Departmen t suggests might be made 
in r ega rd t o t he introduction of au t omatic d evices. 

Let me now, Your Honor, c onsider t he position of the 
management. It i s a bundantly clear tha t if Your Honor finds 
~ng the line s I have indica t ed , namely that the ~s was a t a ll 
material time s pr e sen t in the ar ea and ~ha t it was no t detected 
because it wa s no t t e st ed for by the deputies, then t he manage­
ment can quite rightly say t ha t it has been l e t down badly by 
its deputie s. It is very mwfh t o t he credit of the manager and 
under manager who gave evidence here t ha t no such suggestion 
has been made or even hinted a t. Rather t he c ompany ha s 
adopted the proc edur e of expl a ining wha t it did and why it did 
it and admitting quite openly and withou t r e serva tion tha t it, 
like its deputies, n ever for one momen t suspected tha t inflammable 
Illawarra bottom ga s was pr e sen t and tha t it arranged the 
ven tila tion syst em and c onducted itself abou t other mat t ers 
conc erned wi t h t he ar ea on this assump tion. As I have indicated 
e2rlier it would be idle and f oolish i n t he l igh t of al l the 
evidence t o suggest tha t the company wilfully expo sed the men 
to the dangers of Illawarra bottom ga s. I t is abundantly 
clear tha t t he ventila tion syst em c ontributed substantially 
t o t he fire . Its inad equacy even against normal si tuations 
will be demonstrc t ed and it had no hope of coping \vith 
inflammable bo ttom g a s in t he quan titie s I.Jhich were pr e sen t. 
The company conc ed e s this and it is hardly r el evant ther efor e 
to l a bour its inadequacy in t his r e spect. But, a s in t he 
ca se of the deputie s, on e must, if t hi s Inquiry is to do wha t 
I c onc eive it ought t o do , namely promo t e safety, criticise t he 
management for allowing itself t o be lulled into t he false 
position in \vhich it fmmd itself and one d oe s t hi s, Your Honor, 
for on e purpose only and tha t is so tha t a tragedy of the 
na ture we ar e dealing with here directly a ttribut ed t o bottom 
ga s cannot occur in t hi s colliery o r any o ther colliery again. 

The evidenc e shows not only tha t t he man&gement 
believed tha t Illawarra bottom ga s wa s not pr e sent but t ha t it 
t ook no worthwhile step s t o ensure tha t t he t e sting by the 
deputie s was accur a t e or tha t t hey wer e put on guard a s t o the 
po ssibility of it being ther e . It wa s known t o t he managemen t 
a s occurring in t his mine and this knowledge was all t ha t should 
have been r equired to bring abou t a r eal consciousness of 
possible danger. This consciousne ss wa s singularly l acking. 
The management, a s I have said, wa s l e t down by the d eputie s 
but it no doubt c ontributed substan tially t o this by its own 
undoubt ed a ttitude tha t the gas wa s no t t here . The only 
evidenc e we have of any st ep t aken by the management t o ensur e 
that bottom ga s wa s not pr e sent wa s a t e st made by Mr . Puddle 
a t No . 3. ( P. 73 9) 

The management n ever t e st ed in thi s area where the 
fir e occurred nor put the deputie s on guard in any way t o 
be alert t o the possibility of bo ttom ga s. 

Mr. Puddle ha s made it clear t ha t he never susp ected 
bottom ga s, t hat he thought he was dealing with n oxious gas 
and of course he r elied upon his deputi~ s' r eports t o a very 
large extent. However he did t e st for it a t No . 3 ( p .739) 
and could no t find it. He has t e sted before on occa sions but 
as he sa id 11 it is a r arity, not 2 common occurrenc e i n our 
colliery". He indicat ed in the c lear ost possible way a t p . 739 
that he t hought it wa s noxious gas he wa s dealing with in pu tt ing 
~he shunt in A heading and he t hought it wa s r ea sonable t o put 
1t t here. 
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Whilst we know and c an understand how the ventilation 
system came to be se t up in 8 Right s ection at the r elevant 
time and the a ssumptions which were made a s t o the nature of 
the gases pre sent, nonethel e ss the crea tion of the ventila tion 
system which wBs in f act crea t ed of itself shows a very 
substantial disregard for proper practic e s. Even on the 
assumption tha t the goaf gases wer e carbon dioxide a s Mr. Puddle 
believed, and Mr. Stone also, the er ection of a ~a ttice stopping 
for the purpose of containing the gas in t he goaf wa s fundamen tally 
bad practice. (Menzie s p.358-368· Muir, p.375-~90; 
Parkinson, p.507; Longworth, p~l955o But in any event he hcd 
no right to assume this a s inflammable ga s had been f ound 
frequently at the goaf edge. It not only showed g a s but showed 
a t a point where you c ould never know how much ga s would be 
likely to come out. You had the goaf a t the back emitting the 
gas and ye t wha t you did was to knowingly crea t e a situa tion 
where you must ge t ga s building up behind t he br a ttic e and 
yet until it got through in around the bra ttice you 1.vould have 
no idea of what quantity w.::~ s there. It was clear back a t 
No. 2 and No. 3 tha t the ga s was there in quantity and to adopt 
the expedient of storing it showed a very poor appreciation 
of the principles of vent i lation. It 1-1a s righ t a t t he back 
of the shunt placeo In addition the bra ttice pr evented any 
inspection of the goaf edge at the point where ga s wo uld mo st 
likely come from if it was noxious ga s. This wa s because of 
the topography of tha t ar ea . It also preven t ed examination 
of the goaf edge for inflammable ga s. The company wa s well 
aware of the pre sence of fr ee me thane and in f act it had b een 
found, usually a t the goaf edge . 

The company put the bra ttic e in A heading bec ause 
t ha t is wher e it wanted the shunt, tha t is, it disregarded 
proper ventilation theory for the Sr ke of ea se of \vork. 

Ther e wer e other systems available which whil e not 
t he optimum \.vould at least have shown , if i mpl emented, tha t 
t he c ompany had some appr ecia tion of proper ventilation principle s. 
It could have r emoved the bra ttic e fr om A and put it reross the 
cut-through a~d ventilated the edge of the goaf. lit could 
have used a side bra ttice a t the edge of the goaf a s was done 
(p.l58) (see pftl52 for bra ttice acro ss No. 2 cut-through at 
B. heading: see ske tches) Mr. Parkinson at p.494 outlined 
another easily arranged setting a s shown on ske tch 3 except 
tha t the brattice in the cut-through would be one allowing the 
shuttle car t o go t hr ough& (P.495) It could hav e r e-loca ted 
the f ans in t he cut-through a s shown on No. 3. 

Ther e wa s nothing to stop the company using t he se 
systems but they were no t a s conveni ent. The c ompany without 
doubt showed a very k 00n awareness to matters conc erned with 
production - it should have shown the same keen approach t o 
ventilation. 

It could have put the shunt in B heading (Menzie s 
p.303) but it \A/ould not be as conveni ent. (Stone 657-8). 
It could have put the shunt on the other side (p.32l) and 
reversed actions by the cars. 

Any of these systems would at l east have shown that 
the company had some genuine awareness of the difficultie s 
and dangers inherent in the goa.f be ing n earby. 

It could have reversed the airways. This of course 
was a large t a sk. 

. So bad was the system it in fact devised that one 
lnspector Mr~ Muir said he would have stopped all workings in 
tha t area. (P.384). 
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Secondly, its method of ventila ting the shunt by the 
bleed tube wa s indefffinsible on any view. The witness Wasson 
said he had n ever seen thi s before (p.753) and it wa s 
con trary to engineering practic e and not good. As Hr. Griffiths 
showed , t here wa s very l ittle air en t ering the shunt from the 
main stream (p.605) and all this tube would do would circulate 
1500 to 2000 cubic fee t in a very limited area of influenc e . 
It c ould not, a s wa s shown by Mr~ Stewart, dissipate wha t 
appears t o have been a small pocke t of ga s. 

The c ompany seems t o have used this me thod without 
r egard at all t o its obvious l i mita tions. Accepting, a s we 
do , that Mr. Puddle though t he was d~aling only with noxious 
ga s, it is clear tha t this me thod of ventila tion could expose 
th e shuttle c ar driver t o danger n t any time . It also shows 
a lack of alertne ss on the part of t he management a s t o the 
i mportanc e of ventila tion. It did some t hing her e whic h it h ad 
no righ t t o a ssume would be effective . It had no specialised 
knowledge of t he effect of the fan a s a ventila ting agency and 
ye t it placed t he entire shunt ar ea under the dependence of t hi s 
on e agency. As Hr. Wa sson sa id t he function of t he fan wa s t o 
ventila t e t he f ace and he woul d not have i magined a dual 
ventilation a t the f ace and t he shunt (p.794). It seems 
totally irrelevant t ha t the system worked in No . 3, as Mr. Puddle 
claims. It wa s bad and indefensible a s it 'WlS in No . 2. 
It wa s i mprovisa tion , as Mr. Longworth put it, a t p.176. 

So t he ventila tion system , apart from t he a ssump tion 
by t he WBnagement t ha t it wa s dea ling only with noxious gas , 
was gravely defici ent. It is difficult t o understand why 
these deficiencie s were not appar ent t o Mr. Ston e or Mr. Puddl e . 
They could bot h see t hat they had crea ted a situa tion where gas 
wa s stored behind a bra ttic e which if it came t hr ough into the 
comparatively confined space of the shunt was i mmedia t ely 
ha rmful unle ss the vent tube disposed of it. Ther e wa s no 
ba sis f or t hinking it would. Mr. Puddle, at p.730, said he 
told t he deputie s to ukeep an eye on t he ar eatt bec ause of the 
likelihood of noxious ga s coming in but no special prec autions 
were t aken. It wa s sheer blind faith and hope tha t all would 
be \4Tell. If it had this situation and insisted on it it might 
have shown some awar eness of wha t it wa s doing or how def ective 
t he system wa s if it had put a bleed from behind the brattice 
over t he intersec tion to behind t he bra ttice near the fans. 
(Mr . Menzie s, p.300). 

I t is I>Jo rth while pointing out some evi dence here 
given by Mr . Lake . He said he wa s cal l ed in a hurry and when 
he got there he de sc r ibed conditions a s very serious. The miner 
wa s lOO f ee t in. The bra ttic e in A heading had not been erected. 
One can only specula t e a s t o why this serious situa tion was 
p:ermi tted to exist whi le t he min er wen t lOO f ee t. Mr. Puddle 
as I have said , r e lie s upon t he fac t t ha t t he system wo rked a t 
No. 3, but in the light of what we know nmv he must indeed be 
puzzled a s t o vJhy it did work f or the short po sition is tha t it 
had no right t o work . Ga s which he thought wa s noxious had, 
on t he evidenc e , come out in serious quantitie s in No. 3 and 
Yet he decided to contain it - and so it would not again oome 
out in serious quantity. The non sequitur is obvious. 
(Hr. Parkinson, p . 585) 

Not only did the company pr ovide a poor and ineffici ent 
syst em of ventila tion but it departed f rom a system of long 
standing which had worked well. In 1960 ~IT. Muir had made it 
clear t ha t in pillar extraction you had to have a bleed tunnel . 
I t did t his in Green~ Viole t and Purple panels, in this sec tion 
and el sewher e (po637J. It wa s t oo l a t e in t he day, we submit 
~or the mana gement t o make any a ssump tions on how a go af might' 
e .dealt with other t han with a bleed tunnel. I t had been 

tr1ed over 5 years without incident, on its own admission. It is 
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perfectly true trot in thj_s type of development you may with the 
bleed tunnel ge t some goaf gases ente!'ing the intake a irway 
before getting to the return but this in no way detracts from 
the system 9 as Mro Muir said at pn393c You have the grea t 
advantage of being able to direct the ventilation around the 
goaf and dilute any ga ses ~ You also have the advantage tha t 
you can ge t at the poi nts where you expec t ga s and t e st for 
it continually. You are two pillar l engths back. (See 
Mr. Muir 7 s file) With this kEowledg e the cmj.pany crea ted 
almost a mirror l mage of what had been forbidd en in 1960. 
Mro Stone did not kno~ of the se r equirements but knew of the 
bleed tunnel sys tem.. Mr ~ Puddle did and knew tha t inflammable 
ga s had been found under the forbidJen system of 1960. The 
company had t he benefi~ of the Departments L~junction and its 
own exp erience. Its justifica tion for this departure was the 
roof conditionso (Pa 72l)o 

It is clear from Mr a Puddle ts sta tement tha t he wa s 
aware tha t he was departing from an effective system - the 
whole sta tement is fr amed tha t way,. He r ef ers to ventila tion 
making a concession to !'oof difficult ieso (Po722) All tha t 
he says as to roof conditi ons may be correct but if he wa s going 
to depart from a we l~ e stablished system it wa s incumbent upon 
him vo d evise an effective system in i ts place . The one he 
did d evise was 9 as has been shown, lamenta bly inadequate even 
t o dea l with noxious gas., His admissi on tha t the bleed tunnel 
system i s accepted as the desirable one in dealing with a goaf 
make s it unnece:...;sary 'Go r efeJ:- to the evidenc e of the inspectors 
that this is the~r optimumo We can accept it. 

Bo th MrG Stone and Hra Puddle in t heir sta t ements 
assert tha t they be}-leve any othar systems put in would have 
f ailed t o deal with the gas on November 9tho The short 
answer t o all this is tha t if the bleed tunne l sys t em bad been 
in oper a t ion you could by adequa t e t e sting and proper t e sting 
have s een any danger aris jn g and dealt wi th i t. Of 08Urse 
if t hey are to be taken J.:;o mean that 1.vi th t heir knowledge and 
t he deputies: knowled6c that only noAious ga s wa s pr e sent the 
fir e would s till have taken place with a bleed tunnel we can 
only say t ha t it was much l ess llicely tha t it would have happened 
because the ga ses would have been diluted by the air c~rrents 
over some distanco a M:t>a Sel1.er s said you migh t have got a 
bad ho l e . Well. obvlousJ~ you would go on till you got a 
good oneo In any even t no one sugges ts tha t had eve r happ ened 
in this colli0ry~ Whils t in on e sense the absenc e of the bleed 
tunnel is causa sir.J qua non and not causa causans the 
departure by the company from a proved principle of ventila tion 
of a goaf is some thing which should not happen unless the 
~ystem substituted can be reiied. upon to work . If a departure 
1s t o t ake place the management makes the departure a t its 
peril~ 

The d epartment, having l ent its service s in the 
developing of a proper method to venti late a goaf is entitled -
:md so ar e the men in the mine -~ to expect that if tha t system 
ls to be depar t ed from it w1ll be no tifj_ed befor ehand. 

There are other f ea tures in t he evidenc e which add 
to thP. . , subm~ ss ton that the company showed an offhand approach 
to the que stion of V3Dr.il_;:lr.-ton of gas in the mine - an a ttitude 
of course stemrrrl.ng e ssenci ally from its be l ief tha t only noxious 
gas WRs present, but nonetheless quite unjustifiable. It had 
the ga s r e t ur n s ., Nov.1 ~ ::_ t would be nothing shor t of hindsight 
~o sugge st t ha t the c; ompany could have go t t he clue to the ga s 
~n t he goaf from t he s e but.: l t 't.Jould have been comforting to 
. ear some witne sses say !:Woll, I di d study them.- I saw the 
lncrea se and I t hought it mj_gh t be due t o this or tha t. u 
Instead we have ovj_dence the effe ~t; of 't.Jhich i s :1You don't worry 
about an increa so tm til you get; a dangerous quantity of ga sn. 



No longer must this attitude persist. 
speak eloquently. 

The gJ. s r e turns here 

Likewise with the baromet er. Onc e again the effect 
of the evidenc e is to reject its significance. Perhaps it is 
of no significance. But it wo uld again be comforting to 
have had someon e say "well? we do look a t it in r el a tion to 
possible expansion of ga s lil the go af and we t ell t he deputies 
rit 1 s falling' "· 

Then again, Your Honor, ther e wa s the mistake made in 
holing the gonf which prevented holing for some days. Here 
again the company showed no evidence of an appreci a tion of the 
importance of the bleed tunnel. No urgency was f elt nor any 
concern shown for the f act tha t the men would be working in 
conditions of some danger - grea t danger a s we now know -
but of course no sp ecia l danger a s the management t hen thought. 
Obviously the bleed tunnel should be driven a s expeditiously 
a s possible and the goaf then ceased to be a sourse of danger 
of any ~oal consequence if, of course, the ventilation system 
is defective. Proper ventilation took second place t o the 
desirability of full production shifts. 

There is evidence from which an infer enc e could be 
drawn tha t the company did not intend to split this pillar at 
all a s it c l ai ms and tha t its claim tha t it did so is an 
aft erthought. Mr. Puddle 1 s sta tement suggested it had not 
been done in No . 11, (See also Mr. Cambournrs evidence) 
where the pillar had been split sideways. I do no t pass upon 
this controversy because it is illLDecessary to do so. The 
significance of not accep ting t he claim of the management tha t it 
intended t o split the pillar l engthwise is t hat it would show 
t ha t the company had abandon ed the bleed tunnel syst em both in 
No . 11 and here compl e t ely and tha t the danger t o t he men wa s 
extreme in both c a se s in t he l ight of the informa tion we now 
have. 

I have endeavoured in this addre ss to avoid a ttributing 
t o the company the knowledge we have now and I have attempted to 
point out only the obvious difficultie s in the company 1 s planning 
and supervision of section 8 Right from t he point of view of 
ventilation end ga s. It is useless t o criticise the system 
on the ba sis that bottom ga s wa s found. It wa s not designed 
for bottom ga s. But even so it wa s deficient f or noxious ga s 
and free me thane . The conclusion which emerge s is tha t the 
company's f ailure to be awar e of bottom ga s in thi s s ection 
\vas due firs t ly to an almost comp lete r elianc e upon t he t e sting 
of the deputie s and secondly to a f a ilure to show the alertness 
which must be ever present in the management - an a lertness whi ch 
wo uld have discovered the ga s which ha s been so r eadily 
discoverable sinc e . It was known th the management before the 
fir e but t he mana gement never gave any sp ecia l direction tha t 
deputies be on the wa tch f or it, or checked with the deputies 
to ensure tha t their t e sting me thod s wer e proper or tha t its 
own wer e correct. Its f ailure to detect the ga s justifie s 
the same criticism against it a s the criticism against t he 
deputies. It never used the rne thanome t er which it had in the 
colliery. One can say it knew of bottom ga s but did not pay 
any regard to it. This was its error. It is to be hoped t ha t 
this error will never be made a ga in h ere or elsewher e . 

The standard of saf e ty is indeed high and it require s 
uonstant alertness. 
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May I now go to some matters upon which the 
Department would seek or a sk Your Honor to make recommem a tions. 
I put it in general form at this sta ge bec ~use no doubt other s 
a t the Bar t a ble will wish t o say someth ing about t hem and it 
may be later on when we are either a ll in agreement or we can . 
see points of agreement and disagr eement , r educed t o some 
subsequent form. 

Firstly a s to the shuttle car evidence has been 
given that the Fox Manufacturing Company is a t the moment 
experimenting with the possibility of a totally enclosed brake 
system. No doubt the improvement of t he shuttle c ar is 
something which could only come from the manufacturers but 
until tha t improvement t ake s place the Department sugges ts 
the following a s be ing easy to implemen t and presenting no 
problem: that t here should be a r egular inspection for the 
presence of coa l dust, wood and other foreign matt er behind 
the guard of the brake . You can t ake t he cover plate off and 
with a torch look down and with a broom or simila r instrument 
9'U can push it out of the road. I sa id 11regular 11

• Sorre body 
might suggest before the shift started or at t he end but, at 
any r ate , a r egular inspection. 

HIS HONOR : I suppose you have to put the machine out of 
running. I would hnve thought if it was a simple job to 
inspect, a s t he evidence shows, one could expect perhaps an 
hourly inspection. I may be able to be assisted on tha t. 

MR . LEE: I am putting it in general for m becau seno doubt the 
other gentlemen at the Bar t able will have some worthwile 
observa tions to make on tha t aspect . 

The second observation is tha t sorr.e body, I don 't 
know who, would make r egular inspections of the wheeling road 
for t he pr e senc e of obvious pi eces of wood. 

Mr . Muir referred to the possible use of non­
inflammable hydraulic oil. I may say it is the Department's 
view and I do not put it dogmatically because we would like to 
hear from the o ther gentlemen on the matter but it is the 
DepartmGnt 1 s view tha t t here is no r eason why such oil should 
not be used . The Department's knowledge is tha t it is avail­
able. 

HIS HONQR. I understand there is a cost factor involved in 
that . · 

MR . LEE: That may well be so. Ther e is an emulsion which takes 
the pl a ce of the existing hydraulic oil. In f act ther e ar e 
certain emulsions in use oversoa s r ep l ac ing hydraulic oil. 
So much for the shuttle car. 

As f ar as the safe ty l amp is c onc erned we have seen 
the new edition of the l amp with the probe and such lamps are 
~vaila ble and it is the Departmenta l vi ew t ha t they should be 
lntroduced, that is the l amp with the probe ~Dd r e-lighter 
a ttachment. 

The Department also t ake s t he view there is no 
:eason why methanometers approved of by t he Department should 
not be introduced for use by the deputie s and others in 
conjunction with the oil saf e ty lamp . 

HIS HONOR : Not in substitution? 

MR. LEE: No t in substitution. 

HIS HONOR: Are you a ble t o t e ll me what methanometers have 
been approved by t he Department? 
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MR. LEE: Yes, Your Honor. 
is quite effective . 

The M.S.A. is a popular one and 

HIS HONOR: The rules require any device used for this purpose 
mus t be an approved device • . 

MR. LEE: The M.S.A. methanometer is a methanometer which is 
approved under the· Regula tions as they stand a t the moment 
but if you were going to introduce a regulation tha t the 
deputies had t o t es t with a me thanometer of course you would 
have to ge t approval. 

MR. MURRAY: Am I to understand the M.S.A. ha s been approved by 
the Depar tment? 

MR. LEE: The M.S.A. methanometer ha s been approved by the 
Chie-f Inspector but let us understand as a matter of law tha t 
his approval doe s not go to it bec ause it has to be written 
into t he Act. 

MR. MURRAY: Wnen wa s it approved? My friend is pointing to 
what appears t o be a document. 

MR. LEE: We have t he f act that the Department considers tha t 
the methanome ter may be used. There will have to be, at a 
point of time , approva l given to a particular methanometer if 
this r ecommendation Your Honor undoubtedly will make become s 
law. The Department is quite open on the matter of which 
ones have to be used. 

HIS HONOR~ If one looks one see s Rule 4, p.86, of the Act. 
One would have thought tha t I did not have to r ecommend 
legislation , tha t I merely had to r ecommend tha t t he d evice be 
brought to the attention of the Chief Inspector. 

MR. LEE: Is tha t so? You have t he 11 oru in t he paragraph. 

HIS HONOR: I suppose I would have to recommend tha t legislature 
be introduced to make it compulsory. That is perfectly true . 
What happens in the case of me saying in my report tha t there 
is an M.S.A. me thanome t er and I r ecommend the use of it should 
be made compulsory and I then find the Chi ef Inspector ha s 
not approved of the particular device? 

MR . LEE: I cannot see any difficulty, I am afraid. The Act 
says the Chief Inspector shall approve - unless Your Honor is 
going t o suggest tha t tha t be amended? 

HIS HON OR~ . I am not,Mr. Lee. 

MR. LEE: The Chief Inspector says he will be delighted if 
Your Honor recommends and he indicate s that the M.S.A. is a 
popular and suitable type to be introduced. 

HIS HONOR ·. I th S s e M. .A. me thanome t er a device app roved of by 
the Chief Inspector under the Gen er a l Rules? 

MR. LEE: V • t _._ e s, l is. 

MR. MURRAY: So I c an follow my fri end's sugge sted r ecommenda tion 
could I repeat my que stion: When was it approved and in what 
document .might the approval be found? 

MR . LEE: I cannot answer tha t at the moment. 

~ffi . REYNOLDS: You cannot de t ec t C02 with it. 
to be one device I d on't know. 

Whether it ha s 
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HIS HONOR: The question is whe ther it is a device approved for 
the purpose of t e sting under the General Rule s. Mr . Mahon 
point s out I can disregard the . que stion whe t her it is approved 
under the Gener al Rule . If you t urn to p . 2l7 you see 20F. 
There is the General Rule . I think Mr . Murray is entitled to 
be infor med as t o when and where suc h approva l may be discovered . 
I do not mean he is entitled to be told a t this moment. 

}ffi . LEE: We will t ell him. I cannot conc eive a situa tion 
which has come about now in \vhich we ar e going to recommend 
the use of the methanome t er in c onjunction wi th the oil safe ty 
lamp wher e you could ever find anywher e in t he Act or anything 
done by the Chief Inspector an approva l in r el a tion t o tha t. 
It is a n ew situa tion and the inspector may approve the M. S.A. 
and ha s, I am told, under F for the use with oxygen acetylene 
torche s and so forth but he will have to specifically give an 
approval which will be gazetted und er s .79A for t hi s purpose . 
I am sure tha t must follow. So when Mr . Murray a sks when the 
approva l wa s given we could not shov.1 him an approval for the 
use of the me thanome t er for the purpose s of the Act in t he 
sta t e of af fairs tha t t hen existed. 

HIS HONOR: Wha t about the Toka . Could you make an enquiry 
abou t tha t a s t o the a ttitude of t he Department? I do not 
mean now. 

MR . LEE: The Department t akes the view that the large M.S.A. 
monitoring devic e we saw which is a ttac hed to t he miner c ould 
be i n troduced but onc e again this i s put forward to Your Honor 
a t t his stage so that t he views of others may be given on it. 
The se are not being put dogma tically. 

Likewise the monitoring devic e which c an be hung up 
is also a devic e t he Department considers suitable for use in 
Mines but once again it v.mnts to hear the vie'l.vS of all concerned 
on t he ma tter and it does occur t o me t o say a t this s t age t ha t 
Your Honor might well c onsider, af t er h earing everybody's views , 
t ha t Your Honor's r ecommenda tions on the introduction of the se 
ma tt ers might be l eft in quite a gen er a l form. 

HIS HONOR : I agree with you at this mo ment, subj ect to hearing 
other counsel. I t hink it would be wrong for me to say a t 
this stage tha t t his device should be used . It may be 
something will become known to people concerned in the 
Department, or the peopl e conc erned in t his Inquiry, which will 
be much more eff ective. 

' 
MR . LEE : We have it in evidence t ha t since the fir e in England 
in 1965 the English people ar e more conscious of this problem 
and there ha s been liaison be tween the Department her e and 
the English authoritie s and, of cour se , we in t his country do 
no t make any device s a t all so tha t we have to r ely upon such 
deve lopments as ar e made oversea s but the matt er is ver y muc h 
pr e sent i n the Department 's mind. 

So fa r a s the self-re scue unit is c onc erned t he 
Del?artment would r ecommend tha t t hey be made c ompulsory. I 
t hlnk tha t would bring t he sta t e of affairs into line wit h the 
practica l sta t e of affairs wher e t hey ar e in f act be ing used by 
the men a t this very inst an t. I t hink somebody sa id tha t. 

MR . HURRAY: At Bulli? 

HIS HONOR: I don 't know . Perhaps somebody c an t ell us. 

MR. PARXINSON: Mr . Sellers gave evidence tha t t hey wer e being 
Used a t Huntley Colliery. 
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HIS HONOR: Mr. Murray has specif i cally asked ar e t hey being 
used a t the moment a t Bulli Colliery. 

MR . LEE: So muc h f or the introduction of safe ty d evic e s. The 
nex t subj ect ma tt er of r ecommendat ion has t o do with t he standard 
of t he deputie s. One t hing the Depar t ment f oel s could be done, 
and done easily, it may need a li ttle co-oper a tion fr om the 
collierie s but would not cos t anybody any thing , is t o ensure t ha t 
every deputy beforo he is given a certificate of compe t ency is 
t aken on a f i eld day, if you like , int o a collier y and t e sts ~o r 
ga s i n the actual condit ions in ·whi ch he may be exp ec t ed. t o fllld 
it and t o pa ss a pr actical t es t i n tha t r e gard. NovJ tha t we 
know what we do know we would submi t t ha t tha t omission from the 
deputie s' training is a serious one and can r eadily be ovorc ome . 

The Department would seek a r eco mmendation from 
Your Honor in r egard t o deputies a long a slightly differ ent l ine . 
I r efer to P• 20 of the Act, sub- section 2 of s. 6. (Read) 
Your Honor will s ee t ha t the Department itself doe s not figur e 
very prominen tly in t he Board. It ha s an inspector. 

HIS HONOR : One inspector only, 

MR. LEE: Tha t is not t o be t aken a s any criticism of this 
Board, 

HIS HONOR : On the other hand it c ould be repre s ented under 
section B. 

MR . LEE: It might be . Putting it gen erally t ho Department 
would a sk Your Honor t o ~e a reco mmendation t o t he Mini ster 
t ha t he would inform the Coal Mine s Qualific a tion Board of the 
neee s sity for t he deputie s to have this practica l exp eri enc e I 
m ve spoken about and, further, t ha t the Board en sure at all 
time s tha t the qualif icat ions of the deputies ar e in keeping 
wi t h the pr evailing high standards of educa tion i n this communi ty. 
We will need deputies for many many years t o e ome ~~d t her e 
would appear t o be no r ea son why those se tting examinations 
should not take very strongly int o ac•ount t ha t people can be 
educ a t ed nowadays up t o 4th yea~ and various qualifications are 
set, The Board should be very e onseious in our submission of 
the availability of high standards of education and the insist ence 
on those high standards whieh is fitting in· our c ommunity, Tha t 
i s one way, if Your Honor makes some such r e«ommenda tion t o the 
Minist er - I do not t hiru{ you c ould r ee ommend t o the Board -
of bringing about in tha t ar ea , name ly in t he Bo ard itself, a 
~ e al eonsc1ousness of t he ne~ e ssity for men t o be a s highly trained 
as pos sible be~ ause notwithstanding our automati~ devices whi•h 
may be introduced ther e can be no doubt the oil s af e ty lamp will 
still be r elied upon very heavily and very properly •o 1 The 
Board may upon such a r ee ommenda tion ensure tha t the ~a•s 
standard wa s a very mu•h highel' pa ss standard and noti so to 
sp eak , a pa~s standard tha t did not · really t e st at a l • It 
is not t o be t hought this is the ca se but the Department doe• 
~onside r a r ecommendation •oming f~om the Mini•ter along the 
lines I have indica t ed eould serve a very useful purpose, 

HIS HON OR: Wha t about t he question of deputie s already tieke ted 
and ~ o~king in the mine s and on whom t he men r e ly! 

MR. LEE: It is a serious problem tha t ha s exercised t he mind of 
the Department and t he only way t o d eal with it is by amendment 
to the Act t o ensure , for ins tane e , tha t a t t he end of a 
par ticular period a deputy should r e-submit himself f or a 
certifica_t e of compe t ency • 

HIS HON OR : Or, a r efr e sher course of sh8rt dura tion upon 1.<1hich 
they may be examined and if t hey f ail t o pass, thoir doputyls 
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ticket susp ended till they have passed . In other words you 
ar e checking up on the deputie s to see they ar e up t o dato with 
1.vha t the Departmon t r equires, or what the examiner r equire s . 
I do not mean to mak e them go back t o school and ge t a higher 
standard of educ a tion but the practica l t e st seems t o me t o be 
al mo st e ssential. I would think it mi ght not be bad idea 
t o t ake t hi s practic a l example of -..vha t ha s t aken pla c e a t Bulli 
and push it down the deputie s throa ts for all time t o c ome and 
tha t is without passing any strictures on t he deputie s c onnected 
wi t h t his case - I am not doing t ha t - it might 1vell sav e any 
other depu ty from taking wha t might be called a c avalier a ttitude 
t owards t he dan Eer . 

MR. LEE : It is clearly a matter which is in the f orefront of 
Your Honor' s mLnd, the question of \.J ha t mi gh t be done to keep 
the st andard of t he exi sting depu ti e s up t o a standard which 
ough t t o be maint s ined. 

The next r ec ommenda tion is in r egard t o pilla r 
extraction: the manag er of the c olliery 1vould advise the 
Depar tment of t he ven t ila tion syst em it proposed t o adop t shmrJing 
(1) any existing go af area s or old workings in t he vicinity , 
(2) the inta~e and r e turn airways, (3) the position and type of 
all stoppings and (4) the proposed loca tion of auxiliary f an s and 
the number ther eof and r ec eive appro va l of the Department 
before c ommencli1g, n o variation t o take place aft er pillar 
extr - ction c ommenced \vithout the written approval of the 
i nspector. 

May I add s omething about a matter which ha s, in our 
subnis sion, nothing r eally t o do with this fire . It may be 
of advan t a ge t o some of the o the r gentlemen who may lrJish t o say 
some thing abou t it . It is on t he que stion of stone dusting. 
The Departmen t a t the pr e sent time is c onsidering making sub­
stantia l r ec ommenda tions to t ile Minister in r egard t o stone 
dusting, quit e unr el a t ed t o this fir e and I thought Your Hono r 
should be awar e of that . 

Ther e is ano t her matter, I would wish t o dra"YT to Your 
Honor's a tt ention bec ause it c ould well be Your Honor migh t 
consider it withou t going into any de t ail a t a ll, that it would 
be quit e appropria t o t o IIlL'lke ·some gener al r ec ommendation th3. t 
this Act bo looked a t and brought into accord with modern 
conditions . Ther e are ar ea s in the Act whiclr s eem t o be strang e ly 
r emo t ei from t he pr e sent day r eality. Le t me point to s.5l(b)(l) 
as an illustra tion of wha t I mean a bout t ho Act not having kep t 
pace a t all points with modern t echnol ogy. It is on p . 68. · 
It is r a t he r pertinent t o this disa st er bec ause if this s ection 
had been complied "Ylith this would no t have happ ened but it did'!: 
not ha ve t o be complied with because the r equir ed number of men 
\ve r e not ther e . You need t en men for it and wha t; has hapn(:med 
is t .ha t s i nc e the introduction of mechani sa tion you ge t rnu~h 
smaller groups of men . I merely draw tha t t o Your Honorts 
att ention . 

Ther e ar e o ther parts of t he Ac t and Your Honor 
might -think it appropriate without r ef erring sp:3ci f ic ally t o it 
to make some general observation tha t the Act be looked at to 
make sure . it ~sin accord in all r e sp ects with modern t echnology 
and pr c: c tlc e ln the hope the: t some body vlill t ake the troubl e of 
going thr ough the Act. 

Y 
Those ar e the gen er a l r ec ommenda tions we put bef or e 

our Honor and those ar e the submissions I mal{B a t this point of 
time . 

HIS HONOR: May I s r:.y I am mo st gr a t eful for wha t you have put 
and also you have put it mo st accura t e l y . 
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MR. REYNOLDS~ It ha s been mo st he lpful t o tho se appearing f or 
the c ompany to ha ve had t he benefit of hearing what counsel 
for t he Minister has had t o say bec ause it has Qlarified many 
issue s. If I may make one small criticism: counsel's 
enthusia sm leads t o the introduction of adj ective s which ar e 
inconsis t ent with his basic t he sis but I suppo se . tha t is a 
fa iling which is no t unc ommon. 

May I say some thing a bout the approaoh of my .clicnt 
company t o this inve stiga tion. I hope it ha s been apparent 
t o Your Honor tha t the company has come t o this Inquiry sincer e 
in t he idea tha t it shoUtl trea t it as an inve stiga tion and no t 
a s it being on tria l and t ha t it should s eek t o put bef ore Your 
Honor the truth r a ther than try t o def end itself in re spect of 
any position in ·which it finds it self" 

HIS HONOR: I think I ought t o say tha t ha s been my impre ssion 
of t he c ompany 's a ttitude from the start. 

MRo REYNOLDS: I submit Your Honor c ould have deduced the 
attitude from t he evi dence of the Hine Manager and the under­
manager and fr om the f act tha t we put befo r e you the evidenc e 
of }tr . Wa sson. We put him in t he box t o e stablish, we hop e , 
one t hing, tha t t he existenc e of t he f ans and their siting did 
not c ontribute t o t he fir e and I think it might be gener ally 
t aken t o be e stabli shed now. At any r a t e I did no t hear Mr. 
Lee submit t o t he c ontrary. Similarly v.Je put befor e Your Honor 
a gentloman who is obviously an authority on Sout h Coas t mines, 
not bec ause he would give evidenc e which would ex tract us fr om 
difficultie s >..vhich were too pl a i n and obviou s but t o off er Your 
Honor some a ssi stanc e in t he e lucida tion of the pr oblems. 

May I say gener ally t ha t we a r e dealing in thi s 
inve stiga tion with human be ings in an industria l olima t e . You 
could no t run mine s if you di d not have peop l e who he ld a 
deputy's ticke t without t he pr ospect of becoming a manager 
and you could not run mine s unle ss t he under manager wa s a man 
of l ong experience and pos sibly would n ever be qualified t o be 
t he Gener a l Superin t endent of the B.H~P/A.IoS. Collierie s. 
The se ar e human be ings and we ar e dea ling wit h an industry whiah 
is no t a highly scien tific on e in t he sense t ha t everything can 
be done by pr ecision means . It, I 1.vould sugge st, is an industry 
in which experience and kno\l!ledge of the pr actica l pr obl ems of 
mini ng counts tremendously and with grea t r e spect I would issue 
a warning t o Your Horror, if I may put i t tha t way with r e spect, 
t ha t we l awyers should be car eful i n using vJha t we believe t o be 
the powers o~ logic t ha t we d o no t overlook the pr actica l 
r ealitie s of the situa tion. I c ould no t help f ee ling, with 
due r e sp ect t o Mr. Lee , t ha t a t time s he wa s able t o offer Your 
Honor solutions t o problems with a grea t deal mor e• confidGrlCe 
than his mine inspectors and this is no t, I suppose , ~~atural 
as wo ar e tra ined to look a t t he t hings we put f orward and f orge t 
the . o t her pr actical difficultie so I agr ee tha t in dealing with 
an lndustry wher e , a lways, men a r e wor k ing below gr ound , a lways 
ar e working in a mea sure of danger, it is imper a tive t ha t high 
standards f or t he safe ty of t ho s e men be se t but we mu s t a lso be 
car eful not t o seek t o s e t i~po ssi?le standards because aft er all, 
and I make no excuse f or sayll1.g t hls , coal ha s t o be won and if 
coal is no t being won the se men won't have a j ob and we won't 
have any busine sso Thi s is t he r eal i ty of i t and whilst 
conceding the highest standards po ssib~e must be se t, they must 
not be impossible standards. 

This is, I suppo se , t he mo st highly r egula t ed by 
st~tute and r egula tion of a ll industrya I know of n o ot her 
Whlch i s a s hi ghly r egul a t ed a s t his is . It is, I suppo se 
the only industry in which one rs for eman ha s sta tutor y duti~s and 
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statutory responsibilities, where he is tested for ~is_appoint­
ment by an outside board of examinersc One real dlfflculty, 
I suppose is tha t this tends to make the minimum standard set 
by an Act become the maximum and I know it is indefeneible to 
say because the Act says a deputy shall test so many t imes and 
lll so many pl aces, that those in the industry unconsciously 
being t o t hink that t hat is what the Act requires them t o ~o. 
and that is enough~ That cannot be defended as a proposl tlon 
because we all kn ow at this Bar table an employer owes a duty 
to exercise reasonable c are for the safety of his employee s. 
I mention this because it is an attitude of mind which is 
apparent to us and has come into this industry by ~he very f act 
that it is, I suggest, with due resp ect t o the leglslature, 
over-regulated and maybe there are good historical reasons for 
t ha t, but one wonders whether the de gree of r egulation is 
ult i mately in t he best interests of the industry. 

HIS HONOR : You mean, I suppose~ higher standards of saf e ty 
migh t be observed if there were no standards laid down by the 
st a tute? 

MR. REY~OLDS : That may be soo I only offer t his to Your Hono r 
to illustrate that by saying 11vJe 1-1ill fill this gap or tha t gap'' 
Your Honor may be only adding to tha t difficulty. I do not 
want t o t ake it any further except t o put tha t to Your Honor for 
your c onsideration" 

HI S HONOR~ It is quit e obvious l egislation is no substitute for 
r ealitie s. 

MR. REYNOLDS : I wonder if in this day and age t her e is a need 
t o say anything about ventilation because the law itself would 
i mpose upon the employer the obliga tion of providing r ea sonable 
and proper ventilation LYl every circumstance. That is 1.;ha t the 
l aw would say " 

HIS HONOR: It is a ma tt er of teaching the people conc erned wha t 
is adequate ventilation. 

MR . REYNOLDS: The history of this indus try is too long and too 
complicated for me t o ha ve assimilated in the space of a few 
short months. Obviously it has its roots in the c enturie s 
and in very bitter industrial struggle s and this is not t he time 

and pl a ce t o discuss tha to 

I have committed to writing the ba sic propositions 
for which we contend~ We do not c ont end for t hem in ahy sense 
of litiga tion inter-parties~ Your Honor will see tha t very 
large concessions are Qade . The y are put forward in t he spirit 
tha t t he y may assist Your Honor in c oming t o your ultima t e 
conclusions of f act i n this investiga tion but I do a t the outse t 
wish to repudiate any sugge stion tha t the management, my olien t 
company, has in any 1-1 ay been l ax or off- handed a s is sugge sted 
by l earned counse l for the MinisteroWha tever defects may be 
evinced from the evidenc e I sugges t tt cannot properly be sa id 
Mr . Puddle and Mr . Stone, as the management, and I r a ther gather 
those a r e the persons r ef erred to a s t he management in Mr . Lee 1 s 
addre ss, were in any way off -·handed in their approach t o the 
problem of ven t ila tion or any other problem cJnc erning the 
saf e ty of their men . It must n ever be forgott en t hat they are 
men of many years ' exp erienc e who hold first and s econd cla ss 
certificates of competency r e spectively and it canno t be 
sugge sted they are not i mbued with the nec e ssity for mainta ining 
saf e working proc edure for their employee s and ther e is no 
evidenc e her e , I submit, which indicat e s any general ladc of 
awar eness of their r e sponsibility in tha t r egard and t he failure , 
if f ailure ther e be in this ca se, and I must concede there wa s 
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some was due to an error of judgment in r e spect of a ventilating 
problem. 

Having said tha t may I ·hand to Your Honor and to 
those at the Bar t a ble note s of what we put. Very much of what 
is said here is what Mr. Lee has said in a perhaps t erser 
form because I am not propounding, I am def ending, in a sense. 
It come s to this, I suggest, tha t we suggest the cause of this 
fire, the real effective cause wa s a failur e to iden tify bottom 
gas coupled with a shunt 1.vhich wa s inadequately ven tilated in 
the circumstances. Mr. Lee did put a t one point this morning 
tha t the r eal eff ective cause of this f ire was a failure to 
discover bottom ga s. Well, with grea t r e spect an analysis of 
this, undertaken by us, agrees with tha t, with this possible 
excep tion, that we have trea t ed it r a ther m~e as a failure 
adequately to ventilate the shunt. So I t hink it is fair to 
say our analysis would be tha t it is a combination of those 
two f actors and onc e we go beyond tha t we ar e ge tting into the 
r ealms of causes which are too remot e for Your Honor 1 s purposes. 

1. The operative cause of the fir e wa s an ignition of 
inflammable ga s. 

2. The occurrenc e of gas is an inesca pable f ea tur e of coal 
mining . Since ga s cannot be avoided, it is necessary to be 
aware of it and t o t ake suitable measur e s to detect, control 
and deal with it. This is the problem of ventila tion. 

The evidence on the matter is found in Mr. Longworth 's 
evidence at p.232 . 

3. The problem of ventilation caru~ot be consider ed in isolation. 
There are other problems of equal importance notably in this 
~ase roof control. 

Mr. Long1.vorth deals with tha t at pp.247-8, !vir . 
Menzie s a t p.363. 

4, The actions of the r~nagement must be designed to secure 
maximum roof safety consisten tly with good ventila tion and 
vice versa and it is inescapable tha t situa tions arise from 
time to time in which the solution of the problems involved 
must be a compromise , if such solution is aonsist ent with 
reasonably safe working conditions. 

If ther e is no such solution there is no alternative 
but t o c ea se work. 

HIS HONOR: vJha t is meant by nrea sona bly saf e11 '? 

MR. REYN OLDS: It is t he standard above which no employer can 
oper a te. 

HIS HONOR: You are saying, in other words, there is a condition 
in which any danger which exists must be known or should be 
known by the management l.vith the skill it ha s. 

MR . REYNOLDS : It is not an expo sure to unnecessary danger a s 
the common law puts it but no one would ever work underground 
~here ther e are known to be or likely t o be noxious or 
lnf l ammable gase s because ther e is an exposure to danger. The 
employer ha s no other obliga tion, I would submit, under the 
Act o: anywhere else, other than to take rea sonable steps in 
the c1rcumstanc es to protec t his employee from injury. 

HIS HONOR: Wha t is r easonable in t he circumstances may be 
differ ent r'rom employer t o employer. 
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MR. REYNOLDS: It d epends on the knowledg e of t~e danger. 
With the knowledge up goe s the standa rd of r ea sonableness. 
It is a fl exible concept. 

5. This s olution must be r eached in the c ont ext tha t the 
Mi ne s Departmant re quire s extraction of the maximum amount 
of coa l consistently with sa f e ty. 

This is something a bout which little , if anything, 
ha s been sa id. Mr. Menzies dealt with it at p .328. 
Appar ently in the past some greedy colliery owners hav e sought 
to t ake out all the easy coal which is cheap to ex tract and 
l ef t behind tha t which is difficult and expensive to extract 
and tha t na tural r e sourc e is lost to the Sta t e and it is for 
this reason, as I understand it, s.53B of the Coal Mines 
Regulation Act ~es the Minister power to serve a notice and 
say , "You mus t ge t that coal out 11

• 

HI S HONOR: 
did it not? 
proceedings. 

This came a bout after a report of Davidson, J., 
Ther e seems to be an emphasis in the reports of 

MR. REYNOLDS: Much coal was be ing lost to the nation by this 
me thod . 

HIS HONOR : Wa s it something concerned with O.M.H.? 
it stands for uoutput per manhour 11

• 

MR. PARKINSON : O.H.S. - Output per man shift. 

I think 

HIS HONOR: It is in rel ation to output or produetion. You do 
not have to c onvince me: from wha t I hav e seen of the atmosphere 
1Q whic h the s e op er 2 tions ar e conduct ed it is an atmosphere on 
the part of t he Department and the mana ger of the mine and, may 
I say , in Bulli mine, on the part of the men themselves, to win 
as mueh coa l a s t he y can in the shortest possible time . 

MR. REYNOLDS: At p.327 Mr. Menzies s a id "There ar e two side s 
of the f enc e f or me in this r egard ••••••• conservation of coal 
nnd safe t y ma tt ers". It is tha t sort of ma terial which is 
the basis of this submission tha t its solution must be r eached 
in the context tha t t he Mine s Department r equir e s extraction 
of the maxi mum amount of coal consistently with safe ty. 

6. The first workings wer e by means of three headings, known 
as A, B and c. The loc a tion of theseneadings wa s d e t e rmined 
by r efe r enc e to the slope expected to be encountered in the 
coal seam the proximity of the pane l t o a geological fault 
and the exist enc e of goaf to the righ t. The t erminal point 
of t he headings was dictat ed by the fault. 

I would add 11 The direction of airflow was de t ermined 
by the slope". We picked tha t airflow bec ause it was coming 
in the high side and going out the low side . 

7. There has been no criticism of t he first workings. 

8. In the sec ond workings it was decided to ex tract eoa l 
fr?m. the area to the l eft of the headings. This was done by 
dr1v1ng bleeders from the goaf succ e ssively so tha t extraction 
took place one pillar inbye of the point wher e the bleeder 
entered the r e turn a irway. This is ap accepted method of 
work and it has not baen criticised by the Mines Department. 

9. Serious roof difficulties wer e encountered both in the 
workings to the l eft and in the ex traction of pillars in the 
main headings. 
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I indicate some evidence by Mr. Menzies which 
confirms the a ssertion made by the Mine manager, t o be found 
at pp.328-9: 11 Q. Had they done this previous t o tha t in this 
particular sec tion ••.••• it.wa s due to inherent~y bad roof". 
So if confirmation be r equlred of the sworn ev1denc e of Mr. 
puddle Your Honor ha s it there. 

10. No exc essive occurrenc e of ga s wa s r eported and no 
difficulty was exp erienc ed in dealing with the quantitie s 
encounter ed. 

Tha t is up to the point. I am coming t o the 
departure. 

11. In the se circumstance s a danger could be apprehended to 
the sa f e ty of t he workers in the roof conditions but not in 
the ventilation system. 

12. The necessary mea sure s t o r educe the danger fr om the 
r oof involved. a compromise with ventila tion. 

I would say her e tha t this involved the exercise of 
an on-the-spot judgment by a man under the ground charged with 
t his r e sponsibility and it is a judgmant which in my submission 
is peculiarly one for the man on the spot. That is wha t Mr. 
Sellers so.id. He s~ id, in effec t, ni would not presume whe ther 
this \vas good min ing practice or bad mining practice unless I 
had been ther e .n Hr. Puddle wa s ther e and exercised his judgment 
in t hi s way - it may have been right, it may have been wrong, 
but ther e was a situa tion existing which ca lled fqr the exercise 
of j udgment by a man who wa s t he under manager from 1957 to 1965, 
at tha t time , and he took the deeision and stood by it here, 
if I may say so, manfully. 

13. This involved a t emporary depanture from the bleeder 
system by extracting t he pillars number ed 11 and 12 in Exhibit 
JJ befor e driving ano ther bleed tunnel. 

13A. It canno t be said tha t this departure was without 
justifica tion. 

I mer ely would make this sugge stion: it cannot be 
said this departure wa s without justifica tion, whe ther it wa s 
sufficient or not may be , in this investigation, a little be sid e 
the po int, a little on the fring e of t hings, but he made a 
decision and he has sworn here ther e were c ircumstances which 
called f or this decision and tha t was the exercise of his 
consider ed judgment. 

14. After the place number ed 13 had holed, the bleeder system 
could have been r e stor ed by splitting the pilla r so cr ea t ed. 

It could have been r e stored by driving the split 
which ~tr. Puddle claims wa s his intention. 

15. The evidenc e indica t e s tha t the ventilation problems wer e 
adequately dealt with up t o the point wher e the bleeder . system 
was t empor arily depart ed from. 

. I refer t o Mr. Menzie s' evidence a t p.288 wher e he 
~s being t aken through his r eport by Mr. Lee : "Prior t o t he 
lncident of the 9th •••••••• ventila tion of the district?A. Yestt. 
This is his interpre t a tion on the informa tion he had including 
t~e deputie sr r eports. Ther e wa s no major ventila tion problem 
dlsclosed befor e the departure and up to the time of the 
departure . 

16. Ther e is evidence tha t the ignition wa s c aused by the 
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impaction of a piec e of wood near the brru{e drum on the shuttle 
car gen er a ting sufficient hea t to provide a source of ignition. 

17. Whilst ideally every new work situation in a mine may call 
for a detailed appr eciation and solution of the ventila tion 
problem involved , in the na ture of t hings those engaged in 
practica l mining draw on their practical experience and 
t end to deal with the matter in a pra gmatic way. 

Perhap s it would be be tter to say in an empirical 
way. Wha t I mean is we have here , over the course of some six 
w~ek s, looked a t plans. We have had the benefit of hindsight 
and the best brains of the Department of t1ines prodded by 
brains from the Bar devising alternatives and possibilities 
that might have been be tter or pref erable. Everybody a t the 
Ba_r table can come up with one and sa y 11 \tlhy didn't you put a 
brattice here? 11 No doubt some of the solutions may be be tter 
solutions than tha t which Mr. Puddle came up with - some may 
have been worse. The simple fact is people , a s I say, charged 
with this r e sponsibility underground draw on their experience, 
a lifetime of experienc e , in some c a se s. He do e s not work 
out calcula tions as t o how much a ir precisely, in cubic f ee t 
per minute , will be drawn through a tube or he do e s not work 
out how much comes t hr ough a screen, he knows i n an instinctive 
sort of way t hi s will work or won't work and arrives a t a 
solution. This may not be ideally right but if every time one 
went back t o the drawing office or sent to the c entra l office 
and had engineers look a t it and called in Hr. Wasson and 
experts you would never get any cnal. The se decisions have 
to be t ak en in a day to day situa tion by human beings with 
qualif i ca tions and of c onsider a ble experience and it is upon 
this experience he draws. You tannot have , gen er a lly speaking, 
highly qualified graduate engineers empl oyed a s under managers. 
If you do, they do not l a st long a s under managers. You have 
to ge t a man of pr act ica l experienc e and common sense and he ha s 
got t o come up with the se solutions. He cannot go r inging up 
the manager all t he t ime or l eaving it till t omorrow to work 
it out from figur e s and plans overnight. I submit tha t is 
the r eality of the situa tion and it is very easy for mining 
engi neering brains t o come her e af t er a tragedy like this and 
say, "You might have done t hi s or tha tu or "it would have 
been better t o do this11 • They wer e no t there . 

HIS HONOR: You say you cannot pa ss judgment on anything these 
men did until you put yourself in the situation they wer e in? 

MR . REYNOLDS~ Yes. I am not going t o say some of these 
solutions may not have been preferable but tha t is not the end 
of it, t o say , "You did not ge t the right answer 11 • I will 
deal with that perhaps a little l a t er. 

18. In this ca se whilst it may be c onc eded tha t servants of 
the Company had no tic e of the occurr enc e of extinctive ga s in 
the shunt a t no time was t he pr e s ence of inflammable ga s 
r eported in the shunt ar ea. The managemen t did not have 
any r eac- on t o believe tha t the Deputie s were n o t doing 
their job properly. 

Those f acts a r e not an answer t o the who l e problem 
and I do not put t hem forward a s such but they are factual. 
There was n ever any inflammable -gas r e ported in the shunt ar ea 
and it 1¥as n ever brought t o the notic e. of Hr. Puddle or the 
manager that the deputie s wer e not doing t heir job, if that . 
be.the fact. I think it is proper in this ca s e , the deputies 
belng s ep~ra t ely r epr e s ent ed , t ha t I should not pass, or tre spa ss, 
on tha t fl e ld but l eave Mr. McNally t o deal with it, a lthough 
t hey ar e servants and agents of the c ompany and 1v e are civilly 
and mo r a lly r e sponsible for what they do but I think it is best 
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for Mr. McNally to deal with them bec ause he ha s be en the one 
who ha s been conferring with them and who ha s been living with 
~hA _ urebl em. 

19. No inflammable ga s had been r eported on the goaf Gdge 
when the line of goaf wa s a long No. 3 cut through and no 
r eport. of inflammable ga s on the goa f edge had bGen made for 
nearly a month and this wa s a t a time when the line of goaf wa s 
along No. 4 cut through. 

This is significant in tha t sta t ements are madG her e 
about numerous r eportings of inflammable ga s. There is no 
r eport of inflammable ga s along t he goaf edge at the time when 
t his oper a tion of driving No. 2 cut-through wa s being made -
none a t all. No r eport of inflammable ga s on the goaf edge 
had been made for nearly a month, I think from the 14th to 
t he 9th and this wa s a t the time when the line of the goaf 
wa s a long No. 4 cut-through. True it is still the same goaf 
and it is only ex t ended further but it explains, whe ther you 
call it c ompacency, but it expla ins why the management vra s not 
al ert ed to a possible danger. Mr. Menzies' interpre t a tion 
of t he evidence he had wa s t his: tha t there wa s no dir ect 
evidenc e t he goaf c onta ined n oxious or i nflammable ga s jus t 
prior to the time of the incident. Tha t is a striking sta t ement 
t o be found a t p.28 7 of t he transcript: 11 Q. Your r eport goe s 
on ••••••• inflammable ga s. 11 Tha t wa s his interpre t a tion of 
t he availa ble evidenc e . Tha t is the only import anc e of tha t. 

(Further hearing ad j ourned till 10 a .m. 
on Tuesday 15th Februar y , 1966.) 
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IN THE COURT OF 
COAL MINES REGULATION 
HOLDEN AT BULLI 

) 
) No. 1 of 1965. 
) 

jr 

BEFORE HIS HONOR JUDGE GORAN 
ASSESSORS: Messrs. MAHON and BUCK 

TUESDAY: 15th February, 1966. 

IN THE MATTER OF AN INQUIRY IN PURSUANCE OF' THE COAL MINES 
REGULATION ACT INTO AN ACCIDENT WHICH OCCURRED AT THE BULLI 
COLLIERY ON 9th NOVEMBER 1965 AND ITS CAUSES AND CIRCUMSTANCES. 

(PART HEARD) 

MR~ REl~OLDS: I had dealt with the first nineteen submissions 
in the written docu@ent and I come now to the 20th. 

20. The working arrangement, the provision of a shUL~t and the 
ventilation thereof were in substance a repetition of what had 
been carried out one pillar li~bye of No. 3 cut-through. 

No circumstances arose or were disclosed in that position 
which the management was bound to interpret as creating a 
situation of danger. 

It is of course open to Your Honor t o find, and I 
would not contest this finding, tha t there were indications 
there which were taken to be C02 and I need not go to that 
evidence. There is abundant evidence that C02 was detected 
and identified, perhaps wrongly, but Identified as such at 
that point. 

I have had reconstructed the coloured plan to 
indicate what the situati~p was according to the evidence when 
the exten sion to No. 3 cut-through was being driven. I do 
not know whether Your Horror or anybody else had the same problem 
as. we had but it is difficult to eliminate from the plan and 
reoonstruct the situation as it might have been a month or two 
before so I thought it may be of a ssistance if I had this done. 
I have copies for anybody atthe Bar table interested. 

As we read the evidence the position, when the place 
9 was being driven, was tha t the goaf line ran along No. 4 
cut-through and the area between 3 and l which is 10 on Exhibit 
11JJ"11 had not yet been extracted. We know that because we 
know 10 and 11 were extrac ted together. So it is fair to say, 
I think, that the eviderr~e indicates the goaf line ran along 
cut-through 4 and the extension thereof. There was an existing 
bleeder situated there and marked 3, 4 and 5 and there was being 
driven, in accordance with the practice dealt with in the 
correspondence between the Mines Department and the mine 
management 9 which could constitute the bleeder when 10 was 
extracted. If there was a conscious departure without any 
rhyme or reason 10 would have be en taken out at this time before 
9 was driven so Your Honor sees there is an adherence to the 
system at this point. 

As we r ead the evidence the expedient adopted so f ar 
as ventilation was concerned at this p9li1t was not to take the 
main current of air along A and B up as far as 4 and back along 
A heading that would be a method whereby th~ goaf edge was 
ventilated and the r e turn airway along C would be taking off any 
gases which tend to come out of the goaf along its edge at 4. 
It seems to us from ·Mr. Puddle's evidence and the situaion 
generally that that was not done but a device was adopted which 
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~as substantially similar to the method which was adopted later 
at cut-through No. 2. In other words it seems the intake air 
was coming in A and B and was being directed along cut-through 
No. 3 and thence int o the return airway, heading A. 

HIS HONOR: You mean by that it went along 3, up 4 and 5, into 
1 and then back along into 4? 

MR. REYNOLDS: No, Your Honor. I mean the main current of air 
did not go beyond cut-through 3, it came along Band c, was then 
made to come along 3 past the working place and then go down the 
return airway. In other words it was not taken right up to 4 
and then taken down that way. 

HIS HONOR~ It only went up to 3? 

MR. REYNOLDS: That is as I understand the evidence. That means, 
for good or bad, the goaf edge was not being ventilated at tha t 
point of time but the air was being short-circuited and not 
allowed to go right up to the goaf and that si tua tion is 
substantially identical with the situation which subsequently 
developed at the place with \vhich we are vitally concerned. 

HIS HONOR: Where was the air cut off so that it did not reach 4? 

1\ffi.. REYNOLDS ~ It does not appear from the evidence but undoubtedly 
th ere would have been stoppings in C heading inby of 3 cut-through. 
There would have to be some such device otherwise it would go 
doWl. We do not have on the evidence any clear indication of 
this although when one reads Mr. Puddle's evidence he indicates 
the main current of air was going along 3. 

It was in those circumstaces that we have the situation 
that it was believed C02 was coming along A heading in the 
vicinity of the No. 3 cut- through extension which was being 
driven. 

HIS HONOR: Does that mean the bleeder which had been driven 
from 3, 4 and 5 \vas not doing anything? 

MR. REYNOLDS: That it was not completely effective, Your Honor, 
will be part of my submission. 

HIS HONOR: It could cause a leak but there was no flow of air up 
there to push the goaf gases back down. 

MR. REY~OLDS: That may be so but it is indicative of the situation 
I will be putting to Your Honor subsequently that a bleed tunnel 
or a d~age tunnel although it assists the problem does not 
completely solve it. I think that is a fair statement of what 
most of the people who have given evidence on an expert basis in 
this investigation have said. It is a great assistance but it 
is not the final ultimate solution, many other things have to 
be watched. Mr. Sellers points out one eventuality which may 
mal~e t?e drainage tunne~ ineffectual and, with respect, I do not 
thlillc Your Honor appreclated yesterday that it could become 
ineffectual without you knowing it and there could be a closing­
off by a fall or heave. 

HIS HONOR: I appreciated that. 

MR. REYNOLDS: So, you would be relying on the situa tion where 
you had this tunnel but unbeknowns to you it had in fact ceased 
to be effective, or, fully effective. 

HIS HONOR: I would have thought testing would have shown it. 
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MR. REYNOLDS: Yes. This is where testing is so important, a s 
I am going to put to Your Honor in a general way later. Testing 
is the important thing" We come back to the situation, and I 
hope this will help Your Honor to appreciate what the situa tion 
1.;as: we have the picture that. C02 is being de tected in this 
area inby of the extension to Noo 3 cut-through and it is sa id, 
and there seems to be no rea son why I should submit t o t he 
contrary, it is at this point of time it is decided to put the 
brattice up inby of Noe 3 cut-through and A heading and to use 
the device of an auxiliary vent tube into it to ventilate it. 
That seems to be the situa tion at tha t point of time , so far 
as one can reconstruct it. In that context I have said "No 
circumstances aPose or were disclosed in tha t position which 
the management was bound to interpre t as creating a situa tion 
of danger." 

I am urging upon Your Honor t ha t the finding of C02 
in quantities which can be dealt with and r eadily dispersed is 
not to a mine man a situation of danger, it is an everyday 
occurrence. It may be now in t he context that it could be, 
if not properly identified~ bottom gas, and t ha t is a very 
different problem, but I am making the assumption tha t it is 
believed to be C02 and it is in quantities which can be dealt 
wi t h and di spersed. That, on my submission of a fair view of 
t he evidence, and in r eality, is not considered by a mine man to 
constitute a situa t i on of danger. In contra-distinction to 
that, it gives you notice, of course , tha t you might want to 
improve your ventilation if it is hanging a bout, that the 
ventilation to tha t extent is not fully adequate. When I say 
11 adequate!1 a mine man would always know you are likel y to get 
pockets in the ceiling or floor or in little r ecesses and it is 
impossible as a matter of practice to so ventilate your mine as 
to avoid all the possibilities of t ha t situation developing. 

HIS HONOR : Perhaps I should indicate t hi s t o you so that you 
may deal with it: while I agree with the proposition you put 
generally, tha t if you have C02 in such quantities only that you 
can deal with it by dilution or getting it out in some other 
way, there is no immedia t e problem of danger, nevertheless does 
not tha t miss the next step and that is to a~ if this C02 is 
coming in and has t o be continually diluted, t o a sk where it is 
coming from? Assume there is just a pocket somewhere and it is 
di scovered t ha t it is only a pocket and it can be dealt with 
then, of course, we have no problem but assume you are ge tting 
it from the goaf, aren't you then put upon notice so tha t you 
will enquire whether this can come out in exces sive quantities, 
that is l eaving a side the question of t es ting a s t o whe t her it 
is bottom ga s or anything else, but a ssuming it is C02, and you 
believe it is C02 and know it is coming from the goaf, 1.<1ha t is 
your next step? Do you say 11 I jus t ventila t e and disperse it 
and if in f act it goes tha t is enough11 ? 

MR. REYNOLDS: It gives t he clear es t notice you have c arbon 
dioxide in the goaf and I believe a mining person would like to 
know his goaf is filled, if possible , with C02, an extinctive 
gas and this, I submit, would not give him any cause for alarm. 
He would, of course? if he adopted the type of r ea soning we are 
dealing with here 1 say, !

1Well, thi s is c oming from the goaf 11 • 

~f he t~inks about it, a~d no doubt ~e would, he would say, 
There ls ther efore C02 ln the goaf " ·1 At this point of time 

the .bleeder wa s inby where they were working so it c ould be 
comlng around t he bleeder , it could be- coming direct from the 
goaf along A headinge 

HIS HONOR: Would he jus t simply get rid of it or would he find 
out wher e it was coming fro m? 
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MR. REYNOLDS: I c annot deny t he proposi tion tha t r eason would 
sa Y he is getting C02 fr om the goaf but I cannot. c onc ede that 
this puts him on inquiry a s to any other type of ga s. 

HIS HON OR: I am not suggesting t hi so 

MR. HcNALLY: Mro Puddl e in fact t e sted himself on t hi s day when 
he put the screen up. 

HIS HONOR: I think it must be c onc eded. 

lffi. REYNOLDS: This c ould not be t aken t o be some small emru1ation 
from a crack, it is obviously gonf ga s and anybody applying their 
mind to it would be f orc ed t o t hn t c oncl·:: 3ion. 

HIS HOIDR: Assuming it is C02 and a ssuming you are ge tting rid 
of it a t the time, unle ss you get notice of some thing furthr 
tha t is all you need to do in the immedia t e situa tion? That is 
your proposition? 

MR. REYNOLDS: Ye s o I have not put this proposition very highly. 
I have said 11No circumstanc e s arose or were disclosed in tha t 
position which the management wa s bound t o interpre t a s creating 
a situa tion of dangerc 11 It is easy for all of us af t erwards t o 
say 11 Let us r ea son this and that: ~" 11 But we are ge tting C02 
in ther e 11

7 someon e r eplieso "Ar e you ge tting rid of it?" 
rtyes, it lS being cleaned out now11

• It doe s not a l ert peopl e 
t o danger if it is C 02 ..• 

I have spent time on t hi s only because it appears 
from the evidence it was the f act tha t this was done a t No .3 
cut-through ru1d oper ated apparently successfully which induc ed 
the deputy to a ssume the same sys t em, when similar circumstanc e s 
ar ose in the next cut-- through~ c ould be adop t ed with safe ty. 
It goe s on: · 

21. It is necessary t o consider a lso \>Jha t part if any was 
played by the f act t ha t che pillars in areas ll and 12 in 
Ex JJ wer e extracted before another bleeder had been driven. 

22. It wa s a t the point tha t the decision t o extract the se 
pillars was t rucen tha t the departure occurred - -

At this point there was no depar tur e , the system wa s be ing 
adhered to and the only critict sm that could be l evelled a t tha t 
point of time was ther e may have been a be tter and differ ent way 
to ventila te the goaf edge and the expedient of putting the 
brattice and t he bleed tube in was not the be sto 

MR. LEE: Is this an Exhibit? 

MR. REYNOLDS: It may be made an Exhibit. 

(Docurnent mar ked Exhibit noor: ) 

It is when this bleeder No. 9 is c omple t e tha t for 
r easons which appear in t he e videnc e and with which I have 
already dealt Mre Puddle made the decisi on, and I put it yesterday 
that it was his judgment on t he spo t 7 tha t in t he int erests of 
the safety of his mm and having r egard to the necessity to 
extract the maximum c oal if it c ould be done con sistently with 
safe ty, tha t he decided before driving ano ther bleed he should 
take the coal out in 10, 11 and 12 - in 12 because it is good 
practice, everybody agr ee s, t o keep the goaf line a ligned and 
not t o have it ~pped , 

The ~irst po~nt I make is some~hat l egalistic, I 
c o~c ede, but wh1lst thaG depar ture wa s golng on nothing happened 
Whlch caused any injury t o ru1y person or any gr at problem,as 
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disclosed by the evidenc e ~ No evi dence is given as to any 
undue exposure to ~a s or EU1.y t h5_.r). g dur ing the period of the 
extraction in 10, 11, and 1 2. No t a word .:.'_s said and one 
can assume that tha t op er a tion was carried ou 'l'-; without any 
problem and tha t is what I say in plain words in the last part 
of 22. aand no problem 1 s di sclosed t o have occurred during 
this operation 11

• 

23. The Company officers claim that the course referred to in 
para. 14 was i n tendedc 

That iso t o restore the bleeder system by splitting 
' the panel. It goes on 11 ·chis cla im i s disputed. n 

My learned fri end Mrs Lee put to Your Honor yesterday 
that there was evidence which could, if Your Honor saw fitt 
lead to a finding t hat Mr e Puddle had no such intention and he 
referred primarily to an altera ~ion in Mro Puddle's statement. 
With respect to my l ea::-ned friend i t seems to us tha the has 
misconstrued this situation and I want to take Your Honor to 
Mr. Puddle's statement which appear s at P~722 of the transcript. 
This is what l'IJ.ro Puddle sa .-i_d .i 11 It is our practice after 
splitting a pillar to extract the coal in lifts along the goaf 
edge and my intention v:o. s that i on the next shift after holing, 
the miner would be moved t o an appropriate position in A heading 
and the pillar split i f r oof condj_ tions a llowed .. 11 Your Honor 
will remember long c·-ross- examinabion by ~: . Parkinson of 
Mr. Puddle about tha t phra se , :t j f :r: oof conditions allowed 11 • 

So, he has said i n hi s statemen t qui t e unequivocally tha t it 
was his intention to holeo The a lteration that was male in 
the statement wa s cha t he s aid J.n the original statement 
11 I therefore formec~ the conclusion tha t for a short tine only 
the bleeder from t he goaf could be replaced by the bleed tube 11 • 

The 1vord s llreplac ed by a l; l oed tu ben -were del ted and the -vmrd 
11 om.itted 11 addecl ., I t has no t hing to do with his intention to 
hole the goaf q no t hing a t all - excep 'j it confirms it. My 
l earned friend appar en cly had a wr ong imp res sL on of that 
situa tionG He sta t ed very cJ .early it wa s his intention. I 
would not be su blind as t; o igr.. o:>:>e the f act that there may be 
some indications to t he con trary Lut it would be a very serious 
step in the face of mere indica t:Lons of that kind to reject the 
oath of Mr .. Puddle on this ma t t er par t icularly I<Jhen, if one looks 
at it, one finds he had split t he pillar in the same way 
previously. The o t her point made by Mr. Lee was that 10 and 11 
had been split through the middle elsewhere but if we look at 
it the pillar created by 3 and 4 cut- through had already been 
split and likewise there is a c omp lete split between 4 and 6 
as they are numbered on t hisc 

HIS HONOR: You are saying this is a double pillar? 

MR. REYNOLDS: That is right, and it is difficult to say, in 
the light of Mr. Puddle 1 s asser tion, that he was going to depart 
further, when he had o bv ::i_ m, .sly complied up to this point and 
had given a reason for depar ting temporarilyo I can put to 
Yo~r Honor that there is not suffjcient material to justify the 
reJection of Mro Puddle 1 s oath on this ma t tere If Your Honor 
was a jury I might talk at greate~· length on it but I do not 
think I need to say ~.; o Your Ron..J J."' anything more than that. 

24. The complete effectivene ss of such a bleeder system has 
not been demonstra ted although i t is conc~dsd that it has some 
~a1ue in assisting ven tilat lon i n pillar extraction and that 
1ts provision is desirable 9 

I say that because even Mre Menzies has no practical 
ex~er~ence of this and rel1es on theoJ."'Y only in the belief tha t 
th1s ls a great aid t o the ventjlation of the goaf, to have this 
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drainage tunnel rejoining the return airway outby of where the 
men are working. The next paragraph, 24A, brings us right 
to what I suggest is the crux of this problem. 

24A. It was a t t he point when the extraction of the pillars 
in ll and 12 was complete tha t a new problem of ventilation 
arose. A number of alternative solutions have been offered . 
They may have avoided this accident bu t each may have crea ted 
difficulties anddangers of another kind. 

Your Horror sees the f actual position: a departure 
has been made fr om the system of having a bleeder tru~el in 
reserve, if I may put it tha t way, and the operation is now 
complete and the coal has been extracted so that there is now 
a situation where it is a straight line of goaf, the three 
headings, A, Band c, and the next step is t o be taken. It is 
then tha t the person on the spot has to make up his mind wha t 
is to be done next and how he is to ventilate to the best 
advan tage. The next step was to drive 13. Mr. Donnegan, 
Ithink it was, devised means of doing it and has shown you could 
have done it this way or tha t way. l'ITe Menzies has made his 
suggestion. In fa irness to Mro Menzies, he said, in effect, 
"Well I am not saying this is the perfect solution, I am not 
saying r eally it is t erribly much be tter but it would have got 
over this and tha t". He concedes t ha t it may have brought 
about difficulties any solution may hav e brought other and 
different difficulfies in its train. Just to t ru~e one example 
of that, Mr. Menzies said he would have supplemented the bleed 
tube into the shunt wi th another tube going from behind the 
brattice, making an overcast, and going into the return airway 
unassisted by the fans. My engineers say you would need a 
22 inch one . How are you going t o get your shuttle car through? 
I do not know if Mr. Menzies applied his mind t o tha t. I only 
say tha t to illustra te that t he se theore tical solutions have t heir 
own 11 in-built bugs11 if I may put it t ha t way and you would need 
the mas ter-mind of an international chess player to be able to 
wor k out how t his t hing will fit in with the problem of safe ty 
in all respects and winning c oal. The point is tha t there is 
no ab solute solutiou and one should not be too r eady to condemn 
out of hand a solution which, in the events that happened, due 
to an extraordinary c oi nc idence of ignition and build-up and 
fai lure t o detect c aused this unfortunate fatality. That is 
my only point: one should not be too ready to say "This wa s 
wrong and it was badly wrongu. We conc ede in the events that 
have happened it wa s certainly not a good solution. 

25. Even if the depar ture from the sys t em had not be en made 
(a s it had not when 9 wa s being driven) the position at l3 
so far as a bleeder is conc erned would be little diffe r ent. 

The only differ ence would be tha t the bra ttic e stopping 
er ected in A heading would be one pillarTs l ength further from 
the goaf in the ca se of 9 a s against 13. 

HIS HONOR: Would you expand tha t? 

MR. REYNOLDS: (Indica t e s) Here is 9 and the system wa s be ing 
adher ed to. The bra ttic e screen was put up a t this point, 
~he goaf was then here, along 4 cut-through so the difference is 
Instead of the goaf being about 3 it is about half a pillar 
further back. The tunnel to the goaf is longer and it is 
~anger, in these circumstances, by a bout half a pillar. Tha t 
ls wha t we say, 11 the only differ enc e would be ••••••••• in the 
case of 9 a s against 13.n I put this proposition to two of 
the inspectors, Mr. Muir and Mr. Longworth amMr. Longworth 
sough t to point out differ ences and I think it is worth while 
tha t ~e have . a l ook a~ tha t a t. p .247. It seems Mr. Longworth 
Was, ln seeklng t o polnt out dlfferences, dealing with matters 
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~hich were not quite relevant to the problem. I refe r t o the 
fourth question from t he foot of the page, uQ. And until you 
hole it it cannot act a s a bleeder? ••••••• the disadvantage that 
I r eferred to earlier.u Wha t he is saying is no doubt f actually 
right but it is not releve~t to t he que stion so f ar a s the men 
in the shunt are conc erned, the only difference is it is tha t 
distanc e away. 

HIS HONOR: He doe s not include t he shunt in the working place. 

HR. REYNOLDS: I do not quite follow wha t he mm ns a t a ll. We 
ar e driving t he bleeder at 9 and the ga se s from the goaf have to 
co me up past tha t work plac e somehow - there is no escape fr om 
it, whether they come dovm the bleeder or directly doW1 tha t 
way . I put the same question t o Mr. Muir and he sought to 
indicate a differ enc e and I t hink I should t ake Your Horror to 
tha t because it wa s plain tha t on one a spect of it he only 
smv it when it wa s first put t o him by me . I on l y say tha t to 
i ndicate how much thinking out there has to be about any 
particular solution. I put this to him at p.392: 11 Q. The 
ques tion is t his: At the time the place 13 ••••••••• in the area 
marked 10. 11 (Page 393) I never got any more differ ences and 
he wa s, I think, invited quite fully t o give them. He wa s 
saying he would consider using the circumstance to perhaps 
ventila t e the goaf edge by separ a ting portion of the a ir and 
taking it a long the further cut-through - but no certa ihty about 
it. I only cite t ha t to show tha t when the se an S1-Jers were 
gi ven a s t o the substantial differ ences, they c ould not in any 
convincing way show a r eal and appr eciable differenc e . The only 
po i n t of t hat is t o c ome to my submis sion t ha t t hi s departure 
f r om the system laid down in the corre spondence has little, if 
any, r el evance to the problem Your Horror has here. The problem, 
we submit'· is slightly different. 

26. The obvious fact that when driving a bleeder tunnel ther e 
i s t hen no existing bleed from the goaf into the r e turn airway 
outbye mru{e S t he departure of doubtful r e levanc e a s t o the 
cause of t his fir e . 

It is a circumstance but it is too remote to constitute a 
causa tive f actor. 

27. The fact t ha t the vJOrking arrangement hadopera ted 
satisfactorily in No . 3 cut-through, wher e alffi ther e wa s no 
bleed tunnel, assisted the a ssumption tha t the use of A heading 
as a shunt and its me thod of ventilation without a ble eder 
tunnel 1va s safe and proper. 

28. Wha t made the shunt dangerous and unsafe wa s not the 
seepa ge of C02 thr ough the bra ttic e stopping but the seepage of 
inflammable ga s mix ed with C02. 

29. Ther e could be little doubt tha t if this f act wa s known 
or suspected as a rea sonable possibility the use of A heading 
as a shunt would h ave been abandoned. 

Mr. Lee, I think, enunciated the same proposition 
~o Your Horror, tha t this management, if they had the slightest 
Inkling therewa s inflammable ga s in tha t shunt into which a 
work machine wa s being sent periodically , t ha t its .abandonment 
would be instantaneous. 

HIS HONOR: I agree with the proposition, the r eal issue is 
should they have had an inkling. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Hr. Menzie s dealt with this a t pp.320 and 321. 
~e wa s a sked a que stion 41 . such a w~y by _.Your H.onor tha t he 
lhterpre t ed 11 gas11 as meaning uinflammable gas". Wher eas Your 
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